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Ronson Europe N.V.
Letter from the CEO

To our shareholders

2012 was characterized by mixed trends in the ¢lebanomy. With the lingering effects of the 20@&hcial crisis
still impacting many countries around the world amith the Euro crisis dominating Europe, the Poletonomy
continued to generate slow growth and general Igtabin 2012, the Polish economy grew by 2%, while
unemployment increased to approximately 13%, wigmynof the larger Polish cities maintaining ratader 7%. The
Polish economy is expected to grow by another 1t%%20% in 2013.

During 2012, the residential market in Poland stibsigns of stability on the demand side, yet aioairg surplus on
the supply side, which resulted in increased coitipetamongst developers and a decrease in the euwtbnew
projects. In 2012, construction commenced on 14208 residential units in Poland, which is a daseeof 12%
compared to 2011. The total number of building permranted during 2012 amounted to 165,000, wiwnels 10%
lower than the year before. Decreasing supplyesiad become visible in a number of major Polistropolitan areas
since the third quarter 2012, when the overall nemdd apartments available to purchase decreasagpared to the
second quarter 2012. We believe that this trengddiced supply will finally result in a decreasepating pressure in
the near future.

The Company’s highlights for 2012 include:

- pre-sale of 380 units which, while below the Compsaurplans for 2012, was the highest yearly output i
Ronson’s history;

- delivery of 394 units to our customers, which wiz® ghe best annual result in Ronson’s history;

- completion of construction works on 7 projects (Bak Naturalis 1 and 2, Chilli, Impressio, Panolani
Verdis and Gemini 2), resulting in receipt of pasrfor occupancy for 743 units (another annual me:dor
the Company);

- commencement of construction of 4 projects (Espregerdis 2, Mlody Grunwald and Chilli 2), repretiag
a total of 456 units;

- securing two new development locations in WarsavBlkaerniewicka Street (for more than 500 units)l ah
Jaminowa Street (for around 700 units);

- afurther strengthening of Ronson’s brand name, and

- adapting Company operations to comply with the Relish Developers’ Law.

During 2012, in an environment of poor market ctinds and increased competition, the Company sa@@dudits with
a total value of PLN 153.0 million while in 201letiCompany sold 358 units with the total value oNPL91.9 million.
Net profit for 2012 amounted to PLN 31.7 million iehin 2011 it amounted to PLN 6.8 million. The stdmtial
increase of net profit in 2012 reflected an inciegiumber of units delivered by the Company taliesnts, due to the
completion in 2012 of a number of projects commdringprevious years.

We continue to believe that in the medium and lergn, the residential Polish market holds greatmse. Studies
continue to suggest that over 4 million new unitd meed to be built in order for Poland to reable EU27 average
number of units per 1,000 inhabitants. In additire, on-going migration of Polish citizens fromaluto urban areas
will create further demand for a new housing stdgkth current annual production topping out at apgmately
140,000-160,000 units the long-term shortage inréis&ential market will remain pronounced and $th@ontinue to
create strong residential development opportunities

We believe the Company is in an advantageous podibi exploit current market conditions. We beliéve Company
currently enjoys the following advantages:

- a strong capital structure allowing the Compangtéat and finance new projects;

- a pipeline of projects at attractive locations;

- the ability to increase and decrease the sizeianidg of specific projects based on perceived miadkenand,

- a highly professional staff, and

- a known brand in Warsaw and an emerging brandherd®olish cities.
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Letter from the CEO

The advantages mentioned above should give the @oynthe opportunity to significantly expand thelscef its
operations and sales, and ultimately to rank antahgdarger residential development companiesoiarii.

We wish to thank all of our shareholders for thesntinued support and confidence in our abilitycéary out our
corporate vision.

Sincerely,
Shraga Weisman
CEO
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Ronson Europe N.V.
Supervisory Board Report

Supervisory Board report

We are pleased to present the Financial StateroéRenson Europe N.V. for the financial year 204@&ompanied by
the report of the Management Board. Ernst & Yourggduntants LLP have audited the Financial Statesnend
issued an unqualified Auditor's Report. We recormuiitie shareholders to adopt the Financial Statesvaenpresented.

We concur with the Management Board’s proposabkert up on page 102 to allocate the net profitHeryear 2012
amounting to PLN 31,655 thousand to retained egsnin

Supervision

During 2012, there were frequent Supervisory Baand Management Board meetings, during which, anaihgr
topics, the following items were discussed:

e the Company’s business strategy, including thearsgs by the Company to the changed market envenohm
resulting from the euro crisis;

the strengthening of the Company’s financial poaiti

potential sources of long term capital;

performance review of the Management Board anduatiah of the Company’s remuneration policy;

the corporate governance structure of the Company;

risk management and processes undertaken during#ne

group restructuring anticipating Polish tax regolas;

evaluation and re-appointment of the Company’stausliand

financial results and other related issues.

The Supervisory Board (including its committees) seven times to discuss, among other things, uhetibning of
the Management Board. The Board (Audit committds) anet with the external auditors without the pres of the
Management Board. All Supervisory Board meetindd re2012 were attended by the majority of the rhers of the
Supervisory Board.

Audit Committee

The roles and responsibilities of the Audit Comedtiare to supervise, monitor and advise the ManageBoard and
Supervisory Board on all matters related to risknagement, audit, control and compliance to relevanancial

legislation and regulations. The Audit Committealeates the performance of the external auditodsralated costs.
The Audit Committee has also been involved in thecess of assessing the performance and coste axternal
auditors, with whom the committee met twice dutting year.

Remuneration and Nominating Committee

It is the primary task of the Remuneration and Nwating Committee to: (i) propose to the SupervisBoard

remuneration of the members of the Management Baaotliding a review and monitoring of the Groupal

remuneration policy, (ii) advise the SupervisoryaBbon matters relating to the nominations of dpervisory and
Management Board members. The Remuneration andréging Committee regularly reviews the Supervisdogard

profile, its effectiveness and composition. The odttee also reviews the performance of the memioérghe

Management Board.

Financial statements

The Management Board has prepared the 2012 firlasteilements. These financial statements were sksclat a
Supervisory Board meeting attended by the auditors.

Composition of the Supervisory Board

During the Annual General Meeting of Shareholderisl lon 28 June 2012, Mr Sharoni was reappointedexaber of
the Supervisory Board for a term of four years.

With a view to the expiration of his four year tea® Supervisory Director in 2013, the reappointneéritir Roseen
will be scheduled for the upcoming General Meeth§hareholders.
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Composition of the Management Board

During the Annual General Meeting of Shareholdestsl ton 28 June 2012, Messrs Weisman, hsipiand Gutowski
were reappointed members of the Management Boatdremaging directors A for a term of four yearsriBy the
same meeting, Mr Pilniewicz was reappointed menoib¢he Management Board and managing director Bafarm
of four years.

On 31 October 2012, Mr Pilniewicz stepped down asaging director B. It is envisaged that he willrbplaced by a
new candidate during the upcoming General Meetfrghareholders.

5 March 2013
For the Supervisory Board

Mark Segall,
Chairman
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Corporate Governance

Governance structure

The Company is a Dutch public company with a lgtim the Warsaw Stock Exchange (‘WSE’). For thasom the
Company is subject to both Dutch and Polish rutesragulations regarding corporate governance.

Corporate Governance Code in the Netherlands

On 9 December 2003, the Dutch Corporate Govern@ocemittee released the Dutch Corporate Governaonde Gt
was updated on 10 December 2008 by the Corporater@ance Code Monitoring Committee (“the Commitjee’
take effect as of financial year 2009. The upd&etth Corporate Governance Code (‘the Code’) costarinciples
and best practice provisions for management boasdgervisory boards, shareholders and general mgsef
shareholders, financial reporting, auditors, disate, compliance and enforcement standards. Then@tere has
published its most recent monitoring report in Daber 2011.

Dutch companies listed on a regulated stock exahamthe EU/EER, are required under Dutch law seldise in their
annual reports whether or not they apply the prorss of the Code and, if they do not apply, to aiplthe reasons
why. The Code provides that if a company's generakting of shareholders explicitly approves thepooate

governance structure and policy and endorses thiameation for any deviation from the best pracficevisions, such
company will be deemed to have complied with theeéCo

The Company acknowledges the importance of goopocate governance. The Management and SupervisuaydB
have reviewed the Code, and generally agree watputport. The Boards have taken and will take fantpher steps
they consider required and appropriate to furttraplément the Code and improve the Company’s cotpora
governance features. This is very much a livingepss. It is the Company’s policy to discuss théctapmnually with
the shareholders and schedule it for this purposthé annual general meeting of shareholders #ahcial year. The
topic has been part of the agenda for each gemerating of shareholders since 2008.

The corporate governance policy and the corporatergance framework of the Company were approvethtofirst
time by the shareholders in 2007 at the occasiah@fiPO of the Company. The topic of corporateegoance has
been scheduled for each general meeting of shatetso$ince 2007.

Exceptions to the application of the Dutch CorpoeaGovernance Code:

The Company endorses the Code and has appliedetbeant best practice provisions of the Dutch Coafeo
Governance Code, except for the provisions sebelatw.

Il. 2.4 If options are granted, they shall, in aayent, not be exercised in the first three yeatsrahe date of
granting. The number of options to be granted shalldependent on the achievement of challengirgetarspecified
beforehand.

The currently outstanding options have been grantemnditionally and independent on the achievernéargets.
The Company shall not amend these existing agresmeéonsidering that the Company is still in a tie&y early
stage of development and that the setting of ctegitedetermined performance criteria at a terat déast three years
is not practical at this stage, the Company stalapply this provision.

lll. 2.1 The supervisory board members, with the exceptioobmore than one person, shall be independethirwi
the meaning of best practice provision lll. 2.2.

Our Supervisory Board currently consists of six rbems, of which three are independent within the mimepof the
Dutch Corporate Governance Code. Three leadingebb#ters, i.e. I.T.R. 2012 B.V. and ITR Dori B.\boperating
jointly in the general partnership Vennootschap esnfirma ITRD (“ITRD Partnership”) which holds irotal a
shareholding and voting rights of 64.2%, and GEhwitshareholding and voting rights of 15.3% havweed)to use
their voting rights in such a manner to procurd tha ITRD Partnership will be in a position to nioate independent
supervisory directors to the Company. Moreover, @mnpany’s articles of association state that thpeBrisory
Board shall have at least two independent SupagvBoard directors.
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Corporate Governance

Governance structure (cont'd)

lll. 6.5 The terms of reference of the supervidoogrd shall contain rules on dealing with conflid&interest and
potential conflicts of interest between managenim#rd members, supervisory board members and thernek
auditor on the one hand and the company on theroffiee terms of reference shall also stipulate Whi@nsactions
require the approval of the supervisory board. Teenpany shall draw up regulations governing ownigrsif, and
transactions in securities by management or superyiboard members, other than securities issuethéy ‘own’

company.

The Company believes that the restrictions unddctsecurities law are sufficient to govern the ewship of, and
transactions in, securities by Supervisory and Mang&nt Board members. Implementing additional ictigins would
potentially harm its ability to attract and enstire continued services of Supervisory and Managé®eard members
and the Company therefore believes that applyirsgltst practice provision is not in its best iastr

IV. 3.1 Meetings with analysts, presentations to analystesentations to investors and institutional investand
press conferences shall be announced in advantheooompany’s website and by means of press releBsevision
shall be made for all shareholders to follow theseetings and presentations in real time, for exanyyl means of web
casting or telephone lines. After the meetingspiiesentations shall be posted on the company'siteeb

Considering the Company’s size, it would createxgessive burden to provide facilities which enablareholders to
follow in real time the meetings and presentatigfsrred to in the best practice provision. The @any will ensure
that presentations are posted on its website immhagliafter the meetings in question.

Transactions with a conflict of interest

During the financial year 2012, no transactionsedsrred to in best-practice provisions 11.3.4,8I8 and 111.6.4 took
place involving a conflict of interest relating directors, supervisory board members or naturalcaridgal persons
holding at least 10% of the shares in the compapyplying best-practice provisions 11.3.2, 11.3.31.6.1 and 111.6.2
was therefore not relevant.

Statement referred to in the Decree of 20 March 20&tb 154, determining the further requirementsnoerning the
contents of annual reports

Based on Section 391 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civdd€ (Act of 9 July 2004, Stb 370, to amend Book@) and the
Royal Decree of 20 March 2009, limited liabilityrapanies, whose shares — to put it briefly — atedi®n a regulated
stock exchange, must include a statement in theiua reports about their compliance with the pples and best
practices of the Code.

In light of the foregoing the Company confirms thatthe year under review, it did not comply fullyith the
provisions of the Code, nor does it intend to compith these during the current financial year loe hext financial
year. Its reasons for doing so are explained irpdragraphs above.
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Governance structure (cont'd)

Corporate Governance Code in Poland

The Code of Best Practice for WSE-Listed Compa(ties ‘WSE Corporate Governance Rules’) appliesotoganies
listed on the WSE, irrespective of whether such games are incorporated in Poland or outside c&iitbl The WSE
Corporate Governance Rules consist of general re@ndations relating to best practices for listeghganies (Part 1)
and best practice provisions relating to managerneatds, supervisory board members and sharehdéerts Il to
V).

The WSE Corporate Governance Rules impose upocotimpanies listed on the WSE an obligation to disela their
current reports continuous or incidental non-coempie with best practice provisions (with the exicepof the rules
set forth in Part 1). Moreover, every year each WiSted company is required to publish a detailedesnent on any
non-compliance with the WSE Corporate Governanciedk(including the rules set forth in Part 1) byywaf a

statement submitted with the company’s annual tgfpioe “Yearly Compliance Statement’).

Companies listed on the WSE are required to justify- or partial compliance with any WSE Corpor@vernance
Rules and to show the ways of eliminating the pmsstonsequences of such non-compliance or thes steph
company intends to take to mitigate the risk of-compliance with such rule in future.

The Company intends, to the extent practicableptaply with all principles of the WSE Corporate @Gavance Rules.
However, certain principles will apply to the Compgaonly to the extent permitted by Dutch law. Digdiinformation

regarding non-compliance, as well as additionalangtions regarding partial compliance with certAISE Corporate
Governance Rules due to incompatibilities with Dut@w, are included in the aforementioned repartich are also
available on the Company’s website (www.ronsorapk) are being published by way of a current report.

The Company makes all efforts to comply with allnpiples of both the Dutch Code and the WSE Corgora
Governance Rules and to enforce such corporatetsteuthat ensures the Company’s transparency gomntbst
possible extent. The Company believes that itsresffare appreciated by its stakeholders and tlesetlefforts will
support the Company’s growth and its reliability.

General Meeting of Shareholders

Per the Articles of Associatiomf the Company, the annual General Meeting of &falders shall be held within six
months after the end of the financial year to deitth, among other matters: (i) the annual repaiY'gdoption of the
annual accounts, (iii) discussion of (any substhmhanges in) corporate governance, (iv) discassfaemuneration
policy for the Board of Managing Directors (“Managent Board”), (v) granting of discharge to the Magement
Board for the management over the past financialr,yévi) discussion of remuneration of Supervis@yard
members, (vii) granting of discharge to the Supmami Board for the supervision over the past fimangear, (viii)
policy on additions to reserves and dividends, dopption of the profit appropriation, (x) (re)apment of members
of the Management Board and (xi) (re)appointmentmefmbers of the Board of Supervisory Directors ff&wisory
Board”).

Other General Meetings of Shareholders shall bd asloften as the Management Board or the Supeyvidoard

deems necessary. Shareholders representing iygiegate of at least one-tenth of the Companyisegsapital may
request the Management Board or the SupervisorydBtm convene a General Meeting of Shareholdeegingt

specifically the business to be discussed.

’ Most recently amended on 30 June 2011
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Issue of new shares

The Company shall only issue shares pursuant &selution of the General Meeting or of another ooafe body
designated to do so by a resolution of the Gemdeadting for a fixed period not exceeding five yedrse designation
must be accompanied by a stipulation as to the eumibshares that may be issued. The designatigneaieh time be
extended for a period of up to five years. The glesion may not be cancelled, unless the designatiovides
otherwise. A decision by the General Meeting tagésshares or to designate another body to issuesshan only be
taken upon the proposal of the Management Board.pfbposal is subject to the approval of the Supery Board.

Each shareholder shall have a pre-emptive right mispect to any share issue in proportion to gjggemyate amount of
his shares, except if shares are issued for a asin-@onsideration or if shares are issued to erapbygf the Group.

Considering the interest in the Company held bgdHeading shareholders, (1) I.T.R. 2012 B.V.,ITA Dori B.V.
(cooperating under the general partnership Venobats onder firma ITRD) and controlling jointly 64620f the
Company’s share capital and votes in the Generatilig of Shareholders of the Company and (3) GH Rstate CE
Residential B.V. controlling 15.3% of the Compangtsare capital and votes, the change of contral theeCompany
is not possible without their consent and involvamén addition, the two leading shareholders apmresented both in
the Supervisory Board and in the Management BoatideoCompany.

Supervisory and Management Boards

The Company has a two-tier corporate governanaetstie, consisting of an executive Management Bdtrd

‘Management Board’) and a non-executive Supervi®ogrd (the ‘Supervisory Board’). The day-to-daynagement
and policy-making of the Company is vested in thankigement Board, under the supervision of the Sigoey

Board. There are currently five members of the Mgmaent Board whose names are set out below. Ther8spry

Board supervises the Management Board and the Guoyigpgeneral course of affairs and the businessriducts. It
also supports the Management Board with advic@ehforming their duties the Supervisory Board merslmust act
in accordance with the interests of the Companythadhusiness connected with it.

As of 1 January 2013 the Act on Management and 1Sigien (‘Wet Bestuur en Toezicht’) came into etfed/ith this
Act, statutory provisions were introduced to ensarbalanced representation of men and women in geamant
boards and supervisory boards of companies govebgetthis Act. Balanced representation of men andnemo is
deemed to exist if at least 30% of the seats atedfiby men and at least 30% are filed by women.
Ronson Europe N.V. has currently no seats takemndajen. Since Ronson Europe N.V. does not complly thie law

in this respect, it has looked into the reasonsnfm-compliance. The Supervisory Board recognibesbenefits of
diversity, including gender balance. However, thpe&visory Board feels that gender is only one péariversity.
Supervisory Board and Management Board members asifitinue to be selected on the basis of wide rangi
experience, backgrounds, skills, knowledge andyfiisi The Supervisory Board continues to strivenfiore diversity
in both the Supervisory Board and Management Bdaod.more information on the rules of the SupemyisBoard
please refer to the profile of the Supervisory Boaron Ronson Europe N.V.'s website.

Supervisory Board

The Articles of Association provide that the Comypahall have a Supervisory Board consisting oéast three and at
most seven persons of which at least two Supenvi§drectors shall be independent. Supervisory Diex are
appointed by the General meeting of shareholdera foeriod of four years. After holding office fire first period of
four years, Supervisory Directors are eligible iferelection for two additional terms of four yeaach. The General
meeting of shareholders shall establish the renatioerfor each Supervisory Director.

Supervisory Board Committees

The Supervisory Board is supported by two comnittee

e the Audit Committee (comprising Mr Shilhav (chairyaMr Sharoni and Mr Segall)

e the Remuneration and Nominating Committee (compyisilr Mientkavich, (chairman),Mr Shilhav and Mr
Sharoni)

These committees are composed from members of uper@sory Board with relevant experience. All coitte@s

operate under the overall responsibility of the @ugsory Board, in accordance with the best pracsipulations of

the Dutch Corporate Governance Code.
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Composition of the Supervisory Board

Mark Segall (age 50, US citizen, male), Chairman

Mark Segall was appointed a member of the SupewiBward of the Company on 28 September 2007 and re
appointed on 30 June 2011. Mr Segall is the foumddfidron Corporate Advisors LLC, a corporate airy and
mergers and acquisitions boutique, Kidron Capitalvidors LLC, a US registered broker dealer, andKifron
Opportunity Fund I, LLC, a small private equity urPrior to forming Kidron in 2003, he was the Gued executive
officer of Investec Inc. Mr Segall serves on thatabof directors of Bel Fuse Inc., Integrated Addahagement plc.,
Temco Services Inc. and Infinity Cross Border Asition Corp. His current term as Supervisory Dioeaxpires in
June 2015. There is no conflict of interest betwibenCompany and other business activities of MyaBe

Arie Mientkavich (age 70, Israeli citizen, male),ide-Chairman

Arie Mientkavich was appointed a member of the $uipery Board of the Company on 30 June 2011, amdsh
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. He is De@hairman of the Management Board of Gazit Gloke L
(since 2005). Mr Mientkavich is Chairman of the tbaf the following companies: U. Dori Group Ltdrnse 2012)
Gazit Globe Israel (Development) Ltd (since 200B);on Electronic Industries Ltd (since 2007) andfdea
Development Corporation Ltd (since 2007). He isev¥@&hairman of IDB Holding Corporation Ltd (since0Z) and he
is also a director in Given Imagining Ltd and inléhs Ltd. From 1997 to 2006, Mr Mientkavich was ©man of the
board of Israel Discount Bank Ltd and from 19871897 he served as Active Chairman of the Israeli®&ézs Board,
he also was member of the License Committee asasealf the Advisory Committee of the Bank of Isradik current
term as Supervisory Board Director expires in JB@&5. There is no conflict of interest between @mnpany and
other business activities of Mr Mientkavich.

Yair Shilhav (age 54, Israeli citizen, male)

Yair Shilhav was appointed a member of the Superyi8oard on 28 September 2007 and re-appointe80odune
2011, and he is the Chairman of the Audit Commit®ace 2004, Mr Shilhav has been the owner of siness
consulting office. Between 2000 and 2003, he waseaber of the executive directory committee of alueit firm,
Somekh Chaikin, a member of KPMG. Between 1995 20@3, he was the head of the Haifa branch of Somekh
Chaikin, of which he was partner from 1990 to 20RBor to becoming a partner at Somekh Chaikinwhe head of
the professional and finance department of the dinme He was also the head of the accountancylfip@i Haifa
University between 1998 and 2002. His current tasndupervisory Director expires in June 2015. Therm® conflict

of interest between the Company and other buseetssties of Mr Shilhav.

Frank Roseen (age 50, Swedish citizen, male)

Frank Roseen was appointed a member of the Supgri®ard of the Company on 29 May 2009. Mr Roseéred
GE Capital in 2002, and has 11 years of real estgterience. Mr Roseen is a managing director inGapital Real
Estate’s operations for Germany, Central and Eadterope based in Frankfurt since April 2012. Hisvjipus roles
were managing director in GE Capital Real Estatgisrations for Central and Eastern Europe basdttague and
Managing Director - Asset Management for Asia ReciPrior to that, Mr Roseen was CFO for GE Comria¢rc
Finance Real Estate Asia Pacific and GE Real Edatelic. Before joining GE, he was Finance Diredimr Xerox
Nordic. His current term as Supervisory Directopiexs in May 2013. There is no conflict of interégttween the
Company and other business activities of Mr Roseen.

Reuven Sharoni (age 75, Israeli citizen, male)

Reuven Sharoni was appointed a member of the SigpeysBoard on 23 June 2008 and re-appointed ofudg 2012.
Mr Sharoni’s recent positions include Deputy Manaed head of Non Life Arieh Insurance Company [itolm 1980
to 1984. In the years 1984 to 2000, he acted asitpapeneral Managing Director and from 2000 un@iD2 as the
General Managing Director of Arieh Insurance Conyphtd. Since 2003, Mr Sharoni has been an actiarotan of
Shirbit Insurance Company Ltd. and since 2006 al€hairman of Millenium Pension Savings Ltd. Hisreat term as
Supervisory Director expires in June 2016. Theredsonflict of interest between the Company arteobusiness
activities of Mr Sharoni.
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Composition of the Supervisory Board (cont'd)

Przemyslaw Kowalczyk (age 43, Polish citizen, male)

Przemyslaw Kowalczyk was appointed a member of Snpervisory Board on 30 June 2011. Since 2010 Mr
Kowalczyk is an independent business consultantopedates as financial and investment advisorrange of small
and medium enterprise in Poland. From 2002 to 2889yas member of the management board at VolkswBgak
Polska Group. Prior to that, from 1994 to 2002, Ktwalczyk was active in the banking sector in b8thitzerland
and Poland, and held various positions includirg tead of the Treasury Department with BankgedslftdBerlin
(Polska) S.A.. His current term as Supervisory &ve expires in June 2015. There is no conflicinbérest between
the Company and other business activities of Mr Klowyk.

Management Board

The management of the Company is entrusted to tapalyement Board under the supervision of the Sigoeyw
Board. The Articles of Association provide that thmnagement Board shall consist of two or more rganp
directors. Managing directors are appointed byGbkeeral meeting of shareholders. The ManagementBsteall meet
as often as a managing director requests a me&lhgesolutions by the Management Board shall bepded by an
absolute majority of the votes cast.

The Management Board as a whole is responsiblghierday-to-day management, including comprehendsle
management control, financing and regulatory coamgié.

The Company and its operating companies are orgdralong clear functional reporting lines. Througihthe Group,
corporate and operating accountabilities, rolesrasgonsibilities are in place.

Managing directors A and B

Per the Company’s Articles of Association, the Mgaraent Board shall consist of one or more manadiragtors A
and may in addition consist of one or more managdinectors B. The Supervisory Board shall deternrecisely the
number of managing directors and the precise numibm@anaging directors of a specific class.

The General Meeting of Shareholders shall grantrte of the managing directors A the title of ‘Chietecutive
Officer’ who will be the chairman of the Managem@&uard, and may also grant to one of the managiregtdrs A
the title of ‘Chief Financial Officer’ and othetlés to managing directors A or managing direcBrs

The Management Board shall represent the Compdmgy.alithority to represent the Company shall alsedsted in
two managing directors among whom, if one or momnaging directors B are in office, at least onelldma a
managing director B.

Composition of the Management Board

Shraga Weisman (age 61, Israeli citizen, male)

On 10 October 2008, Mr Shraga Weisman was appogsechanaging director A and President of the Mamage
Board, for a term of four years and granted tHe t€hief Executive Officer’. On 28 June 2012, hasare-appointed
for another term of four years.

Mr Weisman served as ‘Chief Executive Officer’ adbdar Building Company Ltd. from 1997 until May B0@&shdar
Building Company Ltd., listed on the Tel-Aviv Sto&kxchange since May 2007, is one of the largedt estate
development companies in Israel focusing on resigleand commercial projects, hotels and proteaiszbmmodation
projects. From 1990 to 1997, he was ‘Chief Exeeautdfficer’ of Natanya Tourism Development Compawpich
developed residential and infrastructure developgmenjects in Israel. Mr Weisman holds a BA titterh Tel-Aviv
University, an MSC title from Technion, the Israkistitute of Technology, and is a certified reslate appraiser in
Israel. His current term as Managing Director eepiin June 2016. Mr Weisman does not perform atiyitaes other
than for the Company.
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Composition of the Management Board (cont'd)

Tomasz tapiski (age 36, Polish citizen, male)

On 23 June 2008, Mr taijski was appointed as managing director A and merabéie Management Board, for a
term of four years and granted the title ‘Chiefdsinial Officer’. On 28 June 2012, he was re-appairfor another
term of four years. Mr Lapiki is also a member of the management boards of sabsidiaries of the Company.

Between 2000 and 2008, Mr Lapki worked in the investment banking division ofiOredit Group in Warsaw
(formerly of HVB and of Bank Austria Creditanstalt) in UniCredit CA IB Poland (formerly CA IB Finaiat
Advisers). His experience in investment bankindudes mainly M&A (mergers and acquisitions) trarigas as well
as other corporate finance related assignmentsva$ealso responsible for equity capital market (B@Mnsactions,
including the initial public offering of Ronson Epe N.V. Before joining CA IB Financial Advisergpf 1998 to
2000, Mr taphski worked for the consulting company Central E@rdpust. Mr Lapiski graduated from Warsaw
School of Economics (Finance and Banking Facul#§3.current term as Managing Director expires ineJ2016. Mr
tapinski does not perform any activities other thantfier Company.

Andrzej Gutowski (age 43, Polish citizen, male)

On 10 October 2008, Mr Gutowski was appointed asagig director A and member of the Management &dar a
term of four years and granted the title ‘Sales ®atketing Director’. On 28 June 2012, he was rpeapted for
another term of four years.

Mr Gutowski had been employed by Ronson Developnvariagement Sp. z o.o. for five years as the ‘Sateb
Marketing Manager’. Mr Gutowski is also a membeth®# management boards of many subsidiaries aEtmpany.
Before joining Ronson Development Group, betwee®418003 Mr Gutowski worked for Emmerson Sp. z o.0.
(leading real estate agency and Advisory CompartheénPolish market) as Director of Primary Markatsl member
of the management board. From 1988 until 1993, MtoGski studied at Warsaw School of Economics (fgore
Trade). His current term as Managing Director esgin June 2016. Mr Gutowski does not perform aniyities other
than for the Company.

Israel Greidinger (age 51, Israeli citizen, male)

On 30 June 2011, Mr Israel Greidinger was appoiatedhanaging director B and member of the ManageBeard

of the Company, for a term of four years. Mr Gragér is the Chief Financial Officer and memberhef Management
Board of Cinema City International N.V. since 19%% is also a director of Israel Theatres Ltd. sii®94. From
1985 to 1992, Mr Greidinger served as Managing dinreof C.A.T.S. Ltd. (Computerised Automatic Titl&ales), a
London based company, and from 1992 to 1994, heRsesident and Chief Executive Officer of Pacers@at. His

current term as Managing Director expires in JuB&52 There is no conflict of interest between tt@m@any and
other business activities of Mr Greidinger.

Ronen Ashkenazi (age 51, Israeli citizen, male)

On 30 June 2011, Mr Ronen Ashkenazi was appoirgedamaging director B and member of the Manageeatd

of the Company, for a term of four years. Mr Ashkaris CEO and co-owner of Gazit Globe Israel (Depment) Ltd

and CEO and indirect co-owner of U.Dori Group LTRoreover, Mr Ashkenazi is the Chairman of the boafd
U.Dori Construction LTD, a director on the boardri Energy, a director on the board of Cityconj,Qyproperty
investment company specialized in retail premise&inland, Sweden and the Baltic countries. Higentrterm as
Managing Director expires in June 2015. There iscanoflict of interest between the Company and othesiness
activities of Mr Ashkenazi.
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Explanatory notes by reason of the Decree, Articl&0 of the Takeover Directive

By reason of the Decree of 5 April 2006 to implemnanicle 10 of Directive 2004/25/EC of the Europdarliament
and the Council of the European Union of 21 ApfiD2 regarding public takeover bids, Ronson Europé. lthe
Company’) provides the following explanation:

a. Capital structure of the Company
The capital of the company consists of one classhafes, being ordinary shares with a nominal vafueUR 0.02
each. Information on issued shares has been irctludger Note 26 to the Consolidated Financial 8tates.

b. Restriction on transferring shares or issued asjtary receipts with the Company’s co-operation
The Articles of Association of the Company haverestriction with respect to the transfer of shafidee Company has
no depositary receipts issued with the Companyeperation.

c. Duty to report interests in the Company

The Company has been notified regarding sharel®ldéth a substantial holding in accordance with &et on
Financial Supervision (5% or more) in the Compdrly.R. 2012 B.V., ITR Dori B.V., GE Real Estate Gesidential
B.V., Amplico Otwarty Fundusz Emerytalny and INGA@tty Fundusz Emerytalny.

d. Special controlling rights
The Company has issued no shares with specialatiomgrrights.

e. Employees’ shares
The Company currently does not hold any employegesscheme or option plan where the control rigines not
exercised directly by the employees.

f. Restriction on voting right and issue of depasiy receipts
No restrictions are currently imposed on votinghtiggattached to issued shares. The Company haspasithry
receipts issued with the Company’s co-operation.

g. Agreements with shareholders

Currently, the Company is unaware of any sharemadeeements, except for the so-called Relationsigipement
between its three largest shareholders, ITR D®RR 2012 and GE Real Estate CE Residential B.V. wvkiets forth
certain rights and obligations of the three largdsireholders with respect to each other. For arig¢isn of the
Relation Agreement reference is made to pages 76/tof the Company's Prospectus dated 10 Octob@r 28
available from the Company's websieyw.ronson.pl

h. Regulations pertaining to the appointment andsdiissal of executive and supervisory directors amdendments
to the Articles of Association

By virtue of articles 13 and 14 and articles 21 a8df the Articles of Association, the general timegis authorized to
appoint, suspend or dismiss members of the ManageBward as well as members of the Supervisory &o@he
Directors shall be appointed from a list of nomsjemntaining the names of at least two personsdoh vacancy, to
be drawn up by the Supervisory Board. A nominatidnich is drawn up in time shall be binding. Howeube general
meeting may deprive the nomination of its bindih@mcter by resolution adopted with a majority of iess than two
thirds of the votes cast, representing more thdinoidhe issued capital. The members of the Manag# Board and
the Supervisory Board may be suspended or dismisgéide general meeting at any time. If a resolutm suspend or
dismiss a Director has not been proposed by therSigory Board, the resolution to suspend or disnaisnanaging
Director is adopted with not less than two thirdghe votes cast by shareholders, representing thaire half of the
issued capital.

By virtue of article 40 of the Articles of Assodm, the Articles of Association can only be ameahédethe proposal of
the Management Board subject to approval from tige8/isory Board and the shareholders. A resoluticamend the
Articles of Association shall be passed by an alisahajority of the votes cast.

i. The powers of the board

By virtue of article 5 of the Articles of Associati, the Management Board is, subject to the approahe
Supervisory Board, authorized to resolve to isthwes for a certain period for a maximum per issfughares of 25%
of the issued share capital immediately prior &t fesue, with an aggregate maximum of all nonedsshares of the
authorized share capital. The period of authoratif the Management Board by the General Meetirghareholders
was renewed by a decision of the General Meeting§hafreholders which took place on 28 of June 20t 2ifiother
period of five years lapsing at 28 June 2017.

j- Important agreements when issuing a public bid
The Company is not aware of any existing agreemith is relevant in the context of the issuanca ptiblic bid.

k. Agreements with executive directors or employethe event of a public bid
The employment contracts of the Members of the Mdangent Board do not contain any specific clausdstwiefer to
a change of control in the Company.
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Remuneration Report

Introduction

The Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholdetd bn 1 October 2007, upon recommendation of tie&isory
Board, approved the Company’s remuneration polibictvsets forth the terms of remuneration of thenimers of the
Management Board. The same General Meeting appravedg-term incentive plan for members of the Mmmaent
Board and other key personnel of the Company andubsidiaries. The remuneration for the Superyi8mward was
also adopted at the same General shareholdersingeet

Remuneration Policy

The objective of the Company’s remuneration poigto provide a compensation program that allovesGbmpany to
attract, retain and motivate members of the Superyiand Management Boards and those who havehdmaater
traits, skills and background to successfully leadnage and supervise the Company. The remunernadilicy is
designed to reward members of the Management Baardisther key personnel for their contributiorhe success of
the Company. Each of the Supervisory Boards membezives fixed annual remuneration and remunergtien
attended at meeting.

Governance

The General Meeting of Shareholders approves péais of the remuneration policy for the Manageniodrd. The
General Meeting of Shareholders further determihegemuneration of the Supervisory Board. Compensaf both
the Supervisory Board and Management Board is wederegularly. The Supervisory Board has a dedicate
Remuneration Committee.

Remuneration of the Management Board

Shraga Weisman

Mr Shraga Weisman, as a member of the ManagemeartdBif Ronson Europe N.V., has entered into an eynpént
contract with a subsidiary of the Company (Ronsoewvdlopment Management Sp. z 0.0.). The terms of his
compensation package include a gross monthly feakeoPLN equivalent of EUR 2,500. Mr Weisman iatstitled

to reimbursement of housing and office costs amnognip to the PLN equivalent of EUR 3,000 per moashwell as
certain other social and medical insurance costs. ddmpensation also includes a reimbursement asomably
incurred and documented expenses related to thEepperformance of his consulting agreement ufhéoamount of
EUR 5,000 per calendar year as well as reimbursenfdhe costs related to his and his family’s &lao Israel up to
the maximum amount of EUR 20,000 per year and gpammycar.

In addition, he provides via his consulting compaawices to Ronson Europe N.V. For these senlitred/eisman’s
company charges Ronson Europe N.V. a monthly feEUR 22,500. His consulting company is also emtitie an
annual bonus set at 3.3% of the consolidated ampraaix profit of the Group.

Tomasz tapiski

Mr Tomasz tapiski, as a member of the Management Board of RoRswape N.V., has entered into an employment
contract with a subsidiary of the Company (Rons@vddopment Management Sp. z 0.0.). The conditidnthe
employment contract include a monthly salary of PANOO0O, reimbursement of the medical insurancéscasd a
company car. In addition, he is entitled to an ahtwonus set at 0.75% of the consolidated annwatax profit of the
Group.

Andrzej Gutowski

Mr Andrzej Gutowski, as a member of the ManagemBoard of Ronson Europe N.V., has entered into an
employment contract with a subsidiary of the Conyp@onson Development Management Sp. z 0.0.). Bhditons

of the employment contract include a monthly sat#ri?LN 25,000, reimbursement of the medical insoeacosts and

a company car. Mr Gutowski is also entitled to ¢erdy bonus based on the value of the apartmerits tsp the
Company in the particular quarter. His bonus igdihto the value of Group’s sales and amountsi&o®f the value

of sales.
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Remuneration of the Management Board (cont'd)

Israel Greidinger

Mr Israel Greidinger is not entitled to any remuwatgm from Ronson Europe nor from any of the Conyfsan
subsidiaries except for a reimbursement of outaxfiet expenses related to services provided t€tmpany (mainly
comprising travel and accommodation expenses).

Ronen Ashkenazi

Mr Ronen Ashkenazi is not entitled to any remunermafrom Ronson Europe nor from any of the Company’
subsidiaries except for a reimbursement of outaifket expenses related to services provided t€tmpany (mainly
comprising travel and accommodation expenses).

Karol Pilniewicz

Mr Karol Pilniewicz, previous member of the ManagemBoard, was not entitled to any remuneratiomfionson
Europe nor from any of the Company’s subsidiariesept for a reimbursement of out-of-pocket expensésed to
services provided to the Company (mainly comprisiagel and accommodation expenses).

Remuneration of the Management Board in 2012

Total compensation of the Members of the ManagerBeaird — not including any benefits from the empletock
incentive plan (share based payments) and the aompar — amounted to PLN 3,685 thousand, of whiuh t
compensation of;

- Mr Shraga Weisman amounted to PLN 2,497 thousand,
- Mr Tomasz tapiski amounted to PLN 733 thousand,
- Mr Andrzej Gutowski amounted to PLN 455 thousand.

Long-term incentive plan

Towards the end of 2007, an employee stock incertlan (the ‘Employee Stock Incentive Plan’) waglemented.
The Employee Stock Incentive Plan comprises a maxiraf 4,000,000 shares for members of the ManageBward

and key employees of the Company. The General Ngeti Shareholders has resolved to authorize tiperSisory

Board to determine, with the participation of aadeone independent member of the Supervisory Bahedexact
terms of any stock or stock-based incentive scheanel the persons entitled to participate thereponuthe

recommendation of the Management Board. In additiader such resolution, the Company may purchashares in
the open market to satisfy any share entitlemepts)exercise of any options issued or granted uitsld&Employee
Stock Incentive Plan. The actual granting and esieng of share options are disclosed in the Natebé Consolidated
Financial Statements (Note 26 B).

On 5 November 2007, the Company issued 1,900,06@nspwith an exercise price of PLN 5.75 each, dicl
336,000 options are still outstanding and exerdésals at 31 December 2012. During the year endedeg8&mber
2012, the employees that joined the option prognathnot exercised any of their options.

Remuneration of the Supervisory Board

Each Supervisory Board member currently receivesammual remuneration of EUR 8,900 and EUR 1,500 per
attendance at meetings or EUR 750 if attendanbg ielephone. Moreover Supervisory Board membersatitled to
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses relatesktugices provided to the Company (mainly comprigiagel and
accommodation expenses). The Supervisory Board mesrdre not entitled to any benefits on terminatibriheir
service. Two Supervisory Board members (Mr Arie Miavich and Mr Frank Roseen) have waived their
remuneration from the Company. The remuneratiod f@i accrued) to the Supervisory Board membersidas only

the remuneration for the remaining members: Mr M&dgall, Mr Yair Shilhav, Mr Przemyslaw KowalczykdaMr
Reuven Sharoni. The total Supervisory Board rematiwer during 2012 amounted to PLN 242 thousand (E38R
thousand).
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Risk Profile and Risk Management

Risk Profile

Management believes that the residential marketwakole in Poland is less saturated than in angratbuntry within
the European Union, including also the developiogntries in Central and Eastern Europe, which imegal provides
for many opportunities for residential developétewever due to the fact that the Polish econonstiilsexperiencing
many dynamic changes, it may be sensitive to piaiemp and down-turns. These market conditions famimportant
and significant risk factor for the Company and dtiner residential developers, as the developmermegs (including
stages such as the purchase of land, the prepacdtiand for construction works, the constructimocess itself and,
finally, also the sale of apartments) may take s#weears from start until completion. It is impemt to understand that
decisions taken by the Company must assume avediationg-term time horizon for each project as lwasd a
significant volatility of land prices, constructiacost levels and sales prices of apartments dufiegduration of
projects which may have a material impact on them@any’s profitability and financing needs.

Another specific risk is associated with the ragédelopment of many Polish cities which very oftevolves a lack of
stability of development plans which could substdiyt impact the likelihood that projects on paunfiar sites are
realized as initially desired or planned. Quiteenftresidential developers are interested in bulang parcels without
zoning conditions or without a valid master plantfee area, which would allow for a better assesgmtthe ultimate
value of the plot. Pursuing such market opportasithay result in relatively low prices of the lgmafcels. However,
this strategy may result in increasing operatioaall financial risks for the developer. Moreoverarding

development plans of the cities could also imp&et planned development and realization of utilitfrastructure
(including water, gas, sewage and electricity catioas), which is critical factor for the Companydaother

developers. However, for a vast majority of landcpés, the Company has already obtained zoningoapfs, which

reduces this risk to the Company significantly.

A very specific risk for the Polish residential rket is related to the initiatives of the Polish ®avment supporting
young people wanting to buy their first apartm@iite most recent government program, which has edpit the end
of 2012, was called Rodzina na Swoim (Family orCtgn) and was subsidising the costs of mortgagesloA new

program called Mieszkanie dla Mtodych (Apartment floe Young) is expected to be launched in the hegg of

2014. The Polish government, whilst setting up gheameters of such programs (for instance maxinutad area of
the apartments qualifying for the program, or maximallowable price in particular cities), will thbe of influence on
the increasing attractiveness of certain type @ftapents and the decreasing for other types. Mamrdhe timeframe
of a new program may additionally impact the sitratin the residential market as clients may beivatéd to

accelerate their decision to buy (until some progexpires) or to delay such (until a new prograistasting).

Another operating risk lies within the constructipnocess itself. The Company does not operate atrarion
business, but, instead, it hires third party genessatractors, who are responsible for runningdbestruction and for
the finalization of the project including obtainiral permits necessary for safe use of the apatsnémportant
selection criteria when hiring a general contradtmiude experience, professionalism and finansteéngth of the
contractor as well as the quality of the insuragmalicy covering all risks associated with the comstion process.

The turbulence in the financial markets and with #uro currency during the past few years hastegbsut a lack of
stability in the manner in which financing institiis (banks) have approached both real estate coegpand
individual customers when applying for a mortgaggnl As the real estate business is very capitawraing, the role
of the banking sector and its lending ability anllimgness are crucial for the Company leveragiong anly when land
parcels are acquired but also during the laterestagf development, especially during the consibactphase.
Moreover, the availability of external financing ascrucial element driving the demand for apartsieas the vast
majority of our customers are using mortgage setlo@ns to finance the purchase of apartments.

For addition informational on financial instrumenisks see Note 36 of the Consolidated FinancaieBtents.
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Risk Management

As part of its risk management measures, the Coyjgarequesting, monitoring and purchasing insuegpalicies for
most common risks associated with the activitiest®fcontractors and their subcontractors, inclgdoonstruction
companies and architectural designers, as wellnasrance policies with respect to third-party ligi In the

Company’s opinion, these insurance policies oftkrcuate coverage for the financial consequencasymisconduct
of Company’s business partners.

In order to mitigate the market risks involved witlte Company’s activities, the Company appliesvai internal

procedures, which include, for instance, a stipautathat any acquisition of land requires unanimapproval of the
Management Board of the Company. Moreover, in nespdo the recent increasing market instabilitg, @ompany
decided to scale down the size of individual prigesffered for sale, by splitting larger residehgaojects into

relatively smaller phases (usually at on averagerad 100 units for each stage of completion). Then@any’s plans
for 2013 assume the possibility of commencing hastruction of three new projects and five furtstges of projects
that are currently under construction comprisingieat20 and 580 units respectively, which meansttiatverage
scale of each new project, i.e. stage of completiwiti be on average around 120 units. The Compianfurther

mitigating the risks related to the constructiongass by selecting and hiring experienced congrucompanies with
good reputations and proven track-records in Poland

Moreover, various other organizational measurespaiadedures were implemented in order to safegtmrdjuality of
operations and to incorporate adequate checks @addes, including approvals, authorizations, reiig investment
decisions and so on. As part of implementing bestyxre provisions of both the Dutch and Polishpooate
governance codes, the Company introduced a taiiotechal risk management and control system. Ruga12, the
proper operation of the new internal risk managdnaerd control system has been monitored. The etiatuavas
discussed with the members of the Audit Committad the Supervisory Board. Also, the Company hasta s
whistleblower rules in place to ensure that empésyef the Company and its subsidiaries have thsilgbty of
reporting alleged irregularities of a general, apienal or financial nature.

The Company’s Management Board believes that itstieg risk management measures are sufficientrowige a
reasonable degree of certainty as to the absenwoatefial inaccuracies in the financial reportilogses and fraud.

Moreover, as a result of increased volatility ie financial markets and the continued unstablatdn in the banking
sector, the Company’s Management pays particulentn to cash and liquidity management, basicafiguring
sufficient amounts of cash deposits with a vieva tontinuation of the Company’s operations in thastentially more
turbulent times.

For a description of the Company’s financial instants risk management reference is made to Notef36e
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Directors’ Report

General

Introduction

Ronson Europe N.V. (‘the Company’) is a Dutch palslbmpany with its statutory seat in Rotterdam,Nle¢herlands,
and was incorporated on 18 June 2007.

The Company (together with its Polish subsidiarigse Group’) is active in the development and safi@esidential
units, primarily apartments, in multi-family resit@l real-estate projects to individual customarsPoland. For
information about companies in the Group from whibbir financial data included in the Consolidatéidancial
Statements see note 1 of the Consolidated FinaBtagments.

The shares of the Company are traded on the Wassagk Exchange since 5 November 2007. As at 31 ibee
2012, 32.1% of the outstanding shares are heldThrl 2012 B.V., 32.1% of the outstanding shareshesid by ITR
Dori B.V. (both cooperating in ITRD Partnershipjhereas 15.3% of the outstanding shares are hel@tbyReal
Estate CE Residential B.V. (‘GE Real Estate’) amel temaining 20.5% of the outstanding shares alk bheother
investors including Amplico Otwarty Fundusz Emehyyaand ING Otwarty Fundusz Emerytalny whereby epatty
is holding an interest of between 5% and 10% ofatitstanding shares. On 5 March 2013, the marke¢ pras PLN
0.93 per share giving the Company a market capatiidin of PLN 253.3 million.

Company overview

The Company is an experienced, fast-growing andiaiyo residential real estate developer expandsgebgraphic
reach to major metropolitan areas across Polanderhging upon its large portfolio of secured sitbg Company
believes it is well positioned to maintain its gmsi as a leading residential development comphrgughout Poland.

The Company aims to maximize value for its shamdrsl by a selective geographical expansion in Elodéesnwell as
by creation of a portfolio of real estate developmproperties. Management believes the Companypbagioned

itself strongly to navigate the volatile economitvikconment the Company has found itself in over plast several
years. On the one hand, the Polish economy appeaesnain stable, which potentially bodes well tee Company’s
prospects. On the other hand, the debt and eusescrivhich continue to play out in much of Euroaed with

increasing volatility in recent months, may conénto have a negative impact on the Polish econonuy the

Company’s overall prospects. As a result, the Compmantinues to adhere to a development strategjyaifows it to

adjust quickly to these uncertain conditions byesging risks through (i) closely monitoring its jeats, (ii)

potentially modifying the number of projects aneithquality and sizes, (iii) considering variouhat geographical
locations to commence development, and (iv) maiimgiits conservative financial policy comparedtber regional
residential developers.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group is in the mifisteweloping six projects comprising a total of 8&#ts, with a
total area of 36,200 TThe construction of 294 units, with a total argal8,200 m, is expected to be completed
during 2013. Moreover the Group operates eight deteg projects, in which 244 units with a total hisaarea of
19,500 M were still available for sale as at 31 Decembdr220

In addition, the Group has a pipeline of 22 prgjentdifferent stages of preparation, represerdimgroximately 5,600
residential units with a total area of approximat®62,300 rfi for future development in Warsaw, Po#nsVroctaw
and Szczecin. The Group is considering commencerobriive new stages of projects that are currenthder
construction comprising 583 units with a total acé&81,400 and three new projects comprising 422 units with a
total area of 25,200 fto be delivered during 2013.

During the financial year ended 31 December 204, Gompany signed one preliminary agreement andfioak
agreement for purchasing two plots of land in Warsahich will allow the Group to develop two newojects that
will comprise approximately 1,200 units with theaoarea of 74,500 m For additional information, see “Business
highlights during the year ended 31 December 2(H2-and purchase” (page 21).

During the year ended 31 December 2012 net salesiraed to 380 units with the total value PLN 1580lion
compared to net sales of 358 units with a totalilwadf PLN 191.9 million during the year ended 3lc®waber 2011
which reflects deteriorating market conditions ameteasing competition during 2012.
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Market overview

The Polish economy has proven to be relativelyngfreven in the recent turbulent times, which in bowation with
the general paucity of dwellings in Poland (in camgon to all other European countries) createstwianagement
believes to be, solid long term prospects for frtdevelopment of the residential real estate ntdarkspite of the
volatility that has characterized the market foe thast four years. Management believes the Comjmrwell
positioned to adapt to changing market conditiond & preparing new projects for development, whigh be
distinguished in the market by their location, dfyahnd attractive pricing. The Company’s salesuttssduring 2010,
2011 and 2012 seem to confirm that the Companyiraaed to adapt positively to the changing marketrenment.

In 2012, the construction of 142,000 new apartmesais commenced, a decrease of 12% compared to Zh&étrend
observed in 2010 and in 2011, when increasing iiesvof developers resulted in an increased affeapartments
available for sale on the market, changed in 2@%2nany developers faced difficulties in findingttumers for their
products. Simultaneously, competition among retdtesdevelopers significantly increased, which agurn, led to
increased customer demands and expectations tekatiquality, a more advanced stage of construcdiat higher
expectations for lower priced apartments. Moreoaarincreasing number of customers have indicategdst in more
“economical-sized” apartments, i.e. the same nundferooms in a smaller area. Such trend resultsd &lom

changing regulations, which limited the amount afrtgage offered to customers by the banking sent®oland (so
called “Recommendation T” implemented by the Pokstancial Supervision Authority imposing, amonpes, new
criteria of evaluating customers) as well as frdra governmental program supporting families buyiheir first

apartment (by subsidizing costs of the mortgagedparhe purchasing power of the customers usiegnibrtgage
loans also diminished in 2012, as customers wdegenf fewer mortgage loans. It is estimated thattdtal amount of
new mortgage loans granted in 2012 was 8% lowar thaing 2011 and shall still go down during 20dBjch may

be the source of additional pricing pressure orrésaential market.

Another unique factor affecting the Polish resit@nmarket is related to the governmental planspsuing and
subsidizing young couples purchasing their firsarapents. The most recent program called “RodziaeSwoim”
(“Family on its own”) expired as end of 2012, whesehe next program prepared by the governmemnjisoted to go
into effect no earlier than 2014. Taking into calesation all those circumstances, various reatestdvisors estimate
that the sale of the total number of dwellings iajon Polish metropolitan areas will fall during 20ty 15% to 20%,
while in Warsaw the market is expected to shrinklB§6 to 15%. It is anticipated, however, that anyithtion on
demand during 2013 will relate mainly to the cheapwre economical apartments, as potential purchasay
postpone their decisions until new government stppeasures take force. Such trends expected i@ 2@ result in
increasing market pressure on certain developdesimng mainly low priced, economic apartments, whdthers
(offering apartments not qualifying for governmesnbsidy programs) may find it as a new opportub@gause their
offer may become relatively more competitive.

Simultaneously, arranging the financing of condtarc sites has become more challenging for devetopee to

implementation of a new law that entered into fdarc@oland in April 2012, which requires constroatiprocesses to
be financed from debt as well as equity or, altéveyy, to be secured by additional banking guazastincreasing
security of customers’ deposits, if such deposits laeing used for financing the construction. ThemBany's

management is aware of these shifting trends akasgeincreasing demands by the Company’s custoamdshas

implemented internal processes aimed at improvingtommer service and responding positively to newstaruer

requirements.

In addition, to further minimize market risk, the@pany is taking a very selective approach whetiatmg new
projects. In the preparation phase of all projegteat emphasis is put on splitting the projecte smaller parts.
Management is also cognizant of the tightened tmadirkets. Accordingly, when planning its newestjgcts, the
Company has prepared itself for more demanding fasility structures that are being imposed by lgreing banks
especially anticipating the requirements undemting developers law.
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Business highlights during the year ended 31 Decemb2012

A. Projects completed

The table below presents information on the prgj¢icat were completed (i.e. completing all constomcworks and
receiving occupancy permit) during the year ende®8cember 2012:

Project name Location Number of units Area of units(m?

Sakura Warsaw 120 8,100
Impressio 7 Wroctaw 70 4,400
Naturalis 1 Warsaw 52 2,900
Naturalis 11 Warsaw 60 3,400
Chilli 1 © Pozna 30 2,100
Verdis 10 Warsaw 139 9,400
Panoramika {? Szczecin 90 5,300
Gemini 11 ©) Warsaw 182 13,900
Total 743 49,500

(*) For additional information see section ‘B. Réts breakdown by projects’ below.

B. Results breakdown by project

Revenue from the sale of residential units is recaag upon the transfer to the buyer of signifiaasis and rewards of
the ownership of the residential unit, i.e. upansig of the protocol of technical acceptance dmdttansfer of the key
to the buyer of the residential unit. Total revemdfighe Group recognized during the year ended 8dehber 2012
amounted to PLN 198.8 million, whereas cost of sélefore write-down adjustment (related to the @orsproject)

amounted to PLN 143.4 million and after write-doadjustment amounted to PLN 148.4 million, whichutesd in a

gross profit before write-down adjustment amountiod®LN 55.4 million with a gross margin of 27.9%daa gross
profit after write-down adjustment amounting to P&BL4 million with a gross margin of 25.4%.

The following table specifies revenue, cost of saled gross profit in 2012 on a project by propedis:

Information on the ) ) Gross Gross
! : Revenug! Cost of saled X >
delivered units profit margin
Number Area of PLN PLN PLN
Project name of units units (m?) (thousand) % (thousand) % (thousand) %
Gemini Il 106 7,899 68,655 34.5% 40,155 28.0% 28,500 41.5%
Verdis | 67 3,972 29,166 14.7% 18,707 13.0% 10,459 35.9%
Sakura | 86 5,498 42,853 21.6% 32,725 22.8% 10,128 23.6%
Impressio | 43 2,791 17,689 8.9% 16,739 11.7% 950 5.4%
Constans 7 1,905 8,106 4.1% 8,106 5.7% - 0%0.
Naturalis | 7 265 1,535 0.8% 1,326 0.9% 209 13.6%
Naturalis Il 26 1,339 7,630 3.8% 6,544 4.6% 1,086 14.2%
Imaginarium Il 1 73 749 0.4% 573 0.4% 176 3.5%
Imaginarium I 9 750 7,413 3.7% 5,516 3.8% 1,897 25.6%
Panoramika | 23 937 6,375 3.2% 6,124 4.3% 125 3.9%
Chilli | 14 926 4,221 2.1% 3,871 2.7% 350 .3%
Nautica | 1 72 588 0.3% 520 0.4% 68 11.6%
Nautica Il 1 201 1,074 0.5% 928 0.6% 146 693
Galileo 2 139 896 0.5% 591 0.4% 305 34.0%
Gardenia 1 172 683 0.3% 680 0.5% 3 0.4%
Other N.A N.A 1,126 0.6% 290 0.2% 836 4.2
Total / Average 394 26,939 198,759 100.0% 143,395 100.0% 55,364 27.9%
Write-down
adjustment N.A N.A N.A N.A 4,957 N.A (4,957) N.A
Results after
write-down
adjustment 394 26,939 198,759 100.0% 148,352 100.0% 50,407 25.4%
*) Revenue is recognized upon the transfer of sigmifiisks and rewards of the ownership of the ressiil unit to the buyer, i.e. upon
signing of the protocol of technical acceptance traltransfer of the key of the residential unitite buyer.
(**) Cost of sales allocated to the delivered units prtpnally to the expected total value of the pobje
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Business highlights during the year ended 31 Decemb2012 (cont'd)

B. Results breakdown by project (cont’d)

Gemini Il

The construction of th&emini Il project was completed in December 2012 Gemini Il projectvas developed on a
land strip of 4,703 flocated in the Ursynéw district in Warsaw (KEN Aw) situated next to the subway station
Imielin. The project is a continuation of Geminiwhich was completed in 2010. The Gemini Il projeomprises

2 eight and eleven-storey, multi-family residenkalldings with a total of 167 apartments and 1&awrcial units and
an aggregate floor space of 13,900 m

Verdis |

The construction of th&erdis | was completed in December 2012. The Vergiject was developed on a part of a
land strip of 16,300 flocated in the Wola district in Warsaw (Saskiego Street). The Verdis | project comprises
3 seven, eight and ten-storey, multi-family restdgrbuildings with a total of 128 apartments adidcbmmercial units
and an aggregate floor space of 9,460 m

Sakura |

The construction of the Sakura | project was coteplén May 2012. The Sakura | project was developed part of a
land strip of 21,000 mlocated in the Mokotéw district in Warsaw (Klobacktreet). The Sakura | project comprises
1 eleven-storey, multi-family residential buildingith a total of 99 apartments and 21 commerciaktsuaind an
aggregate floor space of 8,106.m

Impressio |

The construction of the Impressio | project was plated in June 2012. The Impressio | project waslbgped on a
part of a land strip of 14,500tocated in the Grabiszyn district in Wroctaw. Tingpressio | project comprises 3 four-
storey, multi-family residential buildings with atal of 70 apartments and an aggregate floor sphd@00 M.

Constans

The first, second and the third phases of the @amsshousing project were completed in July 2010/eltber 2010
and June 2011, respectively. This project was d@eel on part of a land strip of 36,377 lucated in Konstancin near
Warsaw. The first, second and the third phases@fConstans housing project comprise 8 semi-dedachis (total
16 units) with an aggregate floor space of 4,4?15semi-detached units (total 10 units) with agragate floor space
of 2,758 ni and 4 semi-detached units (total 8 units) wittaggregate floor space of 2,176, mespectively.

Naturalis | and Il

The construction of the Naturalis | and Il projeatsre completed in December 2012 and August 2@4sherctively.
The Naturalis | and Il projects were developed grag of a land strip of 31,800%focated in tomianki near Warsaw.
The Naturalis | and Il projects comprise 1 fourretg multi-family residential building with a totalf 52 apartments
and an aggregate floor space of 2,900 and 1 four-storey, multi-family residential buildj with a total of
60 apartments and an aggregate floor space of 30@spectively.

Imaginarium Il and Il

The construction of the Imaginarium Il and Il hings estate was completed in August 2009 and Noveraba1,
respectively. The Imaginarium Il and Il project svdeveloped on a land strip of 7,600 lncated in the Bielany
district in Warsaw (Gwizdzista Street).The Imaginarium Il and IIl housirsgjagée comprises 3 four-storey, multi-family
buildings with total 65 apartments with an aggregasable floor space of 4,700 and 2 four-storey, multi-family
buildings with total 45 apartments with an aggregaable floor space of 3,808, mespectively.

Panoramika |

The construction of the Panoramika | project wasgleted in October 2012. The Panoramika | projeas developed
on a part of a land strip of 30,30F hocated in Szczecin at dska Street. The Panoramika | project comprisesu® fo
and five-storey, multi-family residential buildingsith a total of 90 apartments and an aggregater fkpace of
5,300 .
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Business highlights during the year ended 31 Decemb2012 (cont'd)

B. Results breakdown by project (cont’d)

Chilli |
The construction of the Chilli | project was comtplé in July 2012.The Chilli | project was developada part of a

land strip of 39,604 mlocated in Tulce near Poznalhe Chilli | project comprises 30 units with aggaegate floor
space of 2,100

Nautica |

The construction of the Nautica | project was cated in June 2010. The Nautica | project was degezloon a land
strip of 9,698 M located in the Ursynéw district in Warsaw (Sthgkich Street). The project comprises 4 five-storey,
multi-family residential buildings with a total 4#8 apartments and 1 commercial unit and an agggréigar space of
10,648 M.

Nautica Il

The construction of the Nautica Il project was cteted in August 2011. The Nautica Il project wasealeped on a
land strip of 1,051 flocated in the Ursynéw district in Warsaw (Stigkich Street). The project comprises one semi-
detached unit and one house (in total 3 units) aitlaggregate floor space of 622 m

Galileo

The construction of the Galileo project was congdein March 2009. The Galileo project was developed land
strip of 8,598 rmlocated in the city centre district of Poan@he Galileo housing project comprises 5 six-stonaulti-

family r(raﬁsidential buildings with a total of 226 aapments and 6 commercial units with an aggredate space of
16,700 m.

Gardenia

The Gardenia project was completed in December 2046 project was developed on a land strip of ¥ fi2located
in Jozefostaw near Warsaw. The Gardenia projesingle family housing (houses in a row) projecimpoise 22 units
with an aggregate floor space of 3,683 m

Other
Other revenues and cost of sales are mainly asedavth sales of the parking places and storagesther projects
that were completed in previous years, as weleatat revenues.

Write-down adjustment

During the year ended 31 December 2012, as a rebilet Realizable Value (NRV) analyses and revieavsvrite-
down adjustment for the Constans project was madeei amount of PLN 4,957 thousand.
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Business highlights during the year ended 31 Decemb2012 (cont'd)

C. Units sold during the year

The table below presents information on the totadsusold (i.e. total number of units for which tBempany signed
the preliminary sale agreements with the cliemsjing the year ended 31 December 2012:

Units sold during

Units sold until the year ended Units for sale as at

Project name Location 31 December 2011 31 December 2012 31 December 2012 Total
Gemini 1) Warsaw 154 - 2 156
Galileo® Pozna 229 - 2 231
Imaginarium 1) Warsaw 64 1 - 65
Imaginarium 111 Warsaw 43 2 - 45
Constans” Warsaw 13 8 13 34
Sakura [? Warsaw 57 37 26 120
Impressio ) Wroctaw 22 26 22 70
Chilli 1 © Pozna 11 8 11 30
Naturalis 1I) Warsaw 16 11 33 60
Gemini 11) Warsaw 137 29 16 182
Naturalis I) Warsaw 13 7 32 52
Verdis 1) Warsaw 60 45 34 139
Panoramika {’ Szczecin 9 24 57 90
Naturalis 111 Warsaw - 14 46 60
Sakura I Warsaw - 47 89 136
Chilli 11 @ Pozna - 2 18 20
Espresso {” Warsaw 21 75 114 210
Verdis 11 Warsaw - 19 59 78
Miody Grunwald I Pozna - 25 123 148
Total 849 380 697 1,926
*) For information on the completed projects s&usiness highlights during the year ended 31 Deeer2®12 — B. Results breakdown by

project” (pages 17 to 19).
(**) For information on current projects under cansction, see “Outlook for 2013 — B. Current projgeinder construction” (pages 28 to 29).
D. Commencements of new projects

The table below presents information on the four peojects/stages for which the construction andales process
commenced during the year ended 31 December 2012:

Project name Location Number of units Area of units (nf)
Espresso Warsaw 210 9,500
Chilli 11 © Pozna 20 1,600
Miody Grunwald | ©) Pozna 148 8,500
Verdis 11 Warsaw 78 4,900
Total 456 24,500
*) For additional information see section “Outlodér 2013 — B. Current projects under constructidqpages 28 to 29).
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Business highlights during the year ended 31 Decemb2011 (cont'd)

E. Land purchase

In March 2012, the Group acquired a parcel of laitth an area of 2,600 ocated in Wroclaw, Krzyki District, at
Jutrzenki Street (“Land 2”). Land 2 is located tgaa plot of land with an area of 14,906 which the Group had
purchased in the past (“Land 1"). In combinatiomntd 1 and Land 2 shall allow the Group to build tifarhily
buildings that will comprise 300 units with an aggate floor space of 16,50G.m

In June 2012, the Group entered into preliminamcpase agreements with private individuals forpftland with an
area of 118,400 flocated in Warsaw, district Mokotéw at$d@inowa Street. Conclusion of the final purchase
agreements and transferring of the ownership optbeerties is expected to be finalized duringfttet half of 2014.
Itis assllﬁjﬁmed that the project planned on this ghall comprise nearly 650 units with the totalreggte floor space of
50,000 m.

In August 2012, the Group, through a joint venteméity (Ronson IS Sp. z 0.0. sp.sk.), in which@reup holds a 50%
interest, signed the final purchase agreement foloiof land with an area of 8,900°rtocated in Warsaw, district
Wola at Skierniewicka and Wolska Streets. It isuassd that the project planned in this plot shathpdse nearly 550
units with the total aggregate floor space of 2@,56.
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The net profit attributable to the equity holdefstloe parent company for the year ended 31 Decerdb&2 was
PLN 31,655 thousand and can be summarized as fallow

For year ended
31 December
2012 2011
PLN
(thousands, except per share data)

Revenue 198,759 96,674
Cost of sales (148,352) (73,986)
Gross profit 50,407 22,688
Changes in the value of investment property (970) -

Selling and marketing expenses (6,200) (5,058)
Administrative expenses (15,972) (15,161)
Other expense (1,953) (2,863)
Other income 967 1,218

Result from operating activities 26,279 824
Finance income 3,433 5,209
Finance expense (1,441) (602)

Net finance income 1,992 4,607
Profit before taxation 28,271 5,431
Income tax benefit 3,040 1,326
Net profit for the year before non-controlling interests 31,311 6,757
Non-controlling interests 344 69

Net profit for the year attributable to
the equity holders of the parent 31,655 6,826

Net earnings per share attributable to
the equity holders of the parent (basic and dilutey 0.116 0.025
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Overview of results (cont'd)

Revenue

Total revenue increased by PLN 102.1 million (1@8)6rom PLN 96.7 million during the year ended 3&c@mber
2011 to PLN 198.8 million during the year ended3dcember 2012, which increase is primarily expldibg an
increase in apartments delivered to the custometerins of area size (infnas well as a slight increase in the average
selling price per f

Costof sales

Cost of sales increased by PLN 74.4 million (100.5%m PLN 74.0 million during the year ended 31cBmber 2011

to PLN 148.4 million during the year ended 31 Delben2012, which increase is primarily explainedabyincrease in
apartments delivered to the customers in termsezf size (in if), as well as a slight decrease in the averagedosa

of sales per f Cost of sales was furthermore impacted by théevdtown adjustment on the Constans project, which
was recognized during the year ended 31 Decemtg. 20

Gross margin

The gross margin during the year ended 31 DecebE2 was 25.4% compared to the gross margin dahegyear
ended 31 December 2011 of 23.5%. The increaseoBsgnargin is explained by more favorable (morditatde) mix
of projects delivered to customers by the Compamynd 2012, which on average enjoyed an increaskeraverage
selling price per m(around 200 PLN per fas well as decrease in the average total cosales per M(around 150
PLN per nf). The increase in the gross profit was offset ant fpy the impact of the write-down adjustment ba t
Constans project, which was recognized during #a gnded 31 December 2012.

Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses increased by PLNniillon (22.6%) from PLN 5.1 million for the yeanded
31 December 2011 to PLN 6.2 million for the yeadeth 31 December 2012. The increase of expensextsethe
changing market dynamics, which demand that deeetopndertake a more proactive sales and markeffog in a
more competitive environment.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by PLN 0.8 mmil(i5.3%) from PLN 15.2 million for the year endetl Becember
2011 to PLN 16.0 million for the year ended 31 Deber 2012. The increase is primarily explained byrerease in
the Management Board bonus by PLN 1 million whigkalculated in proportion to the profit before.tax

Other expenses

Other expenses decreased by PLN 0.9 million (31886 PLN 2.9 million for the year ended 31 Decemb@l1l to
PLN 2.0 million for the year ended 31 December 204&Rich is primarily explained by a decrease inenge for
contractual penalties and compensation, civil @gtitaxes on contributions expenses and impairnmaitrade
receivables. The decrease is offset in part bg@ease in cost of repairs and defects.

Other income

Other income decreased by PLN 0.2 million (20.6%6f PLN 1.2 million for the year ended 31 Decembetl to
PLN 1.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2048ich is primarily explained by a decrease inerayes from
contractual penalties and compensation.

Result from operating activities

As a result of the factors described above, the g2my's operating result increased by PLN 25.5 aiillifrom an
operating profit of PLN 0.8 million for the yearasd 31 December 2011 to an operating profit of RBN8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2012.
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Net finance income

Finance income and expenses are accrued and tagutals part of the cost price of inventory to éxgent this is
directly attributable to the construction of resital units. Unallocated finance income and expsmns# capitalized
are recognized in the statement of comprehensoane.

The table below shows the finance income and exgsebgfore capitalization into inventory and thealtdinance
income and expenses capitalized into inventory.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
PLN (thousands)

Total Amount Recognized as
amount capitalized profit or loss
Finance income 3,626 (293) 3,433
Finance expense (19,971) 18,530 (1,441)
Net finance (expense)/income (16,345) 18,337 1,992

For the year ended 31 December 2011
PLN (thousands)

Total Amount Recognized as
amount capitalized profit or loss
Finance income 5,375 (166) 5,209
Finance expense (17,450) 16,848 (602)
Net finance (expense)/income (12,075) 16,682 4,607

Net finance expenses before capitalization incibdsePLN 4.3 million (35.4%) from PLN 12.1 millioduring the
year ended 31 December 2011 to PLN 16.4 millionnduthe year ended 31 December 2012, which wasutref an
increase in finance expense due to an increasmirsland borrowing that related mainly to the issaaf the bonds
during April 2011, as well as a decrease in finammme due to a decrease in short-term deposits txe the
Company in bank accounts.

Income tax benefit/(expense)

During the year ended 31 December 2012 the Graaljzee a tax benefit of PLN 3.0 million, in comfsan to a tax
benefit of PLN 1.3 million for the year ended 3&dember 2011. The tax benefit during financial yeamded 31
December 2012 and 31 December 2011 is explaingtiebyecognition of tax assets. The recognitiorheftax assets
took place after an organizational restructuringhef Group, which allowed the Company to utilizet@ia tax losses
that in prior periods were deemed not to be usable.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests comprise the share ofarity shareholders in profit and losses from sdilbsies that are not
100% owned by the Company and amounted to PLN Bddsand (positive) for the year ended 31 Decemb&R 2s
compared to PLN 69 thousand (positive) for the yaated 31 December 2011.
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Exchange rate of Euro versus the Polish Zloty

Average Minimum Maximum Year end
PLN/EUR exchange rate exchange rate exchange rate exchange rate
2012 (12 months) 4.185 4.047 4.514 4.088
2011 (12 months) 4.120 3.840 4.564 4.417
Source: National Bank of Poland (‘NBP’)
Selected financial data EUR PLN

(thousands, except per share data and number of stes)
For year ended 31 December or as at 31 December

2012 2011 2012 2011
Revenues 47,493 23,465 198,759 96,674
Gross profit 12,045 5,507 50,407 22,688
Profit before taxation 6,755 1,318 28,271 5,431
Net profit for the year attributable to
the equity holders of the parent 7,564 1,657 31,655 6,826
Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities (8,657) (3,616) (36,231) (14,897)
Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities (1,872) (2,195) (7,833) (9,044)
Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities (1,345) 5,746 (5,630) 23,675
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (11,874) (65) (49,694) (266)
Inventory 163,425 142,929 668,080 631,317
Total assets 192,397 173,412 786,519 765,961
Advances received 16,754 19,785 68,492 87,391
Long term liabilities 37,409 27,246 152,927 120,345
Short term liabilities (including advances received 42,521 49,164 173,824 217,159
Equity attributable to the equity holders of thequa 111,511 96,039 455,858 424,203
Share capital 5,054 5,054 20,762 20,762
Average number of equivalent shares (basic) 272,360,000 272,360,000 272,360,000 272,360,000
Net earnings per share (basic and diluted) 0.0277 0.006 0.116 0.025

* Information is presented in EUR solely for pretsgion purposes. Due to the significant fluctuatafrthe Polish Zloty against the Euro over the
past years, the Statement of Financial Positioradid not accurately reflect the actual comparativencial position of the Company. The
reader should consider changes in the PLN / EURa&xge rate in 2012 comparing to 2011, when reviguwliis data.

Selected financial data were translated from Phté iEUR in the following way:

(i) Statement of financial position data were skated using the period end exchange rate publighethe National Bank of Poland for the
last day of the period.

(ii) Statement of comprehensive income and casisftlata were translated using the arithmeticalrage of average exchange rates published
by the National Bank of Poland.
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Liquidity and capital resources

The Company funds its day-to-day operations pradbjpfrom cash flows provided by its sales actidtias well as
from borrowings under several loan facilities, irdihg bonds. The net cash inflow from operatingvéets and from
financing activities, as described below, has erthithe Company not only to proceed with the develnt of its
residential projects and purchasing new plots nfl$abut also to redeem its loans from related gmignificantly
during the year ended 31 December 2011 whilst atsdme time maintaining sufficient liquidity fos itay-to-day
operations.

Cash flow used in operating activities

The Company’s net cash outflow used in operatintivities for the year ended 31 December 2012 amexlinod
PLN 36.2 million which compares to a net cash owiflised in operating activities during the yeareshd1 December
2011 of PLN 14.9 million. The increase in cash lowtfis principally explained by:

- a net cash outflow during the year ended 31 Dece@®d#2 from advances received from clients regardin
sales of residential units in the amount of PLN.B7fillion, which were more than offset by revenue
recognized for a total amount of PLN 198.2 millioompared to a net cash inflow during the year ended
31 December 2011 from advances received in the angdPLN 139.7 million, which were only partly e#t
by revenue recognized for a total amount of PLN 96illion;

- anet cash outflow used in trade and other reckdsadnd prepayments amounting to PLN 18.3 milliarirgy
the year ended 31 December 2012 compared to aasét ioflow from trade and other receivables and
prepayments amounting to PLN 1.4 million during ylear ended 31 December 2011. The increase is ynainl
explained by the advance payment for a land puec(st at J&minowa Street in Warsaw).

This above effects were offset in part by the rasshcoutflow used in inventory, which decreasedLltd P3.7 million
during the year ended 31 December 2012 from a ash outflow to PLN 57.8 million during the year edd
31 December 2011. The decrease is mainly expldgesh increase in cost of sale recognized dueldaogar number
of units delivered to clients. On the other haheé,decrease is offset in part by an increase imtingber and volume of
projects under construction as well as the increpskpenses for purchase of new land (which dutiegyear ended
31 December 2012 include plots at Skierniewickaedtm Warsaw and at Jutrzenki Street in Wroctaw).

Notwithstanding to the above, total cash outflowgarchasing new plots of land (including prepaytagamounted to
PLN 37.0 million during 2012 in comparison to PLKL.& million during 2011.

Cash flow used in investing activities

The Company’s net cash outflow used in investintiviéies amounted to PLN 7.9 million during the yeanded
31 December 2012 which compares to a net cashoautibed in investing activities amounting to PLN) @nillion
during the year ended 31 December 2011.

Cash flow used in financing activities

The Company’s net cash outflow used in financingvidies totalled PLN 5.6 million during the yeamded
31 December 2012 compared to a net cash inflovlit@ga@LN 23.7 million in the year ended 31 DecemB@11. The
decrease is primarily due to:

- the proceeds from the bonds issued during the greded 31 December 2011 amounting to PLN 85.7 millio
(net of costs) whereas during the year ended 3&ibker 2012 no bonds were issued, and

- arepayment of secured bank loans amounting to £&H million during the year ended 31 December 2012
compared to a repayment of secured bank loans amnguto PLN 8.2 million during the year ended
31 December 2011.

The above effect was offset in part by the repayménelated parties loans amounting to PLN 52.8iani during the
year ended 31 December 2011 compared to nil deh@gear ended 31 December 2012, as well as theegds from
new bank loans amounting to PLN 2.0 million durthg year ended 31 December 2011 compared to PLINm3@lion

during the year ended 31 December 2012.
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Financial condition (cont'd)

Debt and net debt position

As of 31 December 2012, the Company’s total delftaioks, bonds and third parties amounted to PLN&Gillion
(31 December 2011: PLN 211.3 million). Taking irtccount the Company’s available cash position a@b&tember
2012 amounting to PLN 44.9 million (31 December PORLN 94.6 million), the net debt position of tB@mpany
amounted to PLN 162.6 million as at 31 Decembe?2@1 December 2011: PLN 116.7 million).

Employees

The average number of personnel employed by thep@oynand its subsidiaries — on a fulltime equivalessis —
increased from 55 in 2011 to 60 in 2012. The inkeem the number of employees resulted from the [g2myis
growing activities.

Research and development

The Company and its subsidiaries are not involneahly research and development activities.

Environmental protection

The Company, in conducting its business activitieglertakes to comply with all laws and regulatioegarding use of
land and protection of the natural environment. Tmnpany is not a party to any pending proceedmegsrding
potential environmental protection violations.

Quarterly reporting by the Company

As a result of requirements (indirectly) pertainind.T.R. Dori B.V., one of the Company’s largéiaseholders, whose
ultimate parent company is listed on the Tel Avisck exchange, the first quarter reports, semi-ahneports and
third quarter reports are subject to a full scopdaw by the Company’s auditors. For the Compasglfit being
domiciled in the Netherlands and listed on the \Marstock exchange, only the semi-annual reportligest to an
audit review. The Company has agreed with the akénparent company of I.T.R. Dori B.V. that thetsder the first
and third quarter audit review will be fully reimised to the Company. The additional audit revieavtetl as of the
third quarter ended 30 September 2012. The Compansiders having its first and third quarter regodvided with
an audit report a benefit to all of its sharehadder
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A. Completed projects

The table below presents information on the taeaidential units in the completed projects/stapes the Company
expects to sell and deliver:
Number of residential units expected to

Number of residential units delivered (*) be delivered (*)
During the Not sold as  Total units
Until 31 period ended Total Sold until 31 at 31 expected
December 31 December units December  December to be Total
Project name Location 2011 2012 delivered 2012 2012 delivered project
Gemini 11t Warsaw - 106 106 60 16 76 182
Verdis 1 Warsaw - 67 67 38 34 72 139
Panoramika {” Szczecin - 23 23 10 57 67 90
Naturalis I Warsaw - 7 7 13 32 45 52
Naturalis 11 Warsaw - 26 26 1 33 34 60
Sakura [ Warsaw - 86 86 8 26 34 120
Impressio [ Wroctaw - 43 43 5 22 27 70
Chilli 1 @ Pozna - 14 14 5 11 16 30
Constans” Warsaw 12 7 19 2 13 15 34
Total 12 379 391 142 244 386 777
® For the purpose of disclosing information relatiedthe particular projects, the word “sell” (“sold) is used, that relates to signing the

preliminary sale agreement with the client for teale of the apartment; whereas the word “deliveftdlivered”) relates to the
transferring of significant risks and rewards oétbwnership of the residential unit to the client.

e For information on the completed projects see “Bess highlights during the year ended 31 Decembg? 2 B. Results breakdown by
project” (pages 17 to 19).

B. Current projects under construction

The table below presents information on projectsabich completion is scheduled in 2013 and 201# Tompany
has obtained construction permits for all projestégfes and has commenced construction.

Expected

Total area of Total Units sold until 31 completion of
Project name Location units (m?) units December 2012 construction
Naturalis 11l Warsaw 3,400 60 14 2013
Sakura Il Warsaw 8,300 136 47 2013
Chilli 1l Poznaa 1,600 20 2 2013
Verdis Il Warsaw 4,900 78 19 2013
Espresso | Warsaw 9,500 210 96 2014
Mtody Grunwald | Pozna 8,500 148 25 2014
Total 36,200 652 203
Naturalis IlI

Description of project

The Naturalis 11l project is being developed onaatmf a land strip of 31,8007 tocated in tomianki near Warsaw and
is a continuation of Naturalis | and Il, which wesempleted during 2012. The Naturalis Il projedtl womprise 1
four-storey, multi-family residential building with total of 60 apartments and an aggregate floacespf 3,400 f In
total, the Naturalis project shall comprise appndely 490 units with a total estimated flat usatriea of 30,200

Stage of development
The construction of the Naturalis Il project commed in December 2011, while completion is expenidtie second
quarter of 2013.
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B. Current projects under construction (cont’d)

Sakura I
Description of project

The second phase of the Sakura project is beingloleed on a part of a land strip of 21,008 lotated in the
Mokotéw district in Warsaw (Klobucka Street) andaisontinuation of Sakura I, which was completed/ey 2012.
The second phase of this project will comprise\vieseand eleven-storey, multi-family residentialltuig with a total
of 136 apartments and an aggregate floor space86081. In total, the Sakura project shall comprise atb&ih4 units
with a total estimated flat usable area of 30,860 m

Stage of development

The construction of the Sakura Il project commenite@®ctober 2011, while completion is expected e second
quarter of 2013.

Verdis Il
Description of project

The second phase of the Verdis project is beingldped on a part of a land strip of 16,308latated in the Wola
district in Warsaw (Sowiskiego Street). The second phase of this projelttcamprise 2 seven-storey, multi-family
residential buildings with a total of 78 apartmeats! an aggregate floor space of 4,9G0Imtotal, the Verdis project
shall comprise around 442 units with a total estémdlat usable area of 26,006.m

Stage of development

The construction of the Verdis Il project commengedugust 2012, while completion is expected ia fourth quarter
of 2013.

Chilli Il
Description of project

The second phase of the Chilli project is beingeitgyed on a part of a land strip of 39,60%latated in Tulce near
Pozna, and is a continuation of Chilli I, which was cdeted in July 2012. The second phase of this ptojéi¢
comprise 20 units with an aggregate floor spack &0 ni. In total, the Chilli project shall comprise arau®74 units
with a total estimated usable area of 17,860 m

Stage of development

The construction of the Chilli Il project commendedMay 2012, while completion is expected in thed quarter of
2013.

Espresso |
Description of project

The first phase of the Espresso project is beinvgldped on a part of a land strip of 16,192lotated in Warszawa at
Jana Kazimierza Street. The first phase of thigeptawill comprise 1 seven, eight, nine and tenestp multi-family
residential building with a total of 202 apartmeats! 8 commercial units and an aggregate flooresp&®,500 rfi In
total, the Espresso project shall comprise aroutiduhits with a total estimated usable area of B3t &.

Stage of development

The construction of the Espresso | project commemeéMarch 2012, while completion is expected ia fiist quarter
of 2014.

Mtody Grunwald |
Description of project

The first phase of the Miody Grunwaftfoject is being developed on a part of a lanc sifi 15,449m? located in
Pozna at Jeleniogérska Street. The first phase of thigept will comprise 3 six-storey, multi-family riegntial
buildings with a total of 136 apartments and 12 c@rtial units and an aggregate floor space of 8(600n total, the
Mtody Grunwald project shall comprise around 428swith a total estimated usable area of 25,060 m

Stage of development

The construction of the Mtody Grunwald | projechomenced in September 2012, while completion is ebgokin the
second quarter of 2014.
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C. Projects for which construction work is plannéd commence during 2013

As the Company is aware of increasing competitiothe market, the Company has been careful to neattegnumber
of new projects and the makeup of such projectgder to best satisfy consumer demand. During 28E3Company
is considering the commencement of development rthar five stages of currently run projects andeehnew
projects, which management believes are well sudezlirrent customer requirements, including smalfgartments at
more economical prices. Furthermore, in order toimize market risk, the Company’s management breaken the
new projects into relatively smaller stages. In thent of any market deterioration or difficulti@sth securing
financing by the banks for the considered projet@snagement may further delay some of those plans.

a) New Projects

Magellan

The Magellan project will be developed on a lamipsvf 12,150 A located in Warsaw at Magazynowa Street. The
project will comprise 381 units with an aggregdt®f space of 23,100 fand will be divided into 2 or more phases.
The first stage is to comprise 176 units with agragate floor space of 11,000%.nThe Company is considering
commencing construction of the first phase of grigect during 2013.

Tamka

The Tamka project will be developed on a land sfif2,515 M located in Warsaw city centre at Tamka Street. The
project will comprise around 64 units with an aggre floor space of 5,600°mThe Company is considering
commencing construction of the project before tie @ 2013.

Copernicus

The Copernicus project will be developed on a lsimgh of 5,605 rlocated in Poznaat Kaicielna Street. The project
will comprise 320 units with an aggregate floor apaf 15,400 m The first stage is to comprise 182 units with an
aggregate floor space of 8,600.rithe Company is considering commencing constroctibthe first phase of this
project during 2013.

b) New stages of running projects

Sakura lll

The Sakura Il project is a continuation of Sakuirand Il projects. The project will comprise 145itanwith an
aggregate floor space of 7,400.fihe Company is considering commencing constroatfcthis project during 2013.

Verdis Il

The Verdis Il project is a continuation of Verdisind 1l. The project will comprise 78 units witih aggregate floor
space of 4,000 inThe Company is considering commencing constraaifcthis project during 2013.

Espresso I

The Espresso Il project is continuation of Esprds3die project will comprise 152 units with an agggate floor space
of 7,700 M. The Company is considering commencing constraaifcthis project during 2013.

Impressio Il

The Impressio Il project is continuation of Impriest The project will comprise 147 units with aggaegate floor
space of 8,100 imThe Company is considering commencing constraaifcthis project during 2013.

Panoramika Il

The Panoramika Il project is continuation of Panuka |. The project will comprise 61 units with aggregate floor
space of 4,200 mThe Company is considering commencing constroaiicthis project during 2013.

30



Ronson Europe N.V.
Directors’ Report

Outlook for 2013 (cont'd)

D. Value of the preliminary sales agreements signeith clients for which revenue has not
been recognized in the Consolidated Statement ofm@rehensive Income as at
31 December 2012

The current volume and value of the preliminaryesagreements signed with the clients do not imipecBtatement
of Comprehensive Income account immediately buy affter final settlement of the contracts with thestomers (for
more details see under “A — Projects completed’vabon page 28). The table below presents the vafuthe
preliminary sales agreements executed with the @orip clients in particular for units that have been recognized
in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensivenhaco

Value of the preliminary sales

agreements signed with clients in Completed / expected
Project name Location thousands of PLN completion of construction
Gemini 11©) Warsaw 35,823 Completed
Verdis 1 Warsaw 19,520 Completed
Sakura [? Warsaw 4,270 Completed
Naturalis 1 Warsaw 3,644 Completed
Panoramika { Szczecin 2,858 Completed
Constang’ Warsaw 2,034 Completed
Impressio ) Wroctaw 1,559 Completed
Chilli 1 © Pozna 1,398 Completed
Naturalis 11 Warsaw 357 Completed
Gemini 1) Warsaw 72 Completed
Subtotal completed projects 71,435
Sakura 11" Warsaw 17,591 2013
Verdis 11" Warsaw 7,473 2013
Naturalis 111 Warsaw 3,567 2013
Chilli 11 Warsaw 620 2013
Espresso {” Warsaw 26,031 2014
Miody Grunwald I Pozna 6,403 2014
Subtotal projects under construction 61,685
Total 133,120

® For information on the completed projects seesBass highlights during the year ended 31 Decer2b&® — B. Results breakdown by
project” (pages 17 to 19).

™ For information on current projects under constioat, see “Outlook for 2013 — B. Current projectsden construction” (pages 28 to 29).

E. Main risks and uncertainties during 2013

The economic situation in Europe and in Poland #iedongoing uncertainties in the housing market enak/ery
difficult to predict results for 2013. The level dévelopment of the Polish economy, the performaridbe banking
industry and consumers’ interest in new housingjeats, as well as increasing competition in the kearare
considered to be the most significant uncertairfoeshe financial year ending 31 December 2013.
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Major shareholders
To the best of the Company’s knowledge, as of thiee @f publication of this annual report (5 Mardbl3), the

following shareholders are entitled to exerciserd®f of the voting rights at the General Meetingsbfreholders in
the Company:

As of
5 March 2013 As of As of
Number of Change in 31 December 2012 Change in 31 December 2011
shares / number of Number of shares / number Number of shares /
% of shares shares % of shares of shares % of shares
Shares issued 272,360,000 - 272,360,000 - B0
Major shareholders:
X 87,449,187 - 87,449,187 87,449,187
I.T.R. 2012 B.V" 32.1% 32.1% i
T.R. Dori B.V.© 87,449,187 - 87,449,187 (87,449,187) 174,888,3
32.1% 32.1% 64.2%
GE Real Estate CE 41,800,000 - 41,800,000 - 41,800,000
Residential B.V. 15.3% 15.3% 15.3%
Amplico Otwarty Fundusz N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Emerytalny Between 5%-10%. Between 5%-10%. Between 5%:10
ING Otwarty Fundusz N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Emerytalny Between 5%-10%. Between 5%-10%. Between 5%:10

® In December 2012, I.T.R. 2012 B.V. and I.T.R. DBV. entered into a partnership, the ITRD Parthigrswhich holds the voting rights attached
to 174,898,374 shares in the Company represendir®y@of the total number of shares in the Compasych voting rights were previously held by
I.T.R. Dori B.V.

Changes in ownership of shares and rights to shabgsManagement Board members in the year ended

31 December 2012 and until the date of publicatiointhe report

Shares

The following members of the Management Board olares in the Company:

- Mr Ronen Ashkenazi as at 31 December 2012 and #seaday of publishing this report indirectly hédd%
interest in the Company.

- Mr Israel Greidinger, as at 31 December 2012 arat #ise day of publishing this report, indirectigidh 706% of
the shares and50% of the voting rights in the Company.

Changes in ownership of shares and rights to shal®s Supervisory Board members in the year ended
31 December 2012 and until the date of publicatiointhe report

The members of the Supervisory Board did not imtliglly own any shares and/or rights to shares énGbmpany
during the period from 1 January 2012 until 5 Ma21.3.

Changes in the Management Board in the year endddicember 2012 and until the date of publication
of the report

Karol Pilniewicz stepped down as managing direBteffective on the day of 31 October 2012.

Changes in the Supervisory Board in the year endddDecember 2012 and until the date of publication
of the report

None
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Indemnity for Management Board members and SupeovisBoard members

The Articles of Association of the Company provide an indemnification for all directors of the Cpany (article
42). The members of the Supervisory Board and Mamagt Board shall be reimbursed for (i) all reabtmaosts of
conducting a defence against claims based on adtslures to act in the exercise of their duti@g,any damages or
fines payable by them as a result of an act ourito act in the exercise of their duties, andl (@asonable costs of
appearing in other legal proceedings in which they involved as current or former directors of @@mpany. No
indemnification will be given to any director if itas been determined by a judgment which is noeibsgbject to
appeal, that the act or failure to act is charadras wilful misconduct or gross negligence. Re&ms to award the
indemnification in a specific case are to be disetbin the Annual Accounts of the Company. Adoptibthe Annual
Accounts will be considered to be approval of ste$plutions, unless the General Meeting of Shadshsldecides
otherwise.

Overview of the results during the three months edd31 December 2012

The Company’s net income for the three months erledecember 2012 was PLN 31,356 thousand and ean b
summarized as follows:

For the three months ended 31 December 2012 2011
Unaudited Unaudited
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) ( ) ( )
Revenue 125,319 35,412
Cost of sales (86,854) (23,799)
Gross profit 38,465 11,613
Changes in the value of investment property (970)
Selling and marketing expenses (1,758) (1,408)
Administrative expenses (5,305) (4,600)
Other expenses (1,021) (1,496)
Other income 38 266
Result from operating activities 29,449 4,375
Finance income 594 1,346
Finance expense (543) (158)
Net finance income 51 1,188
Profit before taxation 29,500 5,563
Income tax benefit 1,781 311
Profit for the period before non-controlling interests 31,281 5,874
Non-controlling interests 75 37
Net profit for the period attributable to
the equity holders of the parent 31,356 5,911
Other

As of 31 December 2012, the Company has issuecagtess for bank loans granted to subsidiaries atimguto
a total of PLN 32,719 thousand.

As of 31 December 2012, the Group had no litigatitaims or liabilities that in total exceed 10%tbe Group’s
equity.

The following net movements in the Group’s mainysmns took place during the year ended 31 Dece@d&2:

- an increase in the provision for deferred tax liiés of PLN 5,221 thousand (an increase of PLIS ibusand
during the year ended 31 December 2011).
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Statement relating to the system of internal coritro

In line with best practice provision I1.1.4 of tHautch Code and bearing in mind the recommendatmnghe
Monitoring Committee Corporate Governance Code,Gbenpany issues a declaration about the effectasené the
system of internal control of the processes on kvttie financial reporting is based.

In 2012, the Management Board assessed the eHeethe of the system of internal controls for fin@aneporting.

During the investigation on which this assessmeat based, no shortcomings were identified that ngghsibly have
a material impact on the financial reporting. Oa trasis of the results of the above assessmerthanisk analyses
that were carried out at the Company within thenavork of governance and compliance, the ManageBeatd is

of the opinion - after consulting with the Audit @mittee and with the approval of the Supervisoramlo- that the
system of internal controls provides a reasonaldgreb of certainty that the financial reporting tedms no

inaccuracies of material importance. An inhereatrednt in how people and organizations work togethardynamic
world is that systems of internal control cannabvie an absolute degree (though they can provideasonable
degree) of certainty as regards the preventionateral inaccuracies in the financial reporting dinel prevention of
losses and fraud.

In our view the system of internal controls, foalisa the financial reporting, functioned effectivelver the past year.
There are no indications that the system of inferaatrols will not function effectively in 2013.

Directors Representation statement

In conjunction with the EU Transparency Directive iacorporated in Chapter 5.3 of the Dutch Findnklarkets

Supervision Act\et op het financieel toezi¢hhe Management Board therefore confirms to thet beits knowledge

that:

- the Annual Financial Statements for the year en8ikdDecember 2012 give a true and fair view of theets,
liabilities, financial position and profits and ®ef the Company and its subsidiaries,

- the additional management information disclosethénAnnual Report gives a true and fair view of @@mpany and
its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 and tke affairs during the financial year to which tleport relates, and

- the annual report describes the principal risknfigdhe Company. These are described in detail ign Director’'s
Report.

Representation concerning election of the Compangigitor

The Management Board confirms that the Companytitauhas been elected according to applicablesraled the
audit firm and its registered accountants engagdtie audit of the financial statements of Ronsaroge N.V. meet
the objectives to present an objective and indepeinceport, the agreement with the auditors wasesigon 16 July
2012. For information about agreed-upon engagentdritee Company’s auditor see note 15 of the Compamancial
Statements.

Financial risk management, objectives and policies

For information on the financial risk managemertjectives and policies see note 36 of the Cons@dl&inancial
Statements.

The Management Board

Shraga Weisman Tomasz tafiski Andrzej Gutowski
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer algs and Marketing Director
Israel Greidinger Ronen Ashkenazi

Rotterdam, 5 March 2013
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To: The Annual General Meeting of Shareholdersafigon Europe N.V.

Independent auditor’s report

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statési2012 of Ronson Europe N.V., Rotterdam as seboytages
37 to 101. The financial statements include thesobdated financial statements and the companwy{isd statements.
The consolidated financial statements comprisedmsolidated statement of financial position a3labecember
2012, the consolidated statements of compreheisieene, changes in equity and cash flows for treg yleen ended,
and notes, comprising a summary of the signifieexabunting policies and other explanatory inforomtil he
company financial statements comprise the compatanbe sheet as at 31 December 2012, the compafitygmd
loss account for the year then ended and the noegprising a summary of the accounting policies atter
explanatory information.

Management's responsibility

Management is responsible for the preparation aidpfesentation of these financial statementscooadance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as tatbpy the European Union and with Part 9 of BoaK the Dutch
Civil Code, and for the preparation of the Direstdvoard report in accordance with Part 9 of Boo#af 2he Dutch
Civil Code. Furthermore management is responsiniatdch internal control as it determines is neags® enable the
preparation of the financial statements that are from material misstatement, whether due to faustror.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hfisancial statements based on our audit. We adadwur audit in
accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch 8tds on Auditing. This requires that we complyhwéthical
requirements and plan and perform the audit toiolbemsonable assurance about whether the finasteiE@ments are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtailiaevidence about the amounts and disclosuréerfinancial
statements. The procedures selected depend onditers judgment, including the assessment ofigles of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whetbertd fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor derssiinternal control relevant to the entity’s @egion and fair

presentation of the financial statements in ordetesign audit procedures that are appropriateditircumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion orefffectiveness of the entity's internal control. &uidit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting dicised and the reasonableness of accounting estimade by

management, as well as evaluating the overall ptaien of the financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaiseslifficient and appropriate to provide a basis dur audit
opinion.

Opinion with respect to the consolidated financiaktatements

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaegive a true and fair view of the financial pmsit of Ronson
Europe N.V. as at 31 December 2012 its result amdcash flows for the year then ended in accordamitie
International Financial Reporting Standards as ttbpy the European Union and with Part 9 of BoaK the Dutch
Civil Code.

Opinion with respect to the company financial statments

In our opinion, the company financial statemente&d true and fair view of the financial positiohRonson Europe
N.V. as at 31 December 2012 and of its resultierytear then ended in accordance with Part 9 okRoaf the Dutch
Civil Code.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Pursuant to the legal requirement under Sectio8®s8ib 5 at e and f of the Dutch Civil Code, weehaw deficiencies
to report as a result of our examination whetherDirector’s report, to the extent we can assess bleen prepared in
accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of this Code, whdther the information as required under Secti@82sub 1 at b-
h has been annexed. Further we report that the geament board report, to the extent we can assessnsistent with
the financial statements as required by Sectio@2s2ib 4 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Amsterdam, 5 March 2013

Ernst & Young Accountants LLP

Signed by J.H. de Prie
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Ronson Europe N.V.

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Revenue 7 198,759 96,674
Cost of sales 8 (148,352) (73,986)
Gross profit 50,407 22,688
Changes in the value of investment property 17 (970) -
Selling and marketing expenses 9 (6,200) (5,058)
Administrative expenses 10 (15,972) (15,161)
Other expenses 12 (1,953) (2,863)
Other income 13 967 1,218
Result from operating activities 26,279 824
Finance income 14 3,433 5,209
Finance expense 14 (1,441) (602)
Net finance income 1,992 4,607
Profit before taxation 28,271 5,431
Income tax benefit 15 3,040 1,326
Profit for the year 31,311 6,757
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of takefore

attributable 31,311 6,757
Total comprehensive income attributable to:

equity holders of the parent 31,655 6,826
non-controlling interests (344) (69)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 31,311 6,757
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basidduted) 28 272,360,000 272,360,000
In Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Net earnings per share attributable to

the equity holders of the parent (basic and dilutejl 28 0.116 0.025

The notes on pages 42 t090 are an integral patthede consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Assets

Non-current assets

Property and equipment 16 8,660 8,949
Investment property 17 8,279 9,249
Loans granted to third parties 18 1,043 928
Loans granted to related parties 19 7,704 -
Deferred tax assets 20 11,798 5,843
Total non-current assets 37,484 24,969

Current assets

Inventory 21 668,080 631,317
Trade and other receivables and prepayments 22 30,661 12,354
Income tax receivable 2,422 187
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized 24 2,944 2,512
Cash and cash equivalents 25 44,928 94,622
Total current assets 749,035 740,992
Total assets 786,519 765,961

The notes on pages 42 to 90 are an integral plttt@se consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (cond)

As at 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Shareholders’ equity

Share capital 20,762 20,762
Share premium 282,873 282,873
Retained earnings 152,223 120,568
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 26 455,858 424,203
Non-controlling interests 27 3,910 4,254
Total equity 459,768 428,457
Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Floating rate bond loans 29 86,756 86,180
Secured bank loans 29 39,893 21,746
Loans from third parties 29 13,932 5,726
Other payables 816 384
Deferred tax liability 20 11,530 6,309
Total non-current liabilities 152,927 120,345

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables and accrued expenses 30 38,090 31,832
Floating rate bond loans 29 1,657 1,667
Secured bank loans 29 65,319 95,965
Advances received 31 68,492 87,391
Income tax payable 35 43
Provisions 32 231 261
Total current liabilities 173,824 217,159
Total liabilities 326,751 337,504
Total equity and liabilities 786,519 765,961

The notes on pages 42 to 90 are an integral patti@se consolidated financial statements.
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Ronson Europe N.V.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31 Decemb@11:

Attributable to the
Equity holders of parent

Non-

Share Share Retained - Total
. - - Total controlling —=
capital premium earnings interests equity
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) —_—
Balance at 1 January 2011 20,762 282,873 113,742 7817 - 417,377
Non-controlling interest arising on acquisition of
newly consolidated subsidiary (see note 27) - - - - 4,323 4,323
Comprehensive income:
Profit for the year ended 31 December 2011 - - ®,82 6,826 (69) 6,757
Other comprehensive income - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - 6,826 6,826 (69) 6,757
Balance at 31 December 2011 20,762 282,873 120,568424,203 4,254 428,457
Comprehensive income:
Profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 - - 5H.6 31,655 (344) 31,311
Other comprehensive income - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - 31,655 31,655 (344) 31,311
Balance at 31 December 2012 20,762 282,873 152,223455,858 3,910 459,768

The notes on pages 42 to 90 are an integral patti@$e consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities

Profit for the period 31,311 6,757
Adjustments to reconcile profit for the period to neash used in operating activities

Depreciation 10,16 745 622
Decrease in the value of investment property 17 970 -

Finance expense 14 1,441 602
Finance income 14 (3,433) (5,209)
Profit on sale of property and equipment 13 a77) (18)

Write-down of inventory 21 4,957 -

Income tax benefit 15 (3,040) (1,326)
Subtotal 32,774 1,428
Decrease/(increase) in inventory 38 (23,749) (57,831)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivabléprepayments 38 (18,307) 1,353
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payableacmded expenses 38 6,690 12,951
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 32 (30) (6,119)
Increase/(decrease) in advances received (18,899) 43,044
Subtotal (21,521) (5,174)
Interest paid (18,068) (14,628)
Interest received 3,295 4,581
Income tax received/(paid) 63 324

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities (36,231) (14,897)
Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities

Acquisition of property and equipment 16 (692) (1,202)
Acquisition of / additions to investment property 17 - (509)

Investment in other current financial assets 23 - (39,452)

Proceeds from sales of other current financialtasse 23 - 40,002

Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired 5 - (1,341)

Short-term bank deposits — collateralized (432) (927)

Loans granted to related parties (7,488) -

Loans granted to third parties - (5,635)

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 779 20

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities (7,833) (9,044)
Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities

Proceeds from bank loans 36,750 1,946
Bank charges (1,426) (631)
Proceeds from bond loans, net of issue costs - 85,775

Repayment of loans received from third parties - (2,317)

Loans received from third parties 7,488 -

Repayment of loans received from related parties - (52,948)

Repayment of bank loans (48,442) (8,150)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities (5,630) 23,675
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (49,694) (266)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 94,622 94,888
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 25 44,928 94,622

The notes on pages 42 to 90 are an integral pattiefe consolidated financial statements
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(@)

(b)

Background and business of the Company

Ronson Europe N.V. (‘the Company’), a Dutch pultmmpany with its statutory seat in Rotterdam, the
Netherlands, was incorporated on 18 June 2007 r@distered office is located at Weena 210-212,dRdém,
the Netherlands. The Company (together with itssRadubsidiaries ‘the Group’), is active in the elepment
and sale of units, primarily apartments, in mudtivily residential real-estate projects to individuastomers in
Poland.

The shares of the Company are traded on the WaBtawvk Exchange since 5 November 2007. As at 31
December 2012, 32.1% of the outstanding sharesaateolled by I.T.R. 2012 B.V., 32.1% of the outstang
shares are controlled by I.T.R. Dori B.V. (coopm@in ITRD Partnership), whereas 15.3% of the tauiding
shares are held by GE Real Estate CE Residenfial B5E Real Estate’) and the remaining 20.5% o th
outstanding shares are held by other investoraudimlj Amplico Otwarty Fundusz Emerytalny and ING
Otwarty Fundusz Emerytalny each holding betweendtd 10% of the outstanding shares. The number of
shares held by the investors is equal to the nurabewntes, as there are no privileged shares issyethe
Company.

A list of the companies from which the financiata are included in these Consolidated FinanceteStents
and the extent of ownership and control are preskintNote 1(b).

The details of the Polish companies whose finansiatements have been included in these Consalidate
Financial Statements, the year of incorporation uedpercentage of ownership and voting rightsctliyeheld
or indirectly by the Company as at 31 December 2aie presented below and on the following page.

The projects managed by the companies are in \&astages of development ranging from being in toegss
of acquiring land for development to projects whick completed or near completion.

Year of Share of ownership & voting rights

Entity name incorporation at the end of
31 December 31 December
201z 2011

a. held directly by the Company :

1. Ronson Development Management Sp. z 0.0. 1999 100.0% 100.0%
2. Ronson Development 2000 Sp. z o0.0. 2000 100.0% 100.0%
3. Ronson Development Warsaw Sp. z 0.0. 2000 100.0% 100.0%
4. Ronson Development Investment Sp. z 0.0. 2002 100.0% 100.0%
5. Ronson Development Metropol Sp. z 0.0. 2002 100.0% 100.0%
6. Ronson Development Properties Sp. z 0.0. 2002 100.0% 100.0%
7. Ronson Development Apartments Sp. z 0.0. 2003 100.0% 100.0%
8. Ronson Development Enterprise Sp. z 0.0. 2004 100.0% 100.0%
9. Ronson Development Company Sp. z 0.0. 2005 100.0% 100.0%
10. Ronson Development Creations Sp. z 0.0. 2005 100.0% 100.0%
11. Ronson Development Buildings Sp. z o.0. 2005 100.0% 100.0%
12. Ronson Development Structure Sp. z 0.0. 2005 100.0% 100.0%
13. Ronson Development Pozn&p. z 0.0. 2005 100.0% 100.0%
14. E.E.E. Development Sp. z 0.0. 2005 100.0% 100.0%
15. Ronson Development Innovation Sp. z 0.0. 2006 100.0% 100.0%
16. Ronson Development Wroctaw Sp. z o.0. 2006 100.0% 100.0%
17. Ronson Development Capital Sp. z 0.0. 2006 100.0% 100.0%
18. Ronson Development Sp. z o.0. 2006 100.0% 100.0%
19. Ronson Development Construction Sp. z 0.0. 2006 100.0% 100.0%
20. Ronson Development City Sp. z 0.0. 2006 100.0% 100.0%
21. Ronson Development Village Sp. z d®. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
22. Ronson Development Conception Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
23. Ronson Development Architecture Sp. z o0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
24. Ronson Development Skyline Sp. z o.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
25. Ronson Development Continental Sp. z o.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
26. Ronson Development Universal Sp. z 6o. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
27. Ronson Development Retreat Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
28. Ronson Development South Sp. z o.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
29. Ronson Development West Sp. z &b. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
30. Ronson Development East Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%

(1) The Company has the power to govern the financidl @perating policies of this entity and to obt&ienefits from its activities, whereas
Kancelaria Radcy Prawnego Jarostaw Zubrzycki htdslegal title to the shares of this entity.
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1. Background and business of the Company (cont’d)

Share of ownership &

voting rights

Entity name Year of incorporation at the end of
31 31
December  December
2012 2011
a. held directly by the Company (cont’d):
31. Ronson Development North Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
32. Ronson Development Providence Sp. z o0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
33. Ronson Development Finco Sp. z o.0. 2009 100.0% 100.0%
34. Ronson Development Partner 2 sp. z 0.0. (previd@elyson Development Nautica Sp. z 0.0.) 2010 100.0% 100.0%
35. Ronson Development Skyline 2010 Sp. z o0.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
36. Ronson Development Partner 3 Sp. z 0.0. 2012 100.0% n.a.
b. held indirectly by the Company :
37. AGRT Sp. zo.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
38. Ronson Development Partner 2 Sp. z 0.0.- PanoraBpka (previously Ronson Development sp. z 0.0.-
Community Sp.k.) 2007 100.0% 100.0%
39. Ronson Development Sp z o.0. - Estate Sp.k. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
40. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Home Sp.k. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
41. Ronson Development Sp z 0.0 - Horizon Sp.k. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
42. Ronson Development Partner 3 Sp. z 0.0- Sakura Gpéviously Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0.-
Landscape Sp.k.) 2007 100.0% 100.0%
43. Ronson Development Sp z 0.0 -Town Sp.k. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
44. Ronson Development Destiny Sp. z o.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
45. Ronson Development Millenium Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100.0% 100.0%
46. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0.-EEE 2011 Sp.k. (pusly Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Eclipse $p.k.
2009 100.0% 100.0%
47. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0.-Apartments 2011 $mréviously Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0.-
Magellan Sp.k.) 2009 100.0% 100.0%
48. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0.-Idea Sp.k. (prewd@sehson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Monet Sp.k.)
2009 100.0% 100.0%
49. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0.-Destiny 2011 Sprkv{pusly Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0.-Orion $p.k.
2009 100.0% 100.0%
50. Ronson Development Partner 2 Sp. z 0.0. - Enter@04.1 Sp.k. (previously Ronson Development Spoz o
- Osiedle Hrabskie Sp.k.) 2009 100.0% 100.0%
51. Ronson Development Partner 2 Sp. z 0.0. - Retf¥et 3p.k. (previously Ronson Development Sp. z-0.0.
Plejada Sp.k. and Ronson Development Sp. z o.etre& 2011 Sp.k) 2009 100.0% 100.0%
52. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0.-Wroctaw 2011 Spévipusly Ronson Development Sp. z dR@noir Sp.k
2009 100.0% 100.0%
53. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - 2011 Sp.k. (preWdRonson Development Sp. z 0.0.- Renaissance)Sp.k
2009 100.0% 100.0%
54. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Gemini 2 Sp.kv{ptsly Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Tamka $p.k.
2009 100.0% 100.0%
55. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0.- Verdis Sp.k. (preslioRonson Development Sp. z 0.0.- Copernicus.Bp.k
2009 100.0% 100.0%
56. Ronson Espresso Sp. z 0.0. (previously Landex $m.} 2006 68.4% 68.4%
57. Ronson Development Apartments 2010 Sp. z o0.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
58. Ronson Development 2010 Sp. z 0.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
59. Ronson Development Retreat 2010 Sp. z o.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
60. Ronson Development Enterprise 2010 Sp. z o.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
61. Ronson Development Wroctaw 2010 Sp. z o0.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
62. E.E.E. Development 2010 Sp. z o.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
63. Ronson Development Nautica 2010 Sp. z o0.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
64. Ronson Development Gemini 2010 Sp. z o.0. 2010 100.0% 100.0%
65. Ronson IS sp. z 0.0. (previous name Ronson Devedop@emini Sp. z 0.0. and Ronson Development
Invest p. zo.0.) 2010 50.0% 100.0%
66. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Naturalis Sp.k. 2011 100.0% 100.0%
67. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Impressio Sp.k. 2011 100.0% 100.0%
68. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Continental 2q1.k.S 2011 100.0% 100.0%
69. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Providence 2014. Sp 2011 100.0% 100.0%
70. Ronson Development Partner 2 Sp. z 0.0. - Capithl Bp. k.( previously Ronson Development Sp. z-0.0
Capital 2011 Sp.k.) 2011 100.0% 100.0%
71. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Architecture 28p.Xk. 2011 100.0% 100.0%
72. Ronson IS sp. z 0.0. Sp.k. 2012 50.0% n.a.

(€

The Company has the power to govern the financidl@perating policies of this entity and to obthemefits from its activities, whereas Kancelarial®a

Prawnego Jarostaw Zubrzycki holds the legal titlérte shares of this entity.
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2.

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Basis of preparation and measurement

Basis of preparation and statement of compliare

These Consolidated Financial Statements have Ipeepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (‘IFRS0). the year ended 31 December 2012, in light ef th
current process of IFRS endorsement in the Europkdgaon and the nature of the Group’s activitiegréhis no
difference between the IFRSs applied by the Group the IFRSs endorsed by the European Union. IFRSs
comprise standards and interpretations accepteldebinternational Accounting Standards Board (“IAs&nd

the International Financial Reporting InterpretaidCommittee (“IFRIC”). The Company Financial Stagats

of the Company have been prepared in accordanbeavtitle 362.8 of the Netherlands Civil Code.

The Consolidated Financial Statements were awbadrby the Boards of Directors of Ronson Europe. Ny

5 March 2013.

These Consolidated Financial statements have pespared on the assumption that the Group is aggoin
concern, meaning it will continue in operation tbe foreseeable future and will be able to readigeets and
discharge liabilities in the normal course of iferations.

Basis of measurement

The Consolidated Financial Statements have begpaped on the historical cost basis, except foestment
property which was measured at fair value. The odthused to measure fair values for the purpogeeiare
the Consolidated Financial Statements are discUastetr in note 33.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of eantity in the Group are measured using the cuyr@fiche
primary economic environment in which the entityemges (the ‘functional currency’) being Polish ¥lo
(‘PLN’). The Consolidated Financial Statements gresented in thousands of Polish Zloty, except when
otherwise indicated, which is the parent compamgfional and presentation currency. Although thenGany

is Dutch, it operates mainly in Poland.

Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements requiragagement to make judgments, estimates and assmshat
affect the application of accounting policies ahd teported amounts of assets, liabilities, theloksire of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effthancial statements, and the reported amounitscofme and
expenses during the reported period. Actual resnéty differ from these estimates. Estimates anceryidg
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. i8asito accounting estimates are recognized ipéned in
which the estimate is revised.
In particular, information about significant areafsestimation, uncertainty and critical judgmemsapplying
accounting policies that have the most signififfeéct on the amounts recognized in the finandetesnents,
are described in the following notes:

Note 17 — investment property

Note 20 — utilization of tax losses

Note 21 — inventory

Note 22 — trade and other receivables and prepagmen

Note 32 — provisions

Note 34 — commitments and contingencies

Estimation of net realizable value for inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and nalizable value (NRV). NRV for completed inventompperty is
assessed with reference to market conditions aiedgexisting at the reporting date and is detegchiny the
Group having taken suitable external advice anthénlight of recent market transactions. NRV inpexg of
inventory property under construction is assess#iuneference to market prices at the reporting datt similar
completed property, less estimated costs to commlenstruction and less an estimate of the timeevaf
money to the date of completion.
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2.

(e)

(€)

Basis of preparation and measurement (cont’d)

Valuation of investment property

The fair value of the investment property is defeed by independent real estate valuation expaigedon the
discounted cash flow approach. The determinatioth®ffair value of the investment property requites use
of estimates such as future cash flows from agsetsh as lettings, tenants’ profiles, future revestreams,
capital values of fixtures and fittings, any enwineental matters and the overall repair and conditib the

property) and discount rates applicable to thosetas

Deferred tax asset recognition
The Company is not recognizing deferred tax assedlation to temporary difference between tax eaod

book value of the contributions

Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Compan

Control exists when the Company has the powept@ig the financial and operating policies of atitgrso as
to obtain benefits from its activities. In assegsiontrol, potential voting rights that presenthg @&xercisable
are taken into account. The financial statementsuifsidiaries are included in the consolidated nitie

statements from the date that control commencaktiatdate that control ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and argalined gains and losses arising from intra-groapsactions,
are eliminated during consolidation. Jointly cofied entities are those enterprises over whoseiges the
Company has joint control, established by cont@cagreements. The Consolidated Financial Statesment
include the Company’s proportionate share of thierpnises’ assets, liabilities, revenues and exgemngth
items of similar nature on a line-by-line basisnfrthe date that joint control commences untildage that joint
control ceases.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are pegbéor the same period as the financial stateroéparent.
The Group entities keep books of accounts in a@oarel with accounting policies specified in the Aguing

Act dated 29 September 1994 (‘the Accounting Autith subsequent amendments and the regulationsdssu
based on that Act (all together: ‘Polish Accounti§tandards’). Ronson Europe N.V. keeps the books of
accounts in accordance with accounting policiesiired by Dutch law. These consolidated financiateshents
include a number of adjustments not included inttheks of account of the Group entities, which waeele in
order to bring the financial statements of thod#tiea to conformity with IFRSs.

Where property is acquired, via corporate acqaisitor otherwise, management considers the suiestafithe
assets and activities of the acquired entity irdeining whether the acquisition represents theiiaiepn of a
business. Where such acquisitions are not judgdaetan acquisition of a business, they are notddeas
business combinations. Rather, the cost to acdh&ecorporate entity is allocated between the itlehte
assets and liabilities of the entity based on thelative fair values at the acquisition date. Adbagly, no
goodwill or additional deferred taxation arises.h@tise, acquisitions are accounted for as business
combinations.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policies adopted for the prepanatid the current Consolidated Financial Statemeamts

consistent with those of the previous financialry@de Group has adopted the following amendmentERS

and IFRIC interpretations applicable to annual répg periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012:

o Amendment to IFRS Financial Instruments — Disclosures: Transfer ondncial Assets- effective for
financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

The adoption of these amendments did not havedhgpathe financial position or performance of @®up.
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3.

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have beepliep consistently in all periods presented in ¢hes
Consolidated Financial Statements.

(@)

(b)

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

Foreign currency
Transactions in foreign currencies are translatetthé respective functional currencies of Groujitiest
at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of #res#ictions using:

the purchase or selling rate of the bank whoseicEare used by the Group — in case of foreign
currency sales or purchase transactions, as wethéncase as of the debt or liability payment
transactions;

the average rate specified for a given currencyheyNational Bank of Poland as on the transaction
date, unless a customs declaration or other bindiimgment indicates another rate — in case of other
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in ifprecurrencies are retranslated at the functional
currency spot rate of exchange ruling at the rémprtiate. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency &easlated using the exchange rates as at the ofaties
initial transactions.

Revenue
Revenue from operations includes:

Revenue from the sale of residential units

Revenues from the sale of residential units aregeized upon transfer to the buyer of the significa
risks and rewards of ownership of the residentist (i.e. upon signing of the protocol of technical
acceptance and transfer of the key to the resmlemtiit), after a valid building occupancy permésh
been obtained by the Group.

Advances received related to pre-sales of residlemtits, which represent deferred income, arerdsde
when they do not meet the criteria to be recognagdevenue. When they subsequently meet these
criteria, they are recognized as revenue.

Revenue on finance leases

Finance lease income is recognized based on thétgmethod under which total finance lease interes
income and the excess of scheduled lease paymeatstie cost of the related assets is deferred and
amortized as income over the lease term by empayia effective interest rate that provides a Gomtst
periodic rate of return on the net investment mldase.

Revenue on operating leases

Payments received under operating leases are rigedgn the statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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(c) Financial instruments
Non-derivative financial instruments
Non-derivative financial instruments of the Groupmprise loans granted, trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, deposits, loans andviiags, and trade and other payables. All financial
assets are recognized initially at fair value pinghe case of investments not at fair value tgtoprofit
or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

A financial instrument is recognized if the Grougcbmes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets are derecognizecifatoup’s contractual rights to the cash flows fribw
financial assets expire or if the Group transféws tinancial asset to another party without retagni
control or substantially all risks and rewards loé asset. Regular way purchases and sales of ffithanc
assets are accounted for at trade date, i.e. tieetlolgt the Group commits itself to purchase or thel
asset. Financial liabilities are derecognized & @roup’s obligations specified in the contractiexpor

are discharged or cancelled.

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand amadl & integral part of the Group’s cash management
are included as a component of cash and cash égpisdor the purpose of the statement of cashdlow

Non-derivative financial instruments of the Group elassified into one of the following categories:

Category Statement of financial position item Measurement
Held for trading Cash and cash equivalent Fair yalue- through
profit and loss

Loans and receivables Short-term deposits Apnsattcosts
Loans granted to third parties Amortized costs
Loans granted to related parties Amortized costs
Trade and other receivables Amortized costs

Other financial liabilities Floating rate bonds mArtized costs
Loans from others Amortized costs
Trade and other payables and accrued Amortized costs
expenses
Secured bank loans Amortized costs

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finaresalets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. These are cladsét current assets, provided their maturity dags n
exceed 12 months after the reporting date. Loadsraceivables with maturities exceeding 12 months
from the reporting date are classified under nomesu assets. After initial measurement, loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortized asing the effective interest method less any
allowance for impairment. Gains and losses aregrized in the statement of comprehensive income
when the loans and receivables are derecognizeidhpaired, as well as, through the amortization
process.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are measured at amedizost using the effective interest method.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(d)
()

(ii)

(e)
(i)

Property and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property and equipment are measured dtless accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly aiteble to the acquisition of the asset. The costetff
constructed assets includes the cost of matenmisdaect labor, any other costs directly attritilgato
bringing the asset to a working condition for ittended use, and the costs of dismantling and rimgov
the items and restoring the site on which they@rated.

When significant parts of property, plant and emqmapt are required to be replaced in intervals, the
Group recognizes such parts as individual assetsspecific useful lives and depreciation, respetyi
Likewise, when a major inspection is performedcist is recognized in the carrying amount of tlaatp
and equipment as a replacement if the recognitiberia are satisfied. All other repair and mairaece
costs are recognized in the statement of comprareimcome as incurred.

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-lineibaser the estimated useful life of each compormdnt
an item of property and equipment.

The estimated useful life of property and equipmdepending on the class of asset, ranges from73 to
years. Leased assets are depreciated over thersbbthe lease term and their useful lives. Landot
depreciated.

When parts of an item of property and equipmenthdifferent useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property guienent.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residualeslare reassessed at the reporting date, andeatljus
prospectively since the beginning of the yearpifrapriate.

Leases

Finance leases — lessee accounting

Leases in which the Group assumes substantialthaltisks and rewards of ownership are classéied
finance leases. Upon initial recognition, the lekhasset is measured at an amount equal to the loiwer
its fair value and the present value of the minimaase payments.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(e)
(ii)

(f)

(9)

Leases (cont’d)

Operating leases — lessor accounting

The Group is the lessor of a property to a thirdtypainder a operating lease agreement. The
determination of whether an arrangement is, or aingt a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date: whether fulfilmentthe arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets or the arrangement coaveght to use the asset.

Leases where the Group does not transfer subgtptiicthe risks and benefits of ownership of tsset

are classified as operating leases. Initial dioasts incurred in negotiating an operating leaseadded

to the carrying amount of the leased asset andyréoed over the lease term on the same basestas ren
income. Contingent rents are recognized as revientie period in which they are earned.

Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at,cosluding transaction costs. Subsequently taahi
recognition, investment properties are stated at Value, which reflects market conditions at the
reporting date. Gains or losses arising from charigethe fair values of investment properties are
included in the statement of comprehensive incanthe period in which they arise.

Investment properties are derecognized when eitier have been disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and oture economic benefit is expected from its
disposal. The difference between the net disposateeds and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive indartiee period of derecognition.

Transfers are made to or from investment property when there is a change in use. For a transfen f
investment property to owner occupied property,dbemed cost for subsequently accounting is the fai
value at the date of change in use. If owner o@migiroperty becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance ilith policy stated under property, plant and
equipment up to the date of change in use.

Inventories of residential units
Inventories consist of multi-family residential restate projects to individual customers.
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost atdeaalizable value. The cost of inventories inelid

expenditure incurred relating to the constructiba project.

Costs relating to the construction of a projectiactuded in inventories of residential units akdws:
costs incurred relating to projects or a phase pfagect which are not available for sale (work in
progress),
costs incurred relating to units unsold associatitidl a project.

Project construction costs include:

a) land or leasehold rights for land,

b) construction costs paid to subcontractors for threstruction of residential units,

¢) planning and design costs,

d) perpetual usufruct fees and real estate taxesrataiuring the period of construction,

e) borrowing costs to the extent they are directlyitaitable to the development of the project (see
accounting policy (1)),

f) professional fees attributable to the developméthe project,

g) construction overheads and other directly relatesdsc

Inventory is recognized as a cost of sales in taeeent of comprehensive income when the sale of
residential units is recognized.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(h)
(i)
(i)

(ii)

()
(i)

(ii)

Trade and other receivables and prepayment
Trade and other receivables are stated at amortizstdess impairment losses.

Equity

Share capital

Share capital includes the proceeds received flmmissue of ordinary shares on the nominal value in
exchange for cash.

Share premium

Share premium includes the excess of proceedsvezt&iom the issue of shares over the nominal value
of shares.

Shares issuance costs are deducted from shareupnemi

Impairment

Financial assets

A financial asset is considered to be impairedjeotive evidence indicates that one or more evesns

had a negative effect on the estimated future ftawls of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial assetasured at amortized cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount, and thesqme value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Individually significant financial assets are tesfer impairment on an individual basis. The rerain
financial assets are assessed collectively in grohgt share similar credit risk characteristics.

All impairment losses are recognized in the statgroécomprehensive income.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal barrelated objectively to an event occurring afer
impairment loss was recognized. For financial assetasured at amortized cost the reversal is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financiakeds, are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impant. If any such indication exists then the asset’
recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carryingoamt of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the grehtey value in use and its fair value less costsetb In
assessing value in use, the estimated future d¢asls fare discounted to present value using a pre-ta
discount rate that reflects current market assestsnuod the time value of money and the risks spetif

the asset.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods asessed at each reporting date for any indicatlats
the loss has decreased or no longer exists. Aniimpat loss is reversed if there has been a change
the estimates used to determine the recoverabler@man impairment loss is reversed only to thesakt
that the asset’s carrying amount does not excezddtrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortization, if no impaimhéoss had been recognized.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(k)

o

(m)

(n)

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a pasent, the Group has a present legal or constructi
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and ipiobable that an outflow of economic benefitd
required to settle the obligation. Provisions agtedmined by discounting the expected future chossf
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current marketssssents of the time value of money and the risksifip

to the liability.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the invemyt of properties which necessarily take a substhnt
period of time to get ready for their intended wsesale are capitalized as part of the cost of the
respective assets, moreover the borrowing costsciased with the bonds issued by the Company in
2011 are capitalized indirectly to the Companyigeimory. All other borrowing costs are expensetha
period in which they occur. Borrowing costs congiftinterest calculated using the effective interes
method that an entity incurs in connection with Itleerowing of funds.

The interest capitalized is calculated using th@upls weighted average cost of borrowings after

adjusting for borrowings associated with specifavelopments. Where borrowings are associated with
specific developments, the amount capitalized exqgtted gross interest incurred on those borrowings.
Interest is capitalized as from the commencemertheevelopment work until the date of completion.

The capitalization of borrowing costs is suspendetthere are prolonged periods when development
activity is interrupted.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current and defeasedQurrent tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates edantesubstantively enacted at the reporting daie aay
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previowsseCurrent tax expense is calculated accordinigxo
regulations in effect in the jurisdiction in whittie individual companies are domiciled.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the balastveet method, for all temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilitieghaidcarrying amounts for financial reporting poses,
and for tax losses carried forward, except forittitgal recognition of assets or liabilities in @bsaction
that is not a business combination and that affeeither accounting nor taxable profit. Deferrexl ig
measured at the tax rates that are expected tpdied to the temporary differences when they reser
based on the laws that have been enacted or stibstpenacted by the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to therextsat it is probable that future taxable profii be
available against which the asset can be utiliaé@ach reporting date deferred tax assets areeelio

the extent that it is no longer probable that #lated tax benefit will be realized. Deferred tazeats and
deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legallgferceable right exists to set off current tax &ss@ainst
current income tax liabilities and the deferredetaxelate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings pares(EPS) data for its ordinary shares. The
computations of the basic earnings per share degrdimed on the basis of the weighted average numbe
of shares outstanding during the year. The dil@arhings per share are determined by adjusting the
statement of comprehensive income and the weightethge number of ordinary shares outstanding for
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary sbay which comprise share options granted and rights
obtain shares by employees.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(0)

(p)

(a)

(r

Share options granted

The Group operates a share-based incentive planfaiihvalue of share options granted to management
and other employees as at the grant date is rezedjrEis an employee expense, with a corresponding
increase in equity recognized in retained earniogsr the period during which the employees become
unconditionally entitled to the options. The amoratognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect th

actual number of share options that vest.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement ofdiabpositions comprise cash at banks and on hadd a
short-term deposits with an original maturity ofetd months or less, except for collateralized digpos

For the purpose of the consolidated statement ftasls, cash and cash equivalents consist of cadh an
short-term deposits as defined above, net of mudstg bank overdrafts.

Employee benefits
Obligations for contributions to defined contritmrtipension plans are recognized as an expense in th
statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

The Company's subsidiaries in Poland are requirader applicable regulations, to pay, on a monthly
basis, social security contributions for the empksg/ future pension benefits. These benefits, dowpr

to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’, are state plans amd characterized as defined contribution plans.
Therefore, the Company's subsidiaries have no legalconstructive obligation to pay future
pension benefits and their obligation is limitecbsyyment of contributions as they fall due.

Jointly controlled entities

The Group has an interest in a joint venture whigch jointly controlled entity, whereby the venttare
have a contractual arrangement that establishas gontrol over the economic activities of the gnti
The Group recognizes its interest in the joint vemtusing the proportionate consolidation methdee T
Group combines its proportionate share of eachefbssets, liabilities, income and expenses gihe
venture with similar items, line by line, in itsresplidated financial statements. The financialestegnts

of the joint venture are prepared for the same ntaggpperiod as the parent company. Adjustments are
made where necessary to bring the accounting pslioiline with those of the Group.

Adjustments are made in the Group’s consolidateahitial statements to eliminate the Group’s shére o
intragroup balances, income and expenses and img@ajains and losses on transactions between the
Group and its jointly controlled entity. Losses wansactions are recognized immediately if the loss
provides evidence of a reduction in the net reblzaalue of current assets or an impairment [oks.
joint venture is proportionately consolidated untie date on which the Group ceases to have joint
control over the joint venture.

Upon loss of joint control and provided the fornm@nt control entity does not become a subsidiary o
associate, the Group measures and recognizesritsmag investment at its fair value. Any differenc
between the carrying amount of the former jointtomied entity upon loss of joint control and trearf
value of the remaining investment and proceeds filsposal are recognized in profit or loss. Whemn th
remaining investment constitutes significant inflae, it is accounted for as investment in an aaseci
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4, Standards issued but not yet effective

The following new standards, amendments to stasdardl interpretations have been issued but are not
effective for 2012 and have not been adopted early:

. The first phase of IFRS Binancial Instruments: Classification and Measureme effective for financial
years beginning on or after 1 January 2015 — ndbesed by EU till the date of approval of thesafficial
statements. In subsequent phases, the IASB willeadchedge accounting and impairment. The appitati
of the first phase of IFRS 9 will have impact oasdification and measurement of the financial assiethe
Group. The Group will quantify the effect in confion with the other phases, when issued, to ptesen
comprehensive picture,

. Amendments to IAS 1&Employee Benefits effective for financial years beginning on oteafl January
2013,

. Amendments to IAS Presentation of Financial Statements: Presentatibitems of Other Comprehensive
Income- effective for financial years beginning on oreaff July 2012,

. Amendments to IAS 12ncome Taxes: Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlykggets— effective for
financial years beginning on or after 1 January2261in EU effective at the latest for financial y&a
beginning on or after 1 January 2013,

. Amendments to IFRS First-time Adoption of International Financial Refing Standards: Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for Fitshe Adopters- effective for financial years beginning
on or after 1 July 2011 — in EU effective at thees for financial years beginning on or after huky
2013,

. IFRS 10Consolidated Financial Statementseffective for financial years beginning on oteafl January
2013, —in EU effective at the latest for finangiahrs beginning on or after 1 January 2014,

. IFRS 11Joint Arrangements- effective for financial years beginning on oteafl January 2013 — in EU
effective at the latest for financial years begignon or after 1 January 2014,

. IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities effective for financial years beginning on oteaf
1 January 2013 — in EU effective at the latesfif@ncial years beginning on or after 1 January2201

. Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS Transition Guidance- effective for financial years
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 — not endotsedtU till the date of approval of these financial
statements,

. IFRS 13Fair Value Measurementeffective for financial years beginning on otreafl January 2013,

. IAS 27 Separate Financial Statemenrt®ffective for financial years beginning on oreaft January 2013 —
in EU effective at the latest for financial yeaegmning on or after 1 January 2014,

. IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Venturedfective for financial years beginning on oteafl
January 2013 in EU effective at the latest for financial yebegjinning on or after 1 January 2014,

. IFRIC 20 Stripping @sts in the Production Phase of a Surface Mindectfe for financial years beginning
on or after 1 January 2013,

. Amendments to IFRS Financial Instruments — Disclosures: Offsetting &icial Assets and Financial
Liabilities - effective for financial years beginning on oreafil January 2013,

. Amendments to IAS 3Financial Instruments — Presentation: Offsettingn&ticial Assets and Financial
Liabilities- effective for financial years beginning on oreafl January 2014,

. Amendments to IFRS Eirst—time Adoption of International Financial Refing Standards: Government
Loans— effective for financial years beginning on aieafl January 2013 — not endorsed by EU till the da
of approval of these financial statements,

. Improvements to IFRSsssued in May 2012) — effective for financial y@&eginning on or after 1 January
2013 — not endorsed by EU till the date of appra¥dhese financial statements,

. Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IASI@Vestment Entitiefissued on 31 October 2012) — effective
for financial years beginning on or after 1 Janu2®¢4 — not endorsed by EU till the date of approfa
these financial statements.
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5. Acquisition of a controlling interest (in 2011)

On 23 December 2010, the Group had acquired 57 8%ecequity of Ronson Espresso Sp. z 0.0. (‘Egures
previously known as Landex Sp. z 0.0.) whereby mtragtual arrangement existed according to whicht jo
control over the economic activities of the entitgs established. As a result, the Group recogntgeadterest in

the joint venture using the proportionate consoittamethod.

On 6 June 2011, the Group acquired an addition&%®f the equity of Espresso for PLN 1,450 thodsen
cash, thereby increasing its ownership to 68.4%gaiking control over this entity. Simultaneoughg Group
acquired a loan receivable amounting to PLN 1,8idusand. The purchase price for the loan receivahte
equal to its book value. The transaction was adeolufor as an asset deal and not as a businessragioh.

Therefore the requirements of IFRS 3 Business Coatioin were not applicable.

The net identifiable assets of Espresso as atateeaf acquisition and the net amount transfereegdaat of the

transaction were as follows:

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

As at transaction date
(6 June 2011)

Cash and cash equivalents 259
Inventory 30,759
Other current assets 1,015
Non-current assets 193
Current liabilities (745)
Non-current liabilities (18,500)
Total net identifiable assets (100%) 12,981
Less: interest already acquired in prior year (%).8 (7,208)
Non-controlling interest (31.6%) (4,323)
Portion of net identifiable assets acquired (10.6%) 1,450
Less: cash and cash equivalents in interest ach(#22%) (109)
Purchase of shares in newly consolidated entity, hef cash acquired 1,341

The acquisition of additional (10.6%) shares inrespo as well as the acquisition of loan receivaidee
concluded on an arms’ length terms whereby theepraze reflecting the fair value of these traneasti
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6. Segment reporting

The Group’s operating segments are defined as aepantities developing particular residential gctg, which
for the reporting purposes were aggregated. Theeggtion for reporting purpose is based on geogtaph
locations (Warsaw, PozhaWroctaw and Szczecin) and type of activity (depehent of apartments and
development of houses). Moreover, for one particeldity the reporting was based on type of incoreatal

income from investment property.

According to the Management Board’'s assessmentppleeating segments identified have similar ecocomi
characteristics. Aggregation based on the typesgélbpment within the geographical location hastsgaplied
since primarily the location and the type of depehent determine the average margin that can bezedabn
each project and the project’s risk factors. Cozrsidy the fact that the production process for tpants is
different from that for houses and considering féde that the characteristics of customers buyipgrtanents
slightly differ from those of customers interestacbuying houses, aggregation by type of develogmsthin
the geographical location has been used for segrapatting and disclosure purposes.

Segment results, assets and liabilities includastdirectly attributable to a segment as well aséfthat can be
allocated indirectly based on reasonable critdsizallocated items comprise head office expensesiramaine
tax assets and liabilities and unallocated cashcasl equivalents.

Data presented in the table below are aggregatégpleyof development within the geographical lomatti

In thousands of Polish Zlotys

As at 31 December 2012

(PLN)

Warsaw Poznai Wroctaw Szczecin Unallocated Total

Apartments Houses Rental ‘Apartments  Houses Apgments Houses Apartments Houses

Segment
assets 420,313 48,260 8,279 102,388 82,118 2,520 81,3 7,659 741,917
Unallocated
assets - - 44,602 44,602
Total
assets 420,313 48,260 8,279 102,388 82,118 5202, 70,380 7,659 44,602 786,519
Segment
liabilities 181,446 11,451 17,514 821 1 10,716 - - 229.,9
Unallocated
liabilities - - 104,802 104,802
Total
liabilities 181,446 11,451 17,514 821 1 0,716 - 104,802 326,751
In thousands of Polish Zlotys As at 31 December 2011
(PLN)

Warsaw Poznai Wroctaw Szczecin Unallocated Total

Apartments Houses Rental ‘Apartments  Houses Apgments Houses Apartments Houses

Segment
assets 347,600 63,405 9,195 94,050 90,068 3,606 3,58 7,373 678,879
Unallocated
assets - - 87,082 87,082
Total
assets 347,600 63,405 9,195 94,050 90,068 063,6 63,582 7,373 87,082 765,961
Segment
liabilities 181,636 14,844 31,714 5,912 - 17,279 - - 28
Unallocated
liabilities - - 86,119 86,119
Total
liabilities 181,636 14,844 - 31,714 5,912 17,279 86,119 337,504
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6.  Segment reporting (cont’'d)

In thousands of Polish Zlotys

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(PLN)

Warsaw Pozna Wroctaw Szczecin Unallocated Total

Apartments Houses Rental Apartments Houses Apartments Houses Apartments Houses

Revenue 159,132 9,863 583 5,117 17,689 - 6,375 - 8,159
Segment
result 48,281  (4,697) (697) (796) 763 4 56 @) - 2,902
Unallocated
result - - - - - - - - - (16,623) (16,623)
Result from
operating
activities 48,281 (4,697) (697) (796) 763 4) 56 4) (16,623) 26,279
Net finance
income 199 (1) - 42 33 (1) 5 - 1,715 2,99
Profit
before tax 48,480 (4,698) (697) (754) 796 (5) 61 4) (14,908) 28,271
Income tax
benefit 3,040
Profit for
the year 31,311
Capital
expenditure - - - - - - - - - 692 692
In thousands of Polish Zlotys For the year ended 31 December 2011
(PLN)

Warsaw Poznai Wroctaw Szczecin Unallocated Total

Apartments  Houses  Rental Apartments  Houses Apartments Houses Apartments  Houses

Revenue 50,594 28,341 649 17,090 - - - - - 96,674
Segment
result 12,262 (945) 317 5,141 (496) (5) (389) 5) - 15,880
Unallocated
result - - - - - - - - - (15,056)  (15,056)
Result from
operating
activities 12,262 (945) 317 5,141 (496) (5) 893 (5) (15,056) 824
Net finance
income 216 45 - 149 (4) [€)) 16 - 4,186  60%,
Profit
before tax 12,478 (900) 317 5,290 (500) (6) 733 (5) (10,870) 5,431
Income tax
benefit 1,326
Profit for
the year 6,757
Capital
expenditure - - - - - - - - - 1,202 1,202
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7. Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Gemini |l 68,655 -
Verdis | 29,166 -
Sakura | 42,853 -
Impressio | 17,689 -
Constans 8,106 16,037
Naturalis | 1,535 -
Naturalis Il 7,630 -
Imaginarium I 749 2,092
Imaginarium 11| 7,413 31,831
Panoramika | 6,375 -
Chilli I 4,221 -
Nautica | 588 7,466
Nautica Il 1,074 3,761
Galileo 896 17,090
Gardenia 683 12,304
Imaginarium | - 639
Gemini | - 4,526
Other 1,126 928
Total revenue 198,759 96,674

8. Cost of sales

For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Gemini ll 40,155 -
Verdis | 18,707 -
Sakura | 32,725 -
Impressio | 16,739 -
Constans 8,106 15,450
Naturalis | 1,326 -
Naturalis Il 6,544 -
Imaginarium Il 573 1,468
Imaginarium 111 5,516 21,157
Panoramika | 6,124 -
Chilli | 3,871 -
Nautica | 520 5,759
Nautica Il 928 2,186
Galileo 591 11,445
Gardenia 680 12,224
Imaginarium | - 362
Gemini | - 3,410
Write-down of inventory 4,957 -
Other 290 525
Total cost of sales 148,352 73,986
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9.

10.

11.

Selling and marketing expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Advertising 5,265 4,181
Brokerage fees 417 368
Other 518 509
Total selling and marketing expenses 6,200 5,058

Administrative expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Personnel expenses 11 11,053 9,431
External services 2,610 3,284
Materials and energy 612 680
Depreciation 745 622
Taxes and charges 178 429
Other 774 715
Total administrative expenses 15,972 15,161

Personnel expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Wages and salaries 9,687 8,233
Social security and other benefits 1,366 1,198
Total personal expenses 11,053 9,431
Average number of personnel employef 60 55

(*) All employees are employed in the territoryPafland.
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12. Other expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Maintenance expense of unsold units 702 831
Cost of repairs and defects 623 75
Expense for contractual penalties and compensation 223 605
Civil activity taxes on contributions 109 705
Impairment of trade receivablés 10 237
Cost of research and due diligence of new projects 138 229
Other expense 148 181
Total other expense 1,953 2,863

(1) For additional information see note 22.

13. Other income

For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Revenues from contractual penalties and compemsatio 179 521
Rental income from inventory 554 422
Net profit on sale of property and equipment 177 18
Other income 57 257
Total other income 967 1,218
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14. Finance income and expense

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Recognized in the

Total Amount statement of
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) amount capitalized comprehensive income
Interest on granted loans 331 - 331
Interest income on bank deposits 3,013 193 2,820
Foreign exchange gain 1 - 1
Other Finance income 281 - 281
Finance income 3,626 193 3,433
Interest expense on financial liabilities
measured at amortized cost (18,070) (16,994) 6,07
Foreign exchange loss (12) - (12)
Commissions and fees (1,785) (1,536) (249)
Other finance expense (104) - (104)
Finance expense (19,971) (18,530) (1,441)
Net finance income/(expense) (16,345) (18,337) 1,992
For the year ended 31 December 2011 Recognized in the

Total Amount statement of
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) amount capitalized comprehensive income
Interest on granted loans 244 - 244
Interest income on bank deposits 4,219 166 4,053
Foreign exchange gain 72 - 72
Income from other current financial assets
(see Note 23) 550 - 550
Other Finance income 290 - 290
Finance income 5,375 166 5,209
Interest expense on financial liabilities
measured at amortized cost (16,036) (15,901) (135)
Foreign exchange loss (114) - (114)
Commissions and fees (1,133) (947) (186)
Other finance expense (167) - (167)
Finance expense (17,450) (16,848) (602)
Net finance income/(expense) (12,075) (16,682) 4,607
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15. Income tax

For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Current tax

Current period 63 139
Taxation in respect of previous periods (2,369) (125)
Total current tax (benefit)/expense (2,306) 14

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 5,825 5,249
Benefit of tax losses recognized (6,559) (6,589)
Total deferred tax benefit (734) (1,340)
Total income tax benefit (3,040) (1,326)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Profit for the period 31,311 6,757
Total income tax expense (3,040) (1,326)
Profit excluding income tax 28,271 5,431
Expected income tax using the Polish tax rate (19%) 5,371 1,032

Tax effect of

Netherlands tax rates 186 (222)
Taxes in respect of previous periods (2,369) (125)
Non-deductible expenses, net 29 23
Movement in unrecognized deferred tax assets 7,448 (232)
Adjustment for reduced tax rate in foreign curgenc 151 (153)
Recognition and utilization of the deferred taxed$s connection

with the organizational restructuring of the Group. (14,655) (863)
Other differences 799 (786)
Tax benefit for the period (3,040) (1,326)
Effective tax rate -10.75% -24.42%
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16. Property and equipment

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Vehicles Equipment Building Total
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Cost or deemed cost
Balance at 1 January 1,097 1,767 8,575 11,439
Additions 94 429 169 692
Transferred from inventory - - 366 366
Disposals (83) (493) (559) (1,135)
Closing balance 1,108 1,703 8,551 11,362
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 January 733 783 974 2,490
Depreciation for the period 161 364 220 745
Disposals (83) (412) (38) (533)
Closing balance 811 735 1,156 2,702
Carrying amounts
At 1 January 364 984 7,601 8,949
Closing balance 297 968 7,395 8,660
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Vehicles Equipment Building Total
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Cost or deemed cost
Balance at 1 January 932 843 8,482 10,257
Additions 185 924 93 1,202
Disposals (20) - - (20)
Closing balance 1,097 1,767 8,575 11,439
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 January 585 507 794 1,886
Depreciation for the period 166 276 180 622
Disposals (18) - - (18)
Closing balance 733 783 974 2,490
Carrying amounts
At 1 January 347 336 7,688 8,371
Closing balance 364 984 7,601 8,949

Impairment loss
In the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31 Decezbliér the Group did not recognize any impairmess |
with respect to Property and equipment.
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17.

18.

Investment property

For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Balance at 1 January 9,249 8,740
Acquisitions and investments - 509
Change in fair value during the year (970) -
Balance as at 31 December, including: 8,279 9,249
Cost 3,647 3,647
Fair value adjustments 4,632 5,602

As at 31 December 2012, the investment propertydted property held for long-term rental yields axagbital
appreciation, and were not occupied by the Grolng. ifivestment property consists of a plot of laméMarsaw
(71, Gwiadzista Street) and an office building with an agate usable floor space of 1,318 located on this
plot that leased to third parties under lease ageeés with an indefinite term subject to a threeathanotice
period for termination.

Investment property is valued at fair value detewdi as at 31 December 2012 by the Management. The
investment property has been also valued by anpambent appraiser, having an appropriate recognized
professional qualification, based on current pricesan active market. Both valuations came up \sithilar
results, however the Managements results were omrgervative. Investment property was valued basettie
discounted cash flow approach, including the assiesm@s to an annual discount rate of 9.0% (duargyear
forecast period), a capitalization exit yield 00%, a monthly rate of PLN 38/mand a long term vacancy rate

of 10%. The assumptions as at the end of 2011lided: an annual discount rate of 10%, a monthly oén
43/nf and a vacancy rate of 8%,

The fair value of completed investment propertias heen determined on a market value basis in dacos
with International Valuation Standards (IVS), a$ eat by the IVSC. The valuations were preparedaon
aggregated non-leveraged basis. The valuations penfermed by an accredited independent valuatdn wi
recognized and relevant professional qualificatiord with recent experience in the local market #rel
specific category of the investment properties edlu

If the yields used for the appraisals of investnmanatperty on 31 December 2012, had been 100 basgissp
higher than was the case at that time, the valukeoinvestments would have been 12% lower. Indtistion,
the Company’s shareholders’ equity would have B&ed 1.0 million lower.

The continued instability in the financial marketsises volatility and uncertainty in the world’'pital markets
and real estate markets. There is a low liquidityel in the real estate market and transactionmefuhave
significantly reduced, resulting in a lack of ctgras to pricing levels and market drivers. As sule there is
less certainty with regard to valuations and mankaties can change rapidly due to the current marke
conditions.

The investment property is currently occupied.
Loans granted to third parties

The loans are granted to one of the shareholdeR®n$on Espresso Sp. z 0.0. (previously known asléxaSp.
Z 0.0.). The loans mature in 2014 and bear andsteate of 13.5% since the date off granting daa land until
13" of April 2013 and interest rate of 15% for the géning period. As at 31 December 2012, the balafitee

loans granted to third parties included an amotiftldN 850 thousand as nominal loan amount and asuamn
of PLN 193 thousand as accrued interest. For saguhie repayment of the loan, the Company holdedge

on the partner’s share in Ronson Espresso Sp..as.well as on a part of the loans granted byptréner to
Ronson Espresso Sp. z 0.0.
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19. Loans granted to related parties
These loans are granted to the joint venture (RoiS®p. z 0.0. Sp.k., that was established d@0i). The
loans mature in 2017 and bear an interest calclkatéhe beginning of each calendar year basethetatest
interest rate as charged on the construction diealit granted by the banks to the Group and ineceay 2%.

As at 31 December 2012, the balance of the loamsten to related parties included an amount of P1488
thousand as nominal loan amount and an amount NfZ26 thousand as accrued interest.

20. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities as at the ginand end of the financial periods are attriblgdo the

following:
Recognized in the
statement of
Opening balance comprehensive Closing balance
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 1 January 2012 income 31 December 2012
Deferred tax assets
Tax loss carry forward 15,054 6,559 21,613
Accrued interest 740 2,141 2,881
Accrued expense 280 (55) 225
Other 454 - 454
Total deferred tax assets 16,528 8,645 25,173
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference between tax base and carrying value of
inventory 15,045 7,752 22,797
Accrued interest 300 340 640
Fair value gain on investment property 1,064 (184) 880
Other 585 3 588
Total deferred tax liabilities 16,994 7,911 24,905
Total deferred tax benefit (see Note 15) (734)
Deferred tax assets 16,528 25,173
Deferred tax liabilities 16,994 24,905
Offset of deferred tax assets and liabilities for
individual companies (10,685) (13,375)
Deferred tax assets reported
in the statement of financial position 5,843 1198
Deferred tax liabilities reported
in the statement of financial position 6,309 1130
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20. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (cont’d)

The tax losses carried forward expiranithe following years:

As at 31
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) December 2012
2013 2,767
2014 4,259
2015 7,199
2016 5,456
2017 1,932
After 2017 -
Total deferred tax asset in respect of tax lossesrcad forward 21,613

Recognized in the

Acquisition of

Opening statement of newly Closing balance
balance 1 comprehensive consolidated 31 December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) January 2011 income subsidiaries 2011
Deferred tax assets
Tax loss carry forward 8,385 6,589 80 15,054
Accrued interest 80 604 56 740
Accrued expense 386 (106) - 280
Other 720 (266) - 454
Total deferred tax assets 9,571 6,821 136 16,528
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference between tax base and carrying value
of inventory 10,394 4,596 55 15,045
Accrued interest - 300 - 300
Fair value gain on investment property 1,064 - 064,
Other - 585 - 585
Total deferred tax liabilities 11,458 5,481 55 16,99
Total deferred tax benefit (see Note 15) (1,340)
Deferred tax assets 9,571 16,528
Deferred tax liabilities 11,458 16,994
Offset of deferred tax assets and liabilities for
individual companies (6,127) (10,685)
Deferred tax assets reported
in the statement of financial position 3,444 843
Deferred tax liabilities reported
in the statement of financial position 5,331 809
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20.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities (cont’d)
Unrecognized deferred tax liabilities

There are no unrecognized deferred tax liabilities.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to theraxteat it is more likely than not that future thle profits will
be available against which the asset can be ulilidarecognized deferred tax assets relate priynaritax loss

carry-forwards, which are not considered probablealization prior to their expiration.
The Company is not recognizing deferred tax assebosolidation level resulting from contributicas the
recoverability of such assets is uncertain.

Realization of deferred tax assets

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax sgeanagement considers whether it is more likedy not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assets mdtl be realized. The ultimate realization of defdrtax assets

is dependent upon the generation of future taxéideme during the periods in which those temporary
differences become deductible. Management consitteesscheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities
projected future taxable income, and tax planningtegies in making this assessment. In order ltp faalize

the deferred tax asset (before offsetting agaieftrded tax liability), the Group will need to geate future
taxable income of approximately PLN 132,489 thodsahaxable profit realized by the Group companies
amounted to PLN 9,319 thousand for the year ende®&cember 2012. Based upon the level of historical
taxable income and projections for future taxableome over the periods in which the deferred teetasare
deductible, management believes it is more likélgnt not that the Group will realize the benefitstiodse
deductible differences. The amount of the defeteedasset which is considered realizable, couldevewbe
reduced in the near term if estimates of futurealdex income during the tax loss carry-forward praoe
reduced.

Tax losses in Poland are required to be utilizethiwi5 years following the period in which they giriated,
subject to the limitation that a maximum of 50%lué loss carry-forward can be used in one year.ldsses in
the Netherlands are required to be utilized withiyears following the period in which they origiedt

Movement in unrecognized deferred tax assets

Unrecognized deferred tax assets in Poland

Balance
01 Tax Balance 31 Tax Balance 31
January losses Additions/ December losses Additions/ December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2011 expired (Realizations) 2011 expired (Realizations) 2012
Tax losses 4,107 (588) (1,156) 2,363 (3,083) 8,223 7,503
Total 4,107 (588) (1,156) 2,363 (3,083) 8,223 7,503

Unrecognized deferred tax assets in the Netherlands

Balance 01 Balance 31 Balance 31
January 2011 Realizations December 2011 Realizations December 2012
In thousands of Polish Zlotys PLN EUR PLN EUR PLN EUR PLN EUR PLN EUR
Tax losses 1,743 440 924 164 2,667 604 (775) 1)(14 1,892 463
Total 1,743 440 924 164 2,667 604 (775) (141) 1,892 463

66



Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ende31 December 2012

Ronson Europe N.V.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (cont’d)

Tax losses carry forward
Tax losses carried forward in Poland

As at 31 December

2012 2011
Recognized Unrecognized  Total tax Recognized Unrecognized  Total tax

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) tax losses tax losses losses tax losses tax losses losses
Tax loss 2007 carried forward - - - - 4,426 4,426
Tax loss 2008 carried forward 14,563 388 14,951 11,839 6,438 18,277
Tax loss 2009 carried forward 11,715 11,605 23,320 20,893 146 21,039
Tax loss 2010 carried forward 37,129 16,538 53,667 12,369 355 12,724
Tax loss 2011 carried forward 32,450 8,030 40,480 34,133 1,071 35,204
Tax loss 2012 carried forward 17,893 2,930 20,823 - - -
Total tax losses carried forward 113,750 39,491 153,241 79,234 12,436 91,670

Basing on the court verdict issued in during 2032 Group recognized and utilized additional taxetos

Tax losses carried forward in the Netherlands

As at 31 December

2012 2011

Recognized Unrecognized Total tax Recognized Unrecognized Total tax
In thousands of EUR tax losses tax losses losses tax losses tax losses losses
Tax loss 2007 carried forward - 361 361 - 925 925
Tax loss 2008 carried forward - 835 835 - 835 835
Tax loss 2011 carried forward - 655 655 - 655 655
Total tax losses carried forward - 1,851 1,851 - 2,415 2,415
As at 31 December 2012 2011

Recognized Unrecognized Total tax Recognized Unrecognized Total tax
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) tax losses tax losses losses tax losses tax losses losses
Tax loss 2007 carried forward - 1,476 1,476 - 8,08 4,086
Tax loss 2008 carried forward - 3,413 3,413 - 8,68 3,688
Tax loss 2011 carried forward - 2,678 2,678 - 3,89 2,893
Total tax losses carried forward - 7,567 7,567 - 10,667 10,667
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21. Inventory

The continued instability in the financial marketuses volatility and uncertainty in the world’pital markets
and real estate markets. There is a low liquidityel in the real estate market and transactionmetuhave
significantly reduced, resulting in a lack of ctgras to pricing levels and market drivers. As sulg there is
less certainty with regard to valuations and manka&ues can change rapidly due to the current marke
conditions.

For the year ended 31 December 2012:

Closing
Opening Transferred to balance 31
balance 01 property and Transferred to December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) January 2012 equipment finished goods Additions 2012
Land and related expense 399,143 (84) (51,210) 621,3 369,211
Construction costs 104,839 (246) (175,180) 135,185 64,598
Planning and permits 21,872 (20) (7,454) 5,892 am,3
Borrowing cost$” 61,438 (22) (9,914) 18,337 69,839
Other 3,627 (4) (4,360) 3,881 3,144
Work in progress 590,919 (366) (248,118) 184,657 527,092
Recognized in the Closing
Opening statement of balance 31
balance 01 Transferred from comprehensive December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) January 2012 work in progress income 2012
Finished goods 40,497 248,118 (146,058) 142,557
_ Revaluation write down recognized in Closing
Opening statement of comprehensive income balance 31
balance 01 December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) January 2012 Increase Utilization 2012
Write-down (99) (4,957) 3,487 (1,569)
Total inventories at the lower of
cost or net realizable value 631,317 668,080

(1) Borrowing costs are capitalized to the value okimery with 9.2% average effective capitalizatinterest rate.
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21.

Inventory (cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2011:

Closing
Opening Share in work balance 31
balance 01  in progress of a Transferred to December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) January 2011 joint venture finished goods Additions 2011
Land and related expense 380,257 12,711 (12,033) ,2087 399,143
Construction costs 23,069 85 (25,570) 107,255 88¥,
Planning and permits 17,845 230 (1,055) 4,852 2,87
Borrowing cost$” 47,419 211 (2,874) 16,682 61,438
Other 2,216 38 (563) 1,936 3,627
Work in progress 470,806 13,275 (41,095) 147,933 590,919
Recognized in the Closing
Opening statement of balance 31
balance 01 Transferred from comprehensive December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) January 2011 work in progress income 2011
Finished goods 74,610 41,095 (75,208) 40,497
_ Revaluation write down recognized in Closing
Opening statement of comprehensive income balance 31
balance 01 December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) January 2011 Increase Utilization 2011
Write-down (1,887) - 1,788 (99)
Total inventories at the lower of
cost or net realizable value 543,529 631,317

1) Borrowing costs are capitalized to the value okimory with 8.1% average effective capitalizatioterest rate.

Write-down revaluating the inventory:

The company assessed internally the net realizatdle of the inventory and decreased the value vithemet
realizable value was lower than the cost. In vidwhe market situation in the property market iniabhthe
Group operates, during the year ended 31 Decentlder 2nd 2011 the Group took a particularly congersa
approach to the inventory review with regard tovdfuation to net realizable value. As a resultjriyithe years
ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, thepGnade a write-down adjustment of PLN 4,957
thousand and a write-down adjustment in the tatadunt of nil, respectively, which amount is inclddas part

of cost of sales in the Consolidated Statement eif@ehensive Income. Management examined possible
impairment on inventory for each project separataficording to the projection of revenues net frmost of
sales. For the net realizable value calculatiodbmpany used the average effective capitalizatitarest rate.

The valuation of Inventory is as follows:

As at 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Valued at cost 652,768 630,637
Valued at net realizable value 15,312 680
Total inventory 668,080 631,317
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21. Inventory (cont’d)

Balance sheet value of inventory used to secure lmareceived from banks (mortgage):

As at 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Balance sheet value of inventory 338,837 366,156

Amount of secured bank loans 105,212 117,711

For information about future commitments to the eyah contractor for construction services related t
inventory construction, see Note 34.

22. Trade and other receivables and prepayments

As at 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Value added tax (VAT) receivables 4,774 9,474
Trade and other receivables 2,884 1,686
Prepayments 1,464 1,194
Advances for land purchase 21,539 -
Total trade and other receivables and prepayments 30,661 12,354

As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, thapGrad no allowance for doubtful debts.
During the year ended 31 December 2012 and 31 Ommedd11, the Group wrote down an amount of PLN 10
thousand and PLN 237 thousand, respectively amivezable debts included in trade and other rebkbga

23. Other current financial assets

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Gragpit@d shares in the open end investment fund Idea
Premium SFIO managed by Idea Towarzystwo Funduszgdtycyjnych S.A., which investment was preseirted
the Statement of Financial Positions as other nufieancial assets. The investment was disposedsof during

the year ended 31 December 2011, having generatetdraturn and a net positive cash flow of PLN #&fusand
during the financial year 2011, which amount islided as finance income in the Consolidated Staterof
Comprehensive Income (see Note 14).

24. Short-term bank deposits — collateralized

As at 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Deposits collateral for securing the repaymenntdrest related to

the credit facilities provided to the Group 2,097 2,185
Deposits collateral for construction loans 847 327
Total short-term bank deposits — collateralized 344 2,512
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24,

25.

26.

Short-term bank deposits — collateralized (cont’d)
The interest rates earned on these deposits \@aryZ#6 to 4.5% on an annual basis.
For information about the fair value of short-tdvemk deposits - collateralized see note 33.

For information about the pledge over short termktieposits see Note 29.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bankndmahd and short-term deposits freely availabletfie
Group. Cash at bank comprises of overnight depdsiésshort-term deposits have an original maturityying
from one day to three months.

As at 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Cash at bank and in hand 16,429 16,918
Short-term deposit 28,499 77,704
Total cash and cash equivalents 44,928 94,622

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates baseathily bank deposit rates. As at 31 Decembe 201 31
December 2011 the Group held overnight depositsimsdving accounts amounting to PLN 12,588 thodisan
and PLN 14,002 thousand, respectively. As at 3lebwer 2012 and 31 December 2011 the overnight depos
and in saving accounts that earn interest ratggngabetween 2% - 4.3% and 2% - 4.5%, respectively.
Short-term deposits have a duration varying betwasn day and three months depending on the imneediat
cash requirements of the Group. As at 31 Decemb&® 2nd 31 December 2011, they earn interest at the
respective short-term deposit rates varying betwiéén 4.4% and 5% - 5.5%, respectively.

For information about the fair value of cash anshcequivalents see Note 33.

For information about the pledge over cash and egsivalents see Note 29.

Shareholders’ equity
A.  Share capital

The authorized share capital of the Company cansis800,000,000 shares of EUR 0.02 par value €Huod.
number of issued and outstanding ordinary shareate®l December 2012 and as at 31 December 2011
amounted to 272,360,000. The number issued sharessethe number of votes, as there are no pratleg
shares issued by the Company.

There are no restrictions regarding dividend pays)dature dividends may be proposed and paid daogto
Dutch GAAP.

B. Share-based payments

During the fourth quarter of 2007, a long-term imiee plan (the ‘Plan’) was implemented. The pesseiigible
for participation in the Plan are the employeeshef Group, including the members of the ManagerBeatrd.
Under the Plan, share options are granted to meamidfethe Management Board and selected employdes. T
exercise price of the granted options is determimgthe Supervisory Board on the date of granthreg ghare
options and shall not be less than the fair maviehie at the time of the grant of the options. Qi are
conditional on the employee being employed or Baaednbers at the time the options are exercisalgigtiflg
period) and can only be settled in shares. Optipasted shall vest over three and five years, bind &ind one
fifth in each year after one year from the datgrafnt, respectively.
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26.

27.

Shareholders’ equity (cont’d)
B. Share-based payments (cont’d)

On 5 November 2007, a total of 1,900,000 optiortk wh exercise price of PLN 5.75 per share weratgdato
selected employees of the Company. Of the aboag 80,000 options will vest over a three yealiqueand
the remaining 1,200,000 options will vest over fixgars, while having an optional term of five aeden years,
respectively. The latter options were granted tovor Kerem, former President of the Managementr8aad
former Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, employedgdined the option programme (granted in 2064 h
not exercised any of their options. Following tlesignation of key management employees during 2008
2010, a total of 1,260,667 options ceased to ekist.details regarding the number of the optiortstanding as
of 31 December 2012 are provided below:

Number of options

Vesting dates Granted Expired Cancelled Outstanding

5 November 2008 473,333 (183,333) (50,000) o,

5 November 2009 473,333 (60,000) (317,333) @®%,0
5 November 2010 473,334 (60,000) (413,334) -
5 November 2011 240,000 - (240,000) -
5 November 2012 240,000 - (240,000) -
Total 1,900,000 (303,333) (1,260,667) 336,000

The weighted average fair value of options grarite@007 using the Black-Scholes valuation model was
approximately PLN 2.75 per option. The significarguts into the model were a weighted average shiace

of PLN 5.75 at the grant date, the exercise prieationed above, volatility of 50%, dividend yielfl @%, an
option life of five years and seven years, an ahnis& free rate of 6% and estimation that 70% frtme
employed will implement the options.

There was no impact of the share-based paymentiefirtancial statements of the Company during tary
ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011.

Non-controlling interests

Movements in non-controlling interests during tleayended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2055 are
follows:

As at 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Opening balance 4,254 -
Non-controlling interest Ronson Espresso Sp. zat.o.

transaction date (6 June 2011) - 4,323
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to nortrotiimg

interests (344) (69)
Closing balance 3,910 4,254

(1) For additional information see Note 5.
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28.

Net earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculatediviing net profit for the year by the weightedesage
number of ordinary shares outstanding during ther.yBiluted earnings per share amounts are cakulilay
dividing the net profit for the year by the weightaverage number of ordinary shares outstandinggltine
year plus the weighted average number of ordinaayes that would be issued on conversion of albihgive
instruments into ordinary shares, as 31 Decemb#&® 20 the 336,000 outstanding option were out-ge
money (see note 26) there for the impact on theedil earnings per share was nil.

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic):

For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011

Net profit attributable to equity holders of thergrat company

(PLN thousands) 31,655 6,826
Balance at beginning of the period 272,360,000 , 252,000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic) 272,360,000 272,360,000
Basic earnings per share 0.116 0.025

There have been no other transactions involvingnargl shares between the reporting date and tleeadat
completion of these consolidated financial statemen
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29.

Loans and borrowings
Information about the contractual terms of the @isunterest-bearing loans and borrowings is preskm the

table below. For more information about the Grougkposure to interest rate and foreign currendy, see
Note 36.

As at 31 December 2012 2011

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Non-current loans and borrowings

Floating rate bonds 86,756 86,180
Secured bank loans 39,893 21,746
Loans from third parties 13,932 5,726
Total non-current loans and borrowings 140,581 13,652

Current loans and borrowings

Floating rate bonds 1,657 1,667
Secured bank loans 65,319 95,965
Total current loans and borrowings 66,976 97,632
Total loans and borrowings 207,557 211,284

Floating rate bonds:

On 18 April 2011, the Company issued 5,134 seridAds with an aggregate nominal value of PLN 51,34
thousand and 3,616 series B bonds with an aggrewatenal value of PLN 36,160 thousand. The nominal
value of one bond amounts to PLN 10 thousand aedusl to its issue price. The bonds shall be médeon

18 April 2014 at nominal value, whereby the Comphay the right to early redeem any number of thes®
bonds which early redemption is to be effectedegithn 18 April 2013 or 18 October 2013. Interegtayable
semi-annually in April and October until redemptibete.

The terms and conditions of the issuance of thedddnclude provisions regarding early redemptioraat
bondholder’s request to be made prior to 18 Agdil4 in case of the occurrence of certain evenisrang a
number of obligations and restrictions applicaldetie Company, including the obligation to mainti#m
financial ratios at certain levels, restrictionsiowestments in land having an unregulated statdsrastrictions
on related party transactions. As 31 December 20i®venants were meet.

The bonds are not secured.

Covenants on secured bank loans:

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Company hasreached any loan covenant, which would expose th
Company for risk of obligatory and immediate repaynof any loan and has been able to extend altiegp
loan facilities.
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29.

Loans and borrowings (cont’d)

Terms and debt repayment schedule
Terms and conditions of outstanding loans are l&s/fe:

Loans as at 31 December 2012:

Nominal Year of Accrued Charges Carrying

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Currency interest rate  maturity Capital interest and fees value
Wibor 6M +

Floating rate bonds series A PLN 4.25% 2014 51,340 942 (437) 51,845
Wibor 6M +

Floating rate bonds series B PLN 4.95% 2014 36,160 715 (307) 36,568

Subtotal (floating rate bonds) 87,500 1,657 (744) 88,413
Wibor 1M +

Bank Loans PLN Bank's margin 2013 10,001 - (64) 9,937
Wibor 3M +

Bank Loans pLN Bank's margin 2013 55,515 134 (270) 55,379
Wibor 1M +

Bank Loans pLN Bank's margin 2014 12,698 3 (252) 12,449
Wibor 3M +

Bank Loans pLN Bank's margin 5014 10,021 - (33) 9,988
Wibor 1M +

Bank Loans pLN Bank's margin 2015 5,572 - (217) 5,355
Wibor 3M +

Bank Loans pLN Bank's margin 2015 12,257 - (153) 12,104

Subtotal (bank ) 106,064 137 (989) 105,212

Loans from partner in jointly

controlled entity PLN 9.24% 2017 7,488 216 - 7,704

Loans from non-controlling

interest granted to consolidated

subsidiaries PLN 9.3% 2016 5,245 983 - 6,228

Subtotal (third parties) 12,733 1,199 - 13,932

Total 206,297 2,993 (1,733) 207,557

(1) Interest based on the latest interest rate as obéugn the construction credit/loan granted by theks to the Group and increased by

2%, and updated at the beginning of each calendar.y

(2) Interest based on the latest interest rate as obdugn the construction credit/loan granted by theks to the Group and increased by

2%, and updated at the beginning of each quarter.

For the bank loans the following collateral was gien:

> Ordinary and floating mortgages on Inventory (&l restate units), see Note 21.
> Pledge over bank accounts which are presentecei€tnsolidated Statement of Financial Position as
Cash and cash equivalents up to the amounts/imgtats due amounting to PLN 10,147 thousand and
PLN 3,308 thousand as at 31 December 2012 and 8anileer 2011, respectively.

> Deposits guarantee for interests on credits, seée R

> Assignment of receivables arising from insurancee@gent and from the agreements concluded with
clients.

> Subordination agreement on loans from relatedgmarti

> Blank promissory note drawn by particular subsigiedmpanies with a promissory note declaration up

to the amount of the loan plus interest.

> Advance payments of dividends by the borrowerd tuitirepayment of loans are not allowed.
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29.

30.

Loans and borrowings (cont’d)

Loans as at 31 December 2011:

Nominal interest Year of Accrued Charges Carrying
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Currency rate  maturity Capital interest  and fees value
Wibor 6M + 4.25%
Floating rate bonds series A PLN 2014 51,340 948 (775) 51,513
Floating rate bonds series B pLNWIbOrBM+4.95% 5514 36160 719  (545) 36,334
Subtotal (floating rate bonds) 87,500 1,667 (1,320) 87,847
Wibor 1M +
Bank Loans PLN Bank's margin 2012 40,362 230 (45) 40,547
Wibor 3M +
Bank Loans PLN Bank's margin 2012 55,407 42 - 55,449
Wibor 3M +
Bank Loans PLN Bank's margin 2013 21,988 23 (296) 21,715
Subtotal (bank ) 117,757 295 (341) 117,711
Loans from non-controlling
interest granted to consolidated
subsidiaries (Espresso) PLN 9.394Y 2016 5,245 481 - 5,726
Subtotal (third parties) 5,245 481 - 5,726
Total 210,502 2,443  (1,661) 211,284

(1) Interest based on the latest interest rate as obdugn the construction credit/loan granted by theks to the Group and increased by

2%, and updated at the beginning of each quarter.

Trade and other payables and accrued expenses

As at 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Trade payables 18,305 21,659
Guarantees for construction wdtk 4,603 2.774
Accrued expenses 12,222 4,866
Value added tax (VAT) and other tax payables 1,503 822
Non-trade payables 1,457 1,711
Total trade and other payables and accrued expenses 38,090 31,832

Trade and non-trade payables are non-interestrigeand are normally settled on 30-day terms.

@

The long-term part of guarantees for constructiarkg is presented in non-current liabilities.
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31. Advances received

Advances received consist of customer advancesoftstruction work in progress (deferred revenue) an
comprise customer advances for the following prsjec

As at 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Gemini ll 27,401 42,967
Verdis | 13,335 11,335
Sakura ll 9,273 -
Espresso | 9,081 587
Naturalis | 2,542 1,130
Verdis Il 2,044 -
Naturalis Il 1,346 -
Panoramika | 1,000 1,110
Sakura | 601 17,366
Chilli 1 558 572
Mtody Grunwald | 550

Naturalis Il 323 2,330
Constans 203 129
Impressio | 101 4,688
Nautica | 27 145
Chilli 1l 35 -
Imaginarium IlI 5 4,448
Galileo - 356
Nautica Il - 93
Gemini | - 71
Gardenia - 9
Other 67 55
Total 68,492 87,391

For information about contingent receivables fragmed contracts with clients, see Note 34.

32. Provisions

For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Balance at the beginning of the year 261 6,504
Increase/(decrease) (30) (6,243)
Balance at the end of the year 231 261

As at 31 December 2012, the provision included etqubnecessary costs of guarantees for construstioks
amounting to PLN 231 thousand, whereas as at 3&mleer 2011, the provision included expected necgssa
costs of guarantees for construction works amogrtrPLN 261 thousand.
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The fair values of financial assets and liabilitiegyether with the carrying amounts shown in tlgolidated
Statement of Financial Position, are as follows:

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Category Note 31 De?esmat}er 2012
Carrying
amount Fair value
Assets:
Trade and other receivables Loans and receivables 22 24,423 24,423
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized Loans and receivables 24 2,944 2,928
Loans granted to third parties Loans and receivables 18 1,043 1,072
Loans granted to related parties Loans and receivables 19 7,704 7,364
Cash and cash equivalents Held for trading 25 44,928 44,928
Liabilities:
Secured bank loans Other financial liabilities 29 105,212 105,051
Floating rate bonds Other financial liabilities 29 88,413 89,177
Loans from third parties Other financial liabilities 29 13,932 13,152
Trade and other payables and accrued expenses Other financial liabilities 30 36,587 36,587
Unrecognized gain (150)
As at
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Category Note 31 December 2011
Carrying
amount Fair value
Assets:
Trade and other receivables Loans and receivables 22 1,686 1,686
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized Loans and receivables 24 2,512 2,491
Loans granted to third parties Loans and receivables 18 928 964
Cash and cash equivalents Held for trading 25 94,622 94,622
Liabilities:
Secured bank loans Other financial liabilities 29 117,711 115,185
Floating rate bonds Other financial liabilities 29 87,847 87,595
Loans from third parties Other financial liabilities 29 5,726 5,726
Trade and other payables and accrued expenses Other financial liabilities 30 31,010 31,010
Unrecognized gain 2,793

Estimation of fair values

The following methods and assumptions were use@stimate the fair value of each class of financial

instruments:

o trade and other receivables, cash and cash eqgniseded trade and other payables: the carrying ataou
approximate fair value because of the short matofithese instruments;
e short-term bank deposit - collateralized: the failue is estimated by discounting the future cdsWd of
each instrument at rates currently offered to theu@ for similar instruments of comparable matestby

the Group’s bankers;

e loans and borrowings: the fair value is estimatgdliscounting the future cash flows of each inseatrat
rates currently offered to the Group for similastmments of comparable maturities by the Groupiskers.
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34.

Fair value estimation (cont’d)

Interest rates used for determining fair value
The interest rates used to discount estimated ftasis (PLN denominated), where applicable, are dase
WIBOR plus/minus margin as at 31 December 20123nBecember 2011 and are as follows:

As at 31 December 2012 2011

8.49%-9.95%
.50%

Loans and borrowings 7.03%-9.04%
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized 4.13%

Commitments and contingencies

Investment commitments:

The amounts in the table below present unchargedsiment commitments of the Group in respect of
construction services to be rendered by the generdtactors:

For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Espresso | 25,514 -
Miody Grunwald | 24,995 -
Verdis Il 13,889 -
Sakura Il 4,206 26,188
Naturalis Il 2,972 11,917
Chilli 1l 2,201 -
Gemini Il 1,916 33,141
Verdis | 1,668 20,103
Panoramika | 1,388 9,973
Naturalis | 491 5,972
Naturalis Il - 2,779
Sakura | - 5,303
Chilli | - 3,673
Impressio | - 622
Constans - 184
Imaginarium 11| - 178
Total 79,240 120,033

Other commitments:

According to the conditions of the termination agrent concluded with Mr Kerem on 3 September 2068,
consulting agreement between him and the Compaudyitansubsidiary expired as of end of March 2009
(‘Expiration Date’). As at the Expiration Date dfet consulting agreement, Mr Kerem is entitled tboaus
equal to 0.5% of the pre-tax profits generated fojgets that were owned by the Company as of tha@r&txon
Date. This concerns however only those projectshviaire based on the plots of land with validatedirap
conditions or with the valid master plans. Moregwr Kerem is entitled to an additional bonus equal.5%
of the pre-tax profit generated by the projects there in construction or were completed as ofEkpiration

Date.

Contingent liabilities:

As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not havecantingents liabilities.
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34. Commitments and contingencies (cont’d)

Investment commitments -land purchase:

In June 2012, the Group entered into preliminangcipase agreements with private individuals forptftland
with an area of 118,4007ocated in Warsaw, district Mokotow atsé@inowa Street. Conclusion of the final
purchase agreements and transferring of the owipepsthe properties is expected to be finalizedrduthe
first half of 2014 the final payment will amount®d.N 62 million.

Contingent receivables - contracted sales not yeécognized:

The table below presents amounts to be receivad fhe customers having bought apartments from Ronso
subsidiary companies and which are based on thee\@afl the sale and purchase agreements signectheith
clients until 31 December 2012 after deduction a§rpents received at reporting date (such paymegitgyb
presented in the Consolidated Statement of FinaRoisition as Advances received):

For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Espresso | 16,950 5,540
Gemini Il 8,616 41,100
Sakura Il 8,333 -

Verdis | 6,215 15,020
Mtody Grunwald | 5,868 -

Verdis Il 5,428 -

Sakura | 3,669 9,981
Naturalis 11l 2,221 -

Panoramika | 1,864 1,611
Constans 1,831 1,165
Impressio | 1,458 5,446
Naturalis | 1,002 1,877
Chilli 1 846 2,699
Chilli 11 584 -

Gemini | a7 36

Naturalis Il 34 2,145
Nautica Il - 1,528

Imaginarium 111 - 1,095

Nautica | - 565

Gardenia - 675

Galileo 946

Total 64,966 91,429

35. Related parties

Parent company

The Company enters into various transactions wihshareholders, subsidiaries and with its directond
executive officers. The Company’s immediate shddshs are I.T.R. 2012 B.V., I.T.R. Dori B.V., GE &e
Estate CE Residential B.V, with an interest in shan the Company’s capital of 32.1%, 32.1% an@%5.
respectively, as at 31 December 2012. For a lisubsidiaries reference is made to Note 1(b).

The main related parties’ transactions arise on:

e |oans received,

e transactions with key management personnel,

¢ loans granted to the joint venture,

e other.
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35. Related parties (cont’'d)

Outstanding balances with related parties as d@&dember 2012 and as at 31 December 2011 are wedecu
interest free (except for loans granted to thetjeenture (Ronson IS sp. z 0.0. Sp.k.) and seétigroccurs in
cash. The Group did not record any impairment oéirebles relating to amounts owed by related @sith
either year. This assessment is undertaken eaahcfal year through examining the financial positaf the
related party and the market in which the relatadypoperates. All transactions with related partieere
performed based on market conditions.

Loans received

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Greppid 100% of the loans received from related gsurti
including accrued interest amounting to PLN 54.8iom, and did not receive any loans from relatedlties in
this period.

Transactions with key management personnel
As at 31 December 2012, key management persontiet @ompany include:
Shraga Weisman - President of the Management Board, Chief EtreeDfficer

Tomasz tapinski - Member of the Management Board, Chief Financiéicér
Andrzej Gutowski - Member of the Management Board, Sales and Mag®irector
Israel Greidinger - Member of the Management Board

Ronen Ashkenazi - Member of the Management Board

Loans to directors
As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, #eneeno loans granted to directors.

Key Management Board personnel compensation

Apart from the compensation listed below, thereewvao further benefits, including share based paysnen
granted to key management personnel in the pegoded 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011. Key
management personnel compensation can be presenteliows:

As at 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Mr Shraga Weisman, Chief Executive Officer

Salary and other short term employee benefits 62,5 1,539
Management bonus 935 182
Subtotal - Mr Shraga Weisman 2,497 1,721

Mr Tomasz tapiski, Chief Financial Officer

Salary and other short term employee benefits 522 522
Management bonus 211 40
Subtotal - Mr Tomasz tapiski 733 562

Mr Andrzej Gutowski, Sales and Marketing Director

Salary and other short term employee benefits 311 311
Management bonus 144 197
Subtotal - Mr Andrzej Gutowski 455 508
Total 3,685 2,791
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35.

36.

Related parties (cont'd)

Supervisory Board remuneration

The Supervisory Board of the Company consists aofiednbers; the supervisory directors are entitle@rto
annual fee of EUR 8,900 plus an amount of EUR 1,680 board meeting (EUR 750 if attendance is by
telephone). Two Supervisory Board members have adatheir remuneration and thus did not receive any
payment from the Company. The total amount duespect of Supervisory Board fees during 2012 is P4RI
thousand (EUR 58 thousand; 2011: PLN 221 thousBbdR(54 thousand)).

Loans granted to the joint venture
The loans are granted to the joint venture, RomS@p. z 0.0. Sp.k.. For additional informatioe sete 19.
Other

As a result of requirements (indirectly) pertaining I.T.R. Dori B.V., one of the Company’s larger
shareholders, whose ultimate parent company &dlish the Tel Aviv stock exchange, the first quanégorts,
semi-annual reports and third quarter reports abgest to a full scope review by the Company’s tardi For
the Company itself, being domiciled in the Netheds and listed on the Warsaw stock exchange, belg&mi-
annual report is subject to an audit review. Then@any has agreed with the ultimate parent comp&hy dr.
Dori B.V. that the costs for the first and thirdagter audit review will be fully reimbursed to tG@mpany. The
additional audit review started as of the third teraended 30 September 2012. The reimbursemeatidit
review costs is disclosed in Note 15 to the Coméngncial Statements.

Financial risk management, objectives and policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety ofafincial risks: market risk (including currency rigkice risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidiisk. The Group’s overall risk management progranioeeises on
the unpredictability of financial markets and se&kminimize potential adverse effects on the Gietfipancial

performance. The Management Board reviews and sag@eies for managing each of these risks ang éne

summarized below. The Group also monitors the nigmiee risk arising from all financial instruments

The Group does not use derivative financial insente to hedge currency or interest rate risksrayiiom the
Group’s operations and its sources of finances,land has been throughout the year ended 31 Dec&@h?2
and 2011, the Group’s policy that no trading inriigive) financial instruments shall be undertaken

The Group’s principal financial instruments compreash balances, bank loans and bonds. The mgingaiof
these financial instruments is to manage the Gmoliguidity and to raise finance for the Group’seogtions.
The Group has various other financial instrumentshsas financial lease receivables, trade debtuistrade
creditors, which arise directly from its operations

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to thedap if a customer or counter party to a finanamkiument fails
to meet its contractual obligations. Financial imstents that potentially subject the Group to cotretions of
credit risk consist principally of cash and cashiealents and receivables.
The Group is making significant cash payments as sgctr preliminary land purchase agreements. The
Group minimizes its credit risk arising from suciyments by registering advance repayment obligstionhe
mortgage register of the respective property. Manant has a credit policy in place and the exposuceedit
risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. The Groupsdaot expect any counter parties to fail in megetheir
obligations The carrying amounts of the financial assets remtethe maximum credit risk exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reportintgdeas as follows:

As at 31 December  As at 31 December

In thousands of Polish Zloty (PLN) 2012 2011

Trade and other receivables 4,348 2,880
Short-term bank deposits - collateralized 2,944 2,512
Cash and cash equivalents 44,928 94,622
Total 52,220 100,014
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Financial risk management, objectives and policiecont’d)

The Group places its cash and cash equivalentsmamdial institutions with high credit ratings. Magement
does not expect any counterparty to fail to meebhligations. Concentrations of credit risk witdspect to
trade receivables are limited due to the large rerolh customers comprising the Group’s customee b@ke
credit quality of cash at banks and short-term bdegosits can be assessed by reference to extwreuit
ratings:

As at 31 December As at 31 December

2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zloty (PLN)
Rating
AAA 13 11
AA - 1,764
A 26,076 76,715
BBB 17,521 15,620
CCcC - 512
No available information 1,318 -
Total cash at banks and short-term bank deposits 44,928 94,622
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of freucash flows of a financial instrument will fluete because of
changes in market prices, such as foreign excheaige and interest rates will affect the Grouptome or the
value of its holdings of financial instruments, Bugs bank loans, loans from related parties, cashcash
equivalents and short-term bank deposits. Thectigeof market risk management is to manage amiralo
market risk exposures within acceptable parametdrie optimizing return.

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk @enebles and payables denominated in a currerngy dtan
PLN to a limited extent only. As at 31 December 2Gihd 2011, trade receivables denominated in foreig
currencies were insignificant.

(ii) Price risk

The Group’s exposure to marketable and non-marletazurities price risk does not exists becausésttoup
has not invested in securities as at 31 Decembiz a0d 2011.

(iii) Interest rate risk

The Group'’s fixed-rate borrowings are exposed tislaof change in their fair value due to changemterest
rates. The Group’s variable-rate borrowings areoszd to a risk of change in cash flows due to chsrng
interest rates. Short-term receivables and payalitesot exposed to interest rate risk. The Compepgid all
its fixed-rate borrowings (shareholder loans) dgi2011.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will nde able to meet its financial obligations as thely due. The
Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to enswae far as possible, that it will always have isight
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, undeotb normal and stressed conditions, without inogyri
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Gsaeputation.

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of fundig a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tamnsiders
the maturity of both its financial investments afimthncial assets (e.g. accounts receivable, otimandial
assets) and projected cash flows from operatiohg Group's objective is to maintain a balance betwe
continuity of funding and flexibility through these of bank overdrafts, bank loans and shareholdans.
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Financial risk management, objectives and policiecont’d)

Interest rate risk and liquidity risk analyzed

In respect of income-earning financial assets andrést-bearing financial liabilities, the followgntables
indicate their average effective interest ratethatreporting date and the periods in which theyuneaor, if
earlier, re-price.

As at 31 December 2012

More
Average effective 6 months 6-12 1-2 2-5 than
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN Note interest rate Total or less months years years 5 years
Fixed rate instruments
Cash and cash equivalents 25 0.05%-0.3% 3,841 3,841 - - - -
Loans granted to third parties 18 13.50% 1,043 - - 1,043 - -
Short-term bank deposits -
collateralized 24 2.5%-4.5% 2,944 2,944 - - - -
Variable rate instruments
Loans granted to related parties 19 9.294Y 7,704 - - - 7,704 -
WIBOR + 0.1%-
Cash and cash equivalents 25 0.5% 41,087 41,087 - - - -
WIBOR + Bank's
Secured bank loans 29 magin 105,212 137 65,182 22,434 17,459 -
Loans from others 29 9.39%4% 13,932 - - - 13,932 -
Wibor 6M +
Floating rate bonds 29 4.25%-4.95% 88,413 1,657 - 86,756 - -

® The interest rate is calculated based on the latesrest rate calculated on the construction ctéatan granted by bank to the Group
increased by 2%, and updated at the beginning lefinckar year.
® The interest rate is calculated based on the latesrest rate calculated on the construction ctéatan granted by bank to the Group
increased by 2%, and updated at the beginning efyeguarter.

As at 31 December 2011

More

Average effective 6 months 6-12 1-2 2-5 than

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN Note interest rate Total or less months years years 5 years
Fixed rate instruments

Cash and cash equivalents 25 0.05%-0.3% 2,917 2,917 - - - -

Loans granted to third parties 19 13.50% 928 - - 928 - -

Short-term bank deposits -
collateralized 24 2%-3% 2,512 2,512 - - - -

Variable rate instruments

WIBOR +
Cash and cash equivalents 25 0.1%-0.5% 91,705 91,705 - - - -
WIBOR
Secured bank loans 29 + bank's margin 117,711 11,284 84,681 21,746 - -
Loans from others 29 9.394Y 5,726 - - - 5,726 -
WIBOR 6M +
Floating rate bonds 29 4.25%-4.95% 87,847 1,667 - - 86,180 -

® The interest rate is calculated based on the ldtesrest rate calculated on the construction ctéotin granted by bank to the Group
increased by 2%, and updated at the beginning efyeguarter.
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Financial risk management, objectives and policiecont’d)

Interest rate risk and liquidity risk analyzed (ctd)

It is estimated that a general increase of onegm¢age point in interest rates at the reporting deduld
increase (decrease) the net assets and the statehoemprehensive income by the amounts listetthéntable
below. The analysis prepared for 12-month periadsimes that all other variables remain unchanged.

As at As at
31 December 2012 31 December 2011
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN by 1% by 1% by 1% by 1%
Statement of comprehensive income
Variable interest rate assets 162 (162) 306 (306)
Variable interest rate liabilities * (688) 688 (702) 702
Total (526) 526 (396) 396
Net assets
Variable interest rate assets 162 (162) 306 (306)
Variable interest rate liabilities * (688) 688 (702) 702
Total (526) 526 (396) 396

* The financial costs which are related to loand Borrowing are capitalized by the Group to worlpioegress. Such costs are gradually
recognized in the statement of comprehensive incoased on the proportion of residential units stilthas been assumed in the above
analysis that one third of the financial costs ellted and capitalized in a given period is disatbi the statement of comprehensive
income based on the proportion of residential usitd of a given period and the remaining parthef tosts remains in the inventories and
will be disclosed in the statement of comprehensigeme in the following accounting periods.

The table below analyses the Group’s financialilitsds into relevant maturity groupings based dre t
remaining period from reporting date to the corttratmaturity date. The amounts disclosed in théetare the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

As at 31 December 2012

Less than Between Between Over
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years
Loans and borrowings 80,354 114,945 36,568 -
Trade and other payables 36,587 - - -
Total 116,941 114,945 36,568 -

As at 31 December 2011

Less than Between Between Over
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years
Loans and borrowings 112,082 32,083 98,202 -
Trade and other payables 31,010 - - -
Total 143,092 32,083 98,202 -
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Real-estate risk

Management believes that the residential marketwebkole in Poland is less saturated than in angratbuntry
within the European Union, including also the depétg countries in Central and Eastern Europe, himic
general provides for many opportunities for restdg¢rdevelopers. However, due to the fact that Bodish
economy is still experiencing many dynamic changesay be sensitive to potential up and down-tuiliieese
market conditions form an important and significaisk factor for the Company and for other resigent
developers, as the development process (includages such as the purchase of land, the preparattitzmd
for construction works, the construction processlitand, finally, also the sale of apartments) nake several
years from start until completion. It is importaiot understand that decisions taken by the Companst m
assume a relatively long-term time horizon for eacbject as well as a significant volatility of thprices,
construction cost levels and sales prices of agarsnduring the duration of projects which may haveaterial
impact on the Company’s profitability and financingeds.

Another specific risk is associated with the raggdelopment of many Polish cities, which very oftevolves a
lack of stability of development plans which coslabstantially impact the likelihood that projectsarticular
sites are realized as initially desired or planr@dite often, residential developers are interestdallying land
parcels without zoning conditions or without a dgathaster plan for the area, which would allow fopedter
assessment of the ultimate value of the plot. FPogssuch market opportunities may result in rekgviow
prices of the land parcels. However, this strategy result in increasing operational and finandiks for the
developer. Moreover, changing development plantb@fities could also impact the planned developraad
realization of utility infrastructure (including wex, gas, sewage and electricity connections), vigccritical
factor for the Company and other developers. Howefee a vast majority of land parcels, the Compiag
already obtained zoning approvals, which reducssigk to the Company significantly.

Another operating risk lies within the constructiorocess itself. The Company does not operate stremtion
business, but, instead, it hires third party gdnepatractors, who are responsible for running ¢bastruction
and for the finalization of the project includingtaining all permits necessary for safe use ofapartments.
Important selection criteria when hiring a gene@htractor include experience, professionalism famahcial
strength of the contractor as well as the qualityhe insurance policy covering all risks assodatéth the
construction process.

Recent turbulence in the financial markets hasltegiun a lack of stability in the manner in whiihancing
institutions (banks) have approached both reatesmmpanies and individual customers when appljong
mortgage loan. As the real estate business is e@pjtal consuming, the role of the banking sectud ds
lending abilities are crucial for the Company laging not only when land parcels are acquired lsat during
the later stages of development, especially dutiegconstruction phase. Moreover, the availabditgxternal
financing is a crucial element driving the demamddpartments, as the vast majority of our custsraeg using
mortgage secured loans to finance the purchasgastraents.

The continued instability in the financial marketuses volatility and uncertainty in the world'pital markets
and real estate markets. There is a low liquidityel in the real estate market and transactionmetuhave
significantly reduced, resulting in a lack of ctgras to pricing levels and market drivers. As sute there is
less certainty with regard to valuations and mankaues can change rapidly due to the current nbarke
conditions.
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Capital management

When managing capital, it is the Group’s objectisesafeguard the Group’s ability to continue asoing
concern in order to provide returns for sharehadend benefits for other stakeholders and to mairda
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost ofiteapln order to maintain or adjust the capitausture, the
Group may adjust the profit appropriation, retuapital to shareholders, issue new shares or seditado
reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industny Group monitors capital on the basis of tharigg ratio
and leverage. The Group’s policy is to keep theiggaatio of the Group lower than 65%, and a lagerof the
Group lower than 50%.

Banking covenants vary according to each loan ageeg but typically are not related directly to tearing

ratio of the Company but to the proportion of ldarvalue of the mortgage collateral which usuadlygquired
not to cross the limit of 50% or 60%. Moreover @@mpany is obliged to monitor its indebtedness ating to

the conditions of the bond issuance, which reqainegngst others, that the total liabilities shall exceed 75%
of total assets (total balance sum) of the CompBnying the period the Group did not breach anytofoan

covenants, nor did it default on any other of itigations under its loan agreements.

The gearing ratio is calculated as net debt dividgdotal equity. Net debt is calculated as totatrbwings
(including ‘current and non-current borrowings’ t®own in the consolidated Statement of Financiaitiom)
less cash and cash equivalents. Leverage is cedduda net debt divided by total capital employiestal capital
employed is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in @mmsolidated Statement of Financial Position plesdebt
financing assets in operation.

The gearing ratios and leverage at 31 December @a0d31 December 2011 were as follows:

As at 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Loan and borrowings, including current portion 7857 211,284
Less: cash and cash equivalents (44,928) (94,622)
Net debt 162,629 116,662
Total equity 459,768 428,457
Total capital employed 622,397 545,119
Gearing ratio 35.4% 27.2%

Leverage 26.1% 21.4%

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries are sultjeexternally imposed capital requirements. Theeee no
changes in the Groups approach to capital managetueng the year.

During the period the Group did not breach anytefléan covenants, nor did it default on any otbits
obligations under its loan agreements.

As at 31 December 2012 the Groups' market captidiz was below the value of net assets. The Manage
took appropriate steps to review the accountsspeet if there is any additional impairment reqaiieed found
no basis for it. The Management verified that tbee¢asted margin on inventory significantly exceébe
negative value between the market capitalizatiahtha net assets.
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38. Cash flow reconciliation

Inventory
For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Balance sheet change in inventory (36,763) (87,788)
Finance expense, net capitalized into inventories 18,337 16,682
Investment in newly consolidated subsidiaries - 3,215
Write-down of inventory (4,957)
Inventory transferred into fixed assets (366) -
Change in inventory in the consolidated statementf@ash flows (23,749) (57,831)
Trade and other receivables and prepayments
For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Balance sheet change in trade and other receivabteprepayments (18,307) 926
Investment in joint venture - 427
Change in trade and other receivables and prepaymés in the
consolidated statement of cash flows (18,307) 1,353
Trade and other payables and accrued expenses
For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Balance sheet change in trade and other payahieacanued expenses 6,690 13,263
Investment in joint venture - (312)
Change in trade and other payables and accrued expses in the
consolidated statement of cash flows 6,690 12,951
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Land purchase

In March 2012, the Group acquired a parcel of lavith an area of 2,600 focated in Wroclaw, Krzyki
District, at Jutrzenki Street (“Land 2"). Land 2lixated nearby a plot of land with an area of 08,8 which
the Group had purchased in the past (“Land 1"}cdmbination, Land 1 and Land 2 shall allow the Grow
build multifamily buildings that will comprise 30Qnits with an aggregate floor space of 16,100 Whe
purchase price paid is presented in the Consotidgiteancial Statements under Inventory.

In June 2012, the Group entered into preliminamcpase agreements with private individuals for luitland

with an area of 118,400 Thocated in Warsaw, district Mokotéw atsd@inowa Street. Conclusion of the final
purchase agreements and transferring of the owipeo$tthe properties is expected to be finalizedirdy the

first half of 2014. It is assumed that the projeletnned in this plot shall comprise nearly 650 simiith the total
aggregate floor space of 50,006; for additional information see the current repuot 5/2012 (dated 7 June
2012). The advance paid is presented in the Cafmeli Financial Statements under Trade and other
receivables and prepayments.

In August 2012, the Group through a joint ventundite (Ronson IS Sp. z 0.0. sp.sk.), in which the@ holds
a 50% interest (“JV"), signed the final purchaseeagent for a plot of land with an area of 8,9G0anated in
Warsaw, district Wola at Skierniewicka and Wolskee&ts. It is assumed that the project plannedhis flot
shall comprise nearly 550 units with the total @ggte floor space of 24,500°.nThe purchase price paid is
presented in the Consolidated Financial Statememtsr Inventory.

Bank loans

In January 2012, the Company entered into annexémah facilities with Millennium Bank for finanainland

acquisitions for a total amount of PLN 11.0 millidrhe repayment dates were extended to 30 July.201ily

2012, the Company entered into further annexesao facilities with Millennium Bank and the repaymhéeates
have been extended to 29 July 2013, however thep@oynis obliged to repay PLN 2.2 million beforeafin
repayment date in monthly installments of PLN OiRiom.

In April 2012, the Company entered into a loan agrent with Alior Bank S.A. for financing the consttion
costs of the first stage of the Espresso projecrfatv, Jana Kazimierza Street) for a total amotifldN 41.0
million. The repayment date of this loan is 31 Mea2015.

In May 2012, the Company entered into an annexdodan agreement with Bank Pekao S.A. with respect
the financing of the Sakura project (Warsaw, KtdtauStreet). Based on the annex to the loan agreeihen
bank extended its financing also to the secondest#gSakura project (up to a total amount of PLN533
million). The repayment date of the tranche avédddbr the second stage of this project is 30 Saptr 2014.
Based on the signed annex, the repayment date%f&0the loan granted in the past for financing tined
purchase in this project (PLN 10.0 million) wasended also to 30 September 2014.

In July 2012, the Company entered into annexesdn facilities with Bank BZWBK with an aggregatdueof
PLN 55.4 million granted in the past with respexffihancing land purchases. The annexes providadttte
respective final repayment dates specified in tlbanL Agreements were postponed from 1 July 2012 unti
31 August 2012.

In August 2012, the Company entered into furtherexes to Loan Agreements with Bank BZWBK, based on
which the respective final repayment dates weré¢ppoed until 30 September 2012.

In September 2012, the Company and Bank BZWBK edténto the new construction facility agreement
related to development of the first stage of projiody Grunwald in Pozrg for total amount of PLN 24.6
million and final repayment date 2 January 2015rédwer the Company and the Bank BZWBK entered into
new annexes postponing final repayment dates s$pecih the abovementioned Loan Agreements from
31 August 2012 until 1 July 2013 (in the amounPaN 40.9 million) and until 2 January 2015 (in @@ount

of PLN 12.3 million related to project Miody Grunida In addition, the Company repaid PLN 2.2 mitlio
which decreased the total balance of the loansteplato the Company by BZWBK for financing land
acquisitions from PLN 55.4 million to PLN 53.2 niolh.
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39.

40.

Events during the financial year (cont’d)

Completions of projects

In April 2012, the Group completed the constructadrthe Sakura | project comprising 120 units wathotal
area of 8,100 fn

In June 2012, the Group completed the construafahe Impressio | project comprising 70 units wathotal
area of 4,400 fn

In July 2012, the Group completed the construatibtihe Chilli | project comprising 30 units withtatal area of
2,100 M.

In August 2012, the Group completed the constraabibthe Naturalis 1l project comprising 60 unitigiwa total
area of 3,400 fn

In October 2012, the Group completed the constnabf the Panoramika | project comprising 90 umitd a
total area of 5,300 ™

In December 2012, the Group completed the congtructf the Naturalis | project comprising 52 unitith a
total area of 2,900 fn

In December 2012, the Group completed the construdf the Verdis | project comprising 139 unitsthwa
total area of 9,400 fn

In December 2012, the Group completed the construcif the Gemini Il project comprising 182 unitsthwa
total area of 13,900

Commencements of new projects

In February and May 2012, the Company commencexs sdithe Verdis Il project. In total the Verdisphoject
will comprise 78 units with an aggregate floor spat 4,900 rh

In March 2012, the Group commenced the construafahe Espresso | project (the sales process caomede
earlier) comprising 210 units with an aggregaterflspace of 9,500

In April 2012, the Company commenced sales of neyjepts Mlody Grunwald and Befchatowska 28 as wasl|
the next stages of currently run projects Chilli.

In May 2012, the Group commenced the constructibthe Chilli Il project (the sales process commehce
earlier) comprising 20 units with an aggregateflgpace of 1,600 M

In August 2012, the Group commenced the constmaifothe Verdis Il project (the sales process comred
earlier) comprising 78 units with an aggregate fflspace of 4,900 fn

In September 2012, the Group commenced the cotistnuaf the Mtody Grunwald | project (the sales q@es
commenced earlier) comprising 148 units with arregate floor space of 8,50m

Subsequent events

No subsequent events.
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Company Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Revenues from consulting services 3,729 3,488
General and administrative expense 3 (3,942) (3,130)
Operating profit/(loss) (213) 358
Finance income 5 9,945 6,806
Finance expense 5 (8,867) (6,435)
Net finance income 1,078 371
Profit before taxation 865 729
Income tax 6 - -
Profit before result from subsidiaries 865 729
Result from subsidiaries after taxation 8 30,790 6,097
Profit for the year 31,655 6,826

The notes on pages 95 to 101 are an integral phitiese Company financial statements.
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Company Statement of Financial Position
After profit appropriation

As at 31 December 2012 2011

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Assets

Investment in subsidiaries 8 439,196 403,503
Loan granted to subsidiaries 9 96,553 101,419
Total non-current assets 535,749 504,922
Trade and other receivables and prepayments 456 269

Receivable from subsidiaries 1,127 3,994
Loan granted to subsidiaries 9 10,479 1,756
Cash and cash equivalents 1,293 5,104
Total current assets 13,355 11,123
Total assets 549,104 516,045
Equity

Shareholders’ equity 10

Share capital 20,762 20,762
Share premium reserve 282,873 282,873
Revaluation reserve 3,474 4,173
Retained earnings 148,749 116,395
Total shareholders’ equity 455,858 424,203
Liabilities

Long-term liabilities

Floating rate bond loans 11 86,756 86,180
Total long-term liabilities 86,756 86,180

Current liabilities

Floating rate bond loans 11 1,657 1,667
Accrued interest on loans from subsidiaries 3,310 3,310
Trade and other payables and accrued expenses 1,523 685
Total current liabilities 6,490 5,662
Total liabilities 93,246 91,842
Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities 549,104 516,045

The notes on pages 95 to 101 are an integral phitiese Company financial statements.
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31 Decemb@11:

Share Share  Revaluation Retained Total
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) capital premium reserve earnings equity
Balance at 1 January 2011 20,762 282,873 4,173 569 417,377
Net profit for the year ended
31 December 2011 - - - 6,826 6,826
Balance at 31 December 2011 20,762 282,873 4,173 6,395 424,203
Net profit for the year ended
31 December 2012 - - (699) 32,354 31,655
Balance at 31 December 2012 20,762 282,873 3,474 8,149 455,858

The notes on pages 95 to 101 are an integral patti@se Company financial statements.
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Company Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 31,655 6,826

Adjustments to reconcile profit for the period
to net cash (used in)/from operating activities:

Net finance income, net 5 (1,078) (371)
Net results subsidiaries during the year 8 (30,790) (6,097)
Subtotal (213) 358
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables

and prepayments (187) (200)
Decrease/(increase) in receivable from subsidiarie 2,867 265
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payable

and accrued expense 838 (390)
Subtotal 3,305 33
Interest paid, net (8,203) 9,565
Net cash used in operating activities (4,898) 9,598

Cash flows from investing activities

Loans granted to subsidiaries, net of issue cost - (98,250)
Repayment of loans granted to subsidiaries 5,990 7,100
Dividend from subsidiary 8 6,100 13,932
Investment in subsidiaries 8 (11,003) (28,451)
Net cash used in investing activities 1,087 (105,669)

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of loans received from subsidiaries - (13,932)
Proceeds from bond loans, net of issue costs - 85,775
Net cash from financing activities - 71,843
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (3,811) (24,228)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 5,104 29,332
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 1,293 5,104

The notes on pages 95 to 101 are an integral patti@se Company financial statements.
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1.

General

Ronson Europe N.V. (‘the Company’), is a Netherkatidhited liability company with its statutory semt
Rotterdam, the Netherlands, and was incorporatetBalune 2007.

The shares of the Company are traded on the Wa&aek Exchange since 5 November 2007. As at
31 December 2012, 32.1% of the outstanding shaeedead by I.T.R. 2012 B.V., 32.1% of the outstaugdi
shares are held by ITR Dori B.V. (both cooperaimdTRD Partnership), whereas 15.3% of the outitam
shares are held by GE Real Estate CE Residenfial B5E Real Estate’) and the remaining 20.5% o th
outstanding shares are held by the public.

The Company holds and owns (directly and indirg¢ct¥ Polish companies. These companies are adctitreei
development and sale of units, primarily apartmentsnulti-family residential real-estate projetdsindividual
customers in Poland and lease real estate to frarties.For additional information see Note 36 he t
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Accounting principles

The Company'’s financial statements have been pedpamder the option of clause 362.8 of Part 9 aikBd of
the Netherlands Civil Code, meaning that the actiogrprinciples and measurement basis of the Cogipan
financial statements are similar to those appliéth wespect to the Consolidated Financial Statemésge
Notes 2 and 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statésheexcept for the valuation of subsidiaries Wwhare
valued using the net asset value method. The Coyriparancial Statements have been prepared in coitfor
with generally accepted accounting principles ia Netherlands (‘Dutch GAAP’), whereas the Consdéda
Financial Statements have been prepared in acamedaith International Financial Reporting Standards
('IFRS’) as adopted by the EU as described in Niote the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Revenue from the consulting services are fees edafigm holding to subsidiaries and is it elimimhtgpon
consolidation.

General and administrative expense

For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

External services 909 990
Remuneration fees 2,869 2,051
Other 164 89
Total 3,942 3,130
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4, Directors’ remuneration

Key Management Board personnel compensation

Apart from the compensation listed below, thereewvao further benefits, including share based paysnen
granted to key management personnel in the pegoded 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011. Key
Management Board personnel compensation can berpegsas follows:

As at 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Mr Shraga Weisman, Chief Executive Officer

Salary and other short term employee benefits 62,5 1,539
Management bonus 935 182
Subtotal - Mr Shraga Weisman 2,497 1,721
Mr Tomasz tapiski, Chief Financial Officer

Salary and other short term employee benefits 522 522

Management bonus 211 40
Subtotal - Mr Tomasz t apiski 733 562
Mr Andrzej Gutowski, Sales and Marketing Director

Salary and other short term employee benefits 311 311

Management bonus 144 197
Subtotal - Mr Andrzej Gutowski 455 508
Total 3,685 2,791

Mr Dror Kerem, former President of the Managemewaf8 and former Chief Executive Officer of the
Company is in title to receive remuneration foritiddal information see Note 34 to the Consolidat@uancial
Statements.

Supervisory Board remuneration

The Supervisory Board of the Company consists afiednbers; the supervisory directors are entitle@rto
annual fee of EUR 8,900 plus an amount of EUR 1,680 board meeting (EUR 750 if attendance is by
telephone). Two Supervisory Board members (Mr Aientkavich and Mr Frank Roseen) have waived their
remuneration and thus did not receive any paymemh fthe Company. The total amount due in respect of
Supervisory Board fees during 2012 is PLN 242 thods(EUR 58 thousand; 2011: PLN 221 thousand (EUR
54 thousand)) and can be presented as follows:

As at 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Mr Mark Segall 65 71
Mr Yair Shilhav 65 68
Mr Reuven Sharoni 65 61
Mr Przemyslaw Kowalczyk a7 21
Total 242 221

(*) The amounts above were translated from EUR Rutish Zlotys (PLN) using the average exchange Ratblished by the NBP.

Share and options on shares
During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31nilre20110, the members of the Management Boardhand
members of the Supervisory Board did not receigbtsito shares or options on shares. The rightkaces that issued
to Mr Andrzej Gutowski during 2007 expired duringl12.
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5. Net finance income and expense

For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Interests and fees on granted loans to subsidiarie 9,847 5,258
Interest income on bank deposits 98 1,483
Foreign exchange gain - 65
Finance income 9,945 6,806

Interest expense on bonds measured at amortizéd cos

(8,262) (5,633)

Interests on loans received from subsidiaries - 78)3
Foreign exchange loss 9) -
Commissions and fees (596) (424)

Finance expense

(8,867) (6,435)

Net finance income

1,078 371

6. Income tax

No Dutch income taxes have been recorded, primhgbause current year’s tax charge has been affsétst
the carry forward of taxable losses from the pRs@lizations of these carry forward tax lossesdmgendent
upon generating sufficient taxable income in theqaethat the carry forward tax losses are realiBabked on
all available information, it is not probable thtae carry forward tax losses are realizable andefoee no

deferred tax asset is recognized.

The accumulated tax losses available for carry dodvas per 31 December 2012 are estimated to belERIR

thousand (2011: EUR 1,893 thousand) and expirelks\s:

In thousands of Euros (EUR)

As at 31
December
2012

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
After 2017

361
835
655

Total tax losses carry forward

1,851

97



Ronson Europe N.V.
Company Financial Statements for the year ended 32ecember 2012

Notes to the Company Financial Statements

7. Personnel

The Company did not employ any personnel during fihancial years ended 31 December 2012 and
31 December 2011. The new law crikgsy that was introduced in the Netherlands duéfg?2 have no impact
on the company.

8. Investment in subsidiaries

The subsidiaries of the Company are valued at ttetinsset value.

The movements in subsidiaries are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Balance at beginning of the year 403,503 382,887
Investments in subsidiaries 11,003 28,451
Net result subsidiaries during the year 30,790 6,097
Dividends received during the year (6,100) (13,932)
Balance at end of the year 439,196 403,503
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9. Loan granted to subsidiaries

Loans as at 31 December 2012:

Nominal Year of Accrued Charges Carrying
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Currency interest rate maturity Capital interest  and fees value
PLN 6% 2013 7,360 2,502 - 9,862
Wibor 6M +
PLN 4.75% 2014 51,340 5,970 (465) 56,845
Wibor 6M +
PLN 5.45% 2014 36,160 4,510 (345) 40,325
Total loans granted to subsidiaries 94,860 12,982 (810) 107,032
Loans as at 31 December 2011:
Nominal Year of Accrued Charges  Carrying
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Currency interest rate maturity Capital interest  and fees value
PLN 6% 2013 7,350 1,768 - 9,118
Wibor 6M +
PLN 4.75% 2014 51,340 1,000 (825) 51,515
Wibor 6M +
PLN 5.45% 2014 36,160 755 (610) 36,305
PLN 6% 2016 6,000 237 - 6,237
Total loans granted to subsidiaries 100,850 3,760  (1,435) 103,175

(*) The borrower may redeem the loan at any time stadirggyear from the loan agreement date.

The loans are not secured.

99



Ronson Europe N.V.

Company Financial Statements for the year ended 32ecember 2012

Notes to the Company Financial Statements

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Shareholders’ equity

The authorized share capital of the Company cansis800,000,000 shares of EUR 0.02 par value €Huod.
number of issued and outstanding ordinary sharest & December 2012 amounted to 272,360,000 (as at
31 December 2011: 272,360,000 shares).

According to Dutch Law, the Company has an amonat 6f tax) of PLN 3,474 thousand (2011: PLN 4,173
thousand) as legal reserve relating to unrealieedlts of changes in fair value of an investmeapprty owned
by one of the Company’s subsidiaries. This legs¢ree is not available for dividend distribution.

Floating rate bond loans

As at 31 December 2012, the floating rate bonds manprise a loan principal amount of PLN 87,5Cugand
plus accrued interest of PLN 1,657 thousand mirastscdirectly attributed to the bond issuance (ivhace
amortized based on the effective interest methauumting to PLN 744 thousand. As 31 December 2012 a
covenants were meet.

For additional information see Note 29 to the Cdidated Financial Statements.

Commitments and contingencies

As at 31 December 2012, the Company had no commisnand contingencies other than the contingent
commitment in relation to the termination agreemwiith its former Managing Director, Mr Kerem, as
disclosed in Note 34 to the Consolidated Finarstatements.

Related party transactions

During the financial years ended 31 December 20d@ 31 December 2011, respectively, there were no

transactions between the Company on the one haddi{sashareholders, their affiliates and otheates parties
which would qualify as not being at arm’s length.

Financial risk management, objectives and policies

For a description of the Company’s financial riskmagement, objectives and policies reference isentad
Note 36 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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15.

16.

Information about agreed-upon engagements of the @apany’s auditor
Information about audit agreements and the valuges those agreements is disclosed below:

For the year ended 31 December 2012 2011
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Audit remuneratioft’ 562 651
Reimbursed audit review costs (101) -
Total audit remuneration for the expense of the Company 461 651

@ Audit remuneration includes amounts paid and du¢héo Company’s auditors worldwide for professionatvices
related to the audit and review of unconsolidated aonsolidated financial statements of the Compang its
subsidiaries for the relevant year (excluding fleegax advisory services). The part of the auel felated to the Dutch
auditor amounted to PLN 170 thousand (EUR 41 thadjstor 2012 and PLN 199 thousand (EUR 46 thousaod) f
2011.

@ Costs in respect of the audit review of the Comparlgied quarter report have been reimbursed by oh¢he
Company’s shareholders. For an explanation refereoeade to Note 35 to the Consolidated FinanciateBtents
(under ‘Other’).

Subsequent events

For a description of the Company’s subsequent syarference is made to Note 40 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Rotterdam,
5 March 2013

The Management Board

Shraga Weisman Tomasz tapiski Andrzej Gutowski
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer I8a and Marketing Director
Israel Greidinger Ronen Ashkenazi

The Supervisory Board

Arie Mientkavich Frank Roseen Mark Segall

Yair Shilhav Reuven Sharoni Przemyslaw Kowalczy
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Other information

Articles of Association rules regarding profit appropriation

In accordance with Article 30 of the Articles of &giation,

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7

8)
9)

the Management Board, with prior approval of th@&uisory Board, shall determine which portion o t
profits — the positive balance of the income statietr shall be reserved. The profit remaining shalat the
disposal of the general meeting;

profit distributions may only be made to the extdre equity exceeds the paid and called up pathef
capital increased with the reserves which must @mtained pursuant to the law;

Dividends shall be paid after the adoption of thal Accounts evidencing that the payment of dimits

is lawful. The General Meeting shall, upon a pr@gbad the Management Board, which proposal must be
approved by the Supervisory Board, at least deterifi) the method of payment in case payments aidem

in cash (ii) the date and (iii) the address or adses on which the dividends shall be payable;

the Management Board, with prior approval of the&uisory Board, may resolve to pay an interim
dividend provided the requirement of the seconcagraph has been complied with as shown by interim
accounts drawn up in accordance with the provieiahe law;

the General meeting may, subject to due observaiitee provision of paragraph 2 and upon a propbgal
the Management Board, which proposal has been apgrby the Supervisory Board, resolve to make
distributions out of a reserve which need not tartaéntained by virtue of the law;

cash payments in relation to shares if and in aagahe distributions are payable outside the étkthds,
shall be made in the currency of the country wiileeeshares are listed and in accordance with thicaple
rules of the country in which the shares of the @any have been admitted to an official listing on a
regulated stock exchange. If such currency is metsame as the legal tender in the Netherlandantoaint
shall be calculated against the exchange raterdieted by the Management Board at the end of the day
prior to the day on which the General meeting stedblve to make the distributions in accordancen wi
paragraph.l above. If and in as far as the Companthe first day on which the distribution is palgab
pursuant to governmental measures or other exiraoyd circumstances beyond its control, is not able
pay on the place outside the Netherlands or inr¢evant foreign currency, the Management Board is
authorized to determine to that extent that thevgayts shall be made in euros and on one or mocelia

the Netherlands. In such case the provisions ofitstesentence of this paragraph shall not apply.

the General meeting may, upon a proposal by thealfiag Directors, which proposal was approved by the
Supervisory Board, resolve to pay dividends, or endistributions out of a reserve which need nobeo
maintained by virtue of the law, wholly or partiaih the form of shares in the capital of the Compa

a claim of a shareholder to receive a distribuggpires after 5 years;

for the calculation of the amount of profit distrtion, the shares held by the Company shall beuded.

Proposed profit appropriation

For the year ended 31 December 2012, Managemepbges to allocate the net profit for the year 2012
amounting to PLN 31,655 thousand to retained egsiiithis proposal has been reflected in the Conipany
Statement of Financial Position per 31 Decembef201

Subsequent events — other information

Refer to note 40 of the consolidated financialestants (page 90).

Auditor’s report

The auditor’s report is set up on pages 35 and 36.
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